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CHAPTER TWO LETTER FROM THE CHAIRPERSON

2$E EERH#E

Looking back on the year 2021, the resurgence of the COVID-19
pandemic and the lack of momentum in recovery of the world economy
have made the external environment more complex and uncertain.
Despite the new situation and new issues, China’s economy remained
generally stable and its economic structure continued to be optimised,
achieving a good start to the “14th Five-Year Plan”. Kunming Dianchi
Water Treatment Co., Ltd. (the “Company” or “Dianchi Water”)
adhered to the concept of sustainable development with focus on
maintaining stability while seeking progress, continued to position itself
as a comprehensive service provider of ecological and environmental
protection and management with international operation, promoted the
integration of the industry to improve quality and efficiency, accurately
seized opportunities from national strategies and new policies
on environmental protection, identified the potential in ecological
protection and management that aligned with the macroeconomic
development, and actively participated in the wastewater recycling
and rural habitat improvement projects, thereby maintaining steady
growth in business performance and making steady progress towards
high-quality development.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW:

In 2021, amidst the complex and challenging external environment,
Dianchi Water continued to facilitate the in-depth implementation of
its high-quality development strategy by focusing on the business
philosophy of “seeking progress while maintaining stability” and closely
following the direction of the national industry policy. In 2021, Dianchi
Water recorded total revenue of RMB2,317.7 million, representing an
increase of 20.8% over 2020. The net profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company was approximately RMB338.3 million, representing
a decrease of 2.9% over 2020, and basic earnings per share was
approximately RMBO0.33. Taking into account the capital requirements
for the future business development of the Company, the Board
proposes to pay a dividend of RMBO0.100 per share (tax inclusive) to
the shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2021 as a token of
appreciation for the continuous support given by the shareholders to
the Company.

O E®EM021F HEMARBERE H#HRE
BERZN HIHBREFBERBRRNTIEE - |®
HHFLYE FEE TEKEETHEBYR KR
EEFREERL ERITHRIRARB -EHEAEM
KBRDAERRAR(AR]HE kB RAA
SEERES O BTFEH B ke BREEBEL
KEMERRBRELCEGARBEEL - £
EXRARERY EHLERNREBEMNRREN
R RERTBREEREARRELENEAHN &
B2ESKEREINABARENABREEAT
B-ABEERENBRER EREAERRMNE

EEOE:

20215 B KISEHKER  mmkE NI
REP O EBHEBPREINLEES ERERE
ERFER THHEDSLELEEBERTAAL
2021F B KB EBR EEXBKRAARKE2317.7
BB T B20204F £7R20.8% : IR EEFEFE Y
B AR3383H B L E2020F T [£2.9%  FE A
BRABMNHNABOIBT - EFTSHEERAARER
FRERMNES TR BMREIREEE2021F12 A
BSTALFEREERARKOI0T(EEH) U@
BERE—EUARGBETFARAMNLE -
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CHAPTERTWO LETTER FROM THE CHAIRPERSON

While ensuring quality and stable profitability, Dianchi Water adhered
to the strategy of “unitary domination with diversified development”
to explore diversified development paths and increase its efforts in
market development. After years of hard work, the Company extended
its industrial chain from municipal wastewater treatment to rural
micro-polluted water and industrial wastewater treatment, as well as
water resources protection and running water sectors in the upstream
and reclaimed water and sludge recycling in the downstream and
the derived environment monitoring, solid waste treatment and heat
and power supply industries, with operations gradually expanding
to atmospheric pollution treatment, soil restoration, clean energy
development and other areas of “Macro Environmental Protection”.

In terms of main business, Dianchi Water persisted in prioritising
quality and efficiency, with emphasis on the operational aspect as the
core of projects and making it the main source of investment income.
In 2021, all staff of Dianchi Water made concerted efforts in pandemic
prevention and control in a scientific manner and worked diligently at
their respective positions to ensure steady operation of all production
units, compliance with wastewater treatment standards and water
supply safety. The Company’s wastewater treatment volume and
capacity increased over the last year with market presence growing
from regional operation to nationwide development, covering eight
provinces in China, including Yunnan, Sichuan, Guizhou, Hunan,
Anhui, Zhejiang, Jiangsu and Fujian, as well as Laos in Southeast
Asia. Reclaimed water and running water businesses also maintained
steady growth with industry leading operation management. With over
30 years of experience in operation and management of wastewater
treatment plants, the Company has established an experienced and
professional management team with the quality of effluent water
standing among the top in China. In particular, the main effluents
such as Chemical Oxygen Demand (COD), Total nitrogen (T-N),
Total phosphorus (T-P) and Ammonia nitrogen (NH3-N) were 73%,
49%, 83% and 95% lower than the emission limits of national Class |
Standard A standard, respectively.

2TE

EERYH

FEREEERMABMNBENA R T B MBAKE
ERI-—TTRE HBEZTLERINEE KRZ
TEERBEE - MATSRANE -BBZFNHTD
WMEh EFXERE-—OTBOSKEREMIE
RHOTRK  TEBEKEERE - AR EHHKE
RRE - BRAK THENBEK FRERECHH
ROTEMRBEDN BEEREREMAEHEX
BEE ITEFMARAGE LtREME FRER
FIRRRIEHEBE -

TEEBTE ELKBEABRKESESE — Ua
B BALELREHFERBERL FE2RAR

BWFZHEERFRE-2021F B KB 2ERC
ETEL RIS BT IEME BRFAAL
EETHHEE RESKEERTEEMMHEK
TR -ARAEKEEBEERERR EFELHEHME
E mE@EEdRAEEERA2BEUERE BEE2FE
BN RRHTIH BRESEERN
BEEMRRM D EBME - FAEKEERKER
BIER BLEBRRRBITERELKE Q7
BEB302F S KMELNEELR B —X&R
LENEEEREK EKKE2EEAL 2R
S £(COD) - MA(T-N) - 88 (T-P)M & A (NH3-N)
EXTBHAEEZSHIELBER - RAZEHRRE
K 73% - 49% ~ 83% #195% °
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CHAPTER TWO LETTER FROM THE CHAIRPERSON
$TE EERIE

B —E

In terms of technological innovation, the leading function of
technological innovation has become increasingly prominent and
application of innovative achievements has accelerated. The number
of patents obtained by the Company has maintained an annual growth
rate of more than 20% since 2017. The continuous improvement
in technological innovation has become an important driving force
for the Company’s high-quality development, and benefiting from
the application of innovative achievements, in addition to reducing
production costs and enhancing efficiency, the Company has
consolidated its leading operation and management level and good
reputation in the market.

For talent cultivation, high-quality development relies on outstanding
talents. The Company always upholds the people-oriented concept
and continuously promotes a series of innovative measures focusing
on the construction of human resources management system and
the development of talent pool. It carried out human resources
management system construction with organisational optimisation,
remuneration and performance appraisal system and human resources
system reform as the core, and established diversified incentive and
restraint mechanisms such as performance-based remuneration
system, performance appraisal and special incentives to maximise
and unleash the vitality and potential of the staff and cadres and
continuously strengthen the internal growth drivers of the Company
through talent competition.

In terms of investment and financing, leveraging the advantages of
dual platform of international and domestic financing, the Company
continuously innovated financing methods, optimised the capital
structure and controlled financing costs to provide sufficient capital
guarantee for the Company’s business development, and maintained
financial stability and good credit standing. In terms of investment,
the Company strengthened the reserve of quality projects, increased
effective investment, optimised the investment structure, improved
investment efficiency, promoted high-quality investment with stringent
standards, and promoted the Company’s high-quality development
through high-quality investment. In addition, the Company continued to
strengthen the management of quality of invested projects, accelerated
the progress of projects, and facilitated projects at preliminary stage
to commence construction projects under construction to commence
production and projects in production to meet relevant standards the
targets with focus on selecting high-quality new projects and improving
quality of existing projects, thereby capturing the full potential of new
and existing growth drivers.

MEaFHTH ARAMKRENSIEERAHRE
BIFT A RIER IR - X R ES A H B E R B 2017
FREFRIF20%A LNE K- BHAIFHKFEAD
MRARAAEmERRNEZRINZ— &
HRAFRRELER AREHOEEKRK 12
TAHEMERLE ZEEAT2EREMNETEERK
TR R AF TS IR O R o

EATHETH fHEERBETHSEEBASL -
RAMBEBAUNAREINEDS  TEHEENUNAD
EREBRBARKRMATBRORRREHEN —F
I F S B AABKEEL FHENEXK
HEMASHERESRLNANEREERR
BR OBEVYEMUARFMRAMGEREZ FHilE
BEBEZTERBHORES SKRERE B
MABERBERNB BETHREEENFER  TE
EEARMATHFALEFN -

RRESTE RABRATHREAREE TS E
Z o THAFRELIR BLEALE ZHRE
BRA RAREBERERTAENESRE R
HTIRARBREMEGRIF -REL RAMNA
EHEBERE BRAAURE BLREEB =R
BRENG HEREEBRRERE UnHEE8#k
EPHRFREERR AR FHEBRLCLHERA
BEEMER YEMNRBBER  M2BAHEER
MET E2HEENERE RERBMNESR IE
HERE FERYE HIHFEDEZ2EE -
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CHAPTERTWO LETTER FROM THE CHAIRPERSON

PROSPECTS:

The “14th Five-Year” plan proposes to adhere to the concept of “Lucid
waters and lush mountains are invaluable assets”, strengthen the
management of the system of landscapes, forests, fields, lakes and
grasses, accelerate the construction of important ecological barriers,
continuously improve the quality of the ecological environment, and
largely eliminate heavily polluted atmosphere and dark and odorous
water in urban area. Currently, wastewater treatment upgrade and
transformation remains as a key task under the “14th Five-Year Plan”
for key watershed ecological and environmental protection. With the
continuous implementation of national strategies and plans such as
the “Belt and Road” initiative, the “Yangtze River Economic Belt”
and the “Western Development Strategy” as well as the increasing
efforts of Yunnan Province in ecological environment protection
and management and promotion of comprehensive conservation,
integration and recycling of resources, the “14th Five-Year” plan period
will be critical for Dianchi Water to continue to explore its endogenous
momentum and seize the benefits from environmental protection
policies.

Facing the uncertain global economy and the beneficial policies
for environmental protection industry, the Company will closely
follow the direction of industry policies, continue to expand its
core business of wastewater treatment, actively carry out business
mergers and acquisitions, and further consolidate the businesses
in upstream and downstream of the industry chain such as water
source protection, running water supply, high-quality reclaimed
water supply, comprehensive watershed management, environment
monitoring, sludge recycling, soil restoration and solid waste treatment
and disposal. Leverage its advantages in capital, technology and
management as an industry leading enterprise in the region, the
Company will continue to compact its development foundation,
integrate internal and external resources and expand its market
shares. In addition to carrying out risk prevention and internal control,
the Company will continue to facilitate the in-depth implementation
of the innovation driven development strategy and accelerate the
market-oriented reform, transformation and upgrade of the Company
with the support from favorable national policies, industry innovation
and market operation. It will also adjust its investment strategies,
optimise the investment portfolio, establish a diversified investment
system based on standardised management, expand the industry
chain, and strengthen post-investment management, thereby achieving
rapid investment growth. In terms of financing and financial control,
the Company will continue to strengthen management of receivables,
prevent operational risks, carry out financing activities based on the
needs of business development and under the principle of keeping
the expenditure within the limits of revenues, and continue to release
financing potential of the Company to support the Company’s business
development.

et

EERYH

RERE :

[THEIREELEZEEREZKEURE S LR
B2 omRUKkMANERG AR MRELEEER
ERRERER HERZELRREES EXHK
ESRREMBMERKE . B A5 KIBENE
MREHREKERRERETOR | R B R
WNEERNT - XafBRI—F - BIBERORA
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BEREREE BRRERBRER ERERMBKE
BhE EEMERERBEEE T HEELR
BHRE REEXEHER UFTER EARL
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CHAPTER TWO LETTER FROM THE CHAIRPERSON
$TE EERIE

B —E

By upholding the concept of green, low-carbon and circular
development, the Company will consider protecting the interests of all
shareholders and safeguarding the legitimate rights and interests of
creditors as its most basic social responsibility, fully integrate into and
serve the new development pattern, facilitate high-quality corporate
development, and actively give back to the society by faithfully
fulfilling its corporate social responsibility with better quality and higher
standards.

Last but not least, we would like to take this opportunity to express our
sincere gratitude to the Company’s management and all employees
for their hard works and prominent contributions in the past year. We
would also like to extend our most heartfelt thanks to all shareholders,
investors, partners, and friends from various sectors of the society for
their long-term support to the Company!

Zeng Feng
Chairperson

AAKERSE KR BRERES ERER
BRRNNE #EERANAZIRERARE
ANHEET ZEBRAMBRBEHERBE MR
HELEXSEEZR UEENEE EENR
E - DEWETELELEET BEEEDHELE -

i

RE - BAQAAEEELEZBETIGEREE M
EFHENNEHEBRTROEH  AEBUK
RTRAIXKHHMEZBERE REL AEBHEMG
EERAPRRRRL R
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2
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“Articles of Association”

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

[Exg] Ec
“China” or “PRC”
[ E Ec

“Company” or “Issuer”

[ nR]] ek [#1T Al Ec

“Controlling Shareholder”

[4% B B3R Ec

“Director(s)”

[E%] tc

“Domestic Shares”

*

For identification purpose only

* EHEF

CHAPTER THREE DEFINITIONS

=8

the articles of association of the Company

NN

el
I
o

=2

the Board of Directors of the Company

KRAREEE

the People’s Republic of China

hEARHA

Kunming Dianchi Water Treatment Co., Ltd.* (E B E /K 1D B R 2 7)),
a joint stock company established in Yunnan Province, the PRC with limited

liability on 23 December 2010 in accordance with PRC laws, and, if the context
requires, including its predecessors and subsidiaries

BHAMLKBRODERRAA  —KBEPBEEEZN2010F12 238 £ F
EEMERIHOBROERAT UIXEFRE BEENSRHBE QT

has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Listing Rules and refers to Kunming
Dianchi Investment Co. Ltd.* (& B8 JA )t & & B B & £ 2 al), a company

established in Yunnan Province, the PRC with limited liability on 13 October
2004

EBLTRAMETFTZRE BHERABLKREBREMTEA R —FKK2004
FIOABBETREERAKNLNEREERA

director(s) of the Company

KRAEE

el

ordinary shares in the share capital of the Company, with a nominal value of
RMB1.00 each, which are subscribed for and paid up in Renminbi by PRC
nationals and/or PRC incorporated entities

ARBAREAFEREEAREIOTHERR APEIRR IR HE
AMARIZEBUARBERBLAR

EREMKBERBERLA 2021 FEHE
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CHAPTER THREE DEFINITIONS
$=% B#

“Group”, “we”, “us” or “our” or “our the Company and its subsidiaries
Group”
(RSB sk M# M) | RDF R EKBRA
“H Share” overseas listed foreign shares in the share capital of the Company with a

nominal value of RMB1.00 each, which are subscribed for and traded in HK
dollars and are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

THA Ec ARFREATEREEARBE1.00THEIN ETIINEBR - BAETRE R
BEEYREBEBIA LT

“HK$” or “Hong Kong dollars” or Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
“HK dollars”

[% ] | BERETEEET

“Hong Kong Stock Exchange” or The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hong
“Stock Exchange” Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited

[ 2578 B 22 BT | o [ B 22 AT i ERABERIMARRA REBRXRGIREEMERARNZET AR

“Hongyu Thermal Power” Liuyang Hongyu Thermal Power Co., Ltd.* (Bl 5 T Z FH EH R 2 7)), a
limited liability company incorporated in the PRC and a subsidiary directly
owned by the Company

[RTRE] i BETETREERAF RABEEMKIZEREERAR  BRARAE
EHANKE QA

“KADI” Kunming Agricultural Development Investment Co., Ltd.* (2 B8 2 ¥ % E &
& B BR A7), alimited liability company incorporated in the PRC on 29 June
2009, which is owned as to approximately 90% by Kunming SASAC, and is not
a connected person as defined in the Listing Rules

[BERARXZERIKE] it ERERFERKEARAAF  —HKMN2009F6 A29R EFE MK A
REFERAR THEATEEZRHRAIY%  FLTRBPHAERNEE
AL
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“Kunming Bus”

[RA AR ]

“Kunming Dianchi Investment”
EREBLKE] i<

“Kunming Dianchi Logistics”

[EBE % ]

“Kunming DIG”

[ERERIKRESEHE] |

CHAPTER THREE DEFINITIONS
2=% E#

HAREEEREFE A al), formerly known
as Kunming Bus Corporation, a whoIIy state-owned limited liability company

Kunming Bus Group Co., Ltd.* (&

incorporated in China on 11 March 1982, which is directly owned as to 95% by
Kunming SASAC, and is not a connected person as defined in the Listing Rules

ERRAZXEEAREELAA AIBEAT AKX TELRA  —RN1982
FIANMBETFEAMRINBEREERR THEATHEZERFR
95% FLEMMAUTAERNBEEAL

Kunming Dianchi Investment Co., Ltd.* (EBBEM I E AR E T A A), a
company established in Yunnan Province, the PRC with limited liability on 13
October 2004, which is the Controlling Shareholder of the Company

ERELKREBREMTLRAA —KNK2004F10813BEFBREBE KL
MEREMETAGE  AXARAMIERKER

Kunming Dianchi Logistics Co. Ltd.* (& B & ¥ 7 B IR & £ A 7)), a limited
liability company incorporated in the PRC and a subsidiary directly owned by
the Company

ERELYREREERR RPBEEMARLZEREELRF  REALQF
EREENNERR

Kunming Development Investment Group Co., Ltd.* (EA B REIEEEB AR
‘A A]), a wholly-state-owned company with limited liability incorporated in the
PRC on 27 January 2010, which is wholly owned by Kunming SASAC, held
20,959,760 Domestic Shares of the Company as at the Latest Practicable Date,
representing approximately 2.04% of the total share capital of the Company,
and is not a connected person as defined in the Listing Rules

EREREEEEER AR —KR2010F1A27TBEFBEFMAK LR
EBEEREMTRAR THERATHEEZHE100%RE RE&AITH
Hi45 B AN A 7120,959,760 1k & IR - 15 AR A B R A #92.04%  IF LT R A
PREEMNBEEALT
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CHAPTER THREE DEFINITIONS
$=% B#

“Kunming SASAC” the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the
Kunming People’s Government (2R T ARBNEEEAEEEEREZET),
a government agency that performs investor’s responsibilities, supervises and
manages the state-owned assets of the enterprises under the supervision of
the Kunming municipal government (excluding financial enterprises), shoulders
the responsibility of supervising the preservation and increment of the value of
the state-owned assets of the supervised enterprises, and is responsible for
drafting local regulations, rules and normative documents on the management
of the state-owned assets

oht

[BATEEZR] i ERATARBRFNEREEEEEEZE S BB BERTREE!
T EEEATBRNEETECXR(TEREERERINBEREE BEAXR
BEr¥REEERBEEENEAREEREGHBEBEEETRNMIER
MERRBMEME

4

B

“Kunming Zhongbei Kunming Zhongbei Transportation and Tourism (Group) Company Limited
Transportation” (B BIR#E(EBE)HBREF 2D A, a limited liability company

incorporated in the PRC on 10 March 1987, which is directly owned as to 81%
by Kunming SASAC, and is not a connected person as defined in the Listing

Rules

[EREAPI ] i ERAFPILLX@BREGEREREFERA —KN1987F3A10B £+ B =
ML ERBEELR BEREATEHEZEEFRA81%  JF WA B F
FrE&EBEAL

“Latest Practicable Date” 1 April 2022, being the latest practicable date for the inclusion of certain

information and data in this annual report prior to its publication

(&% 717 B #7] | 2022F4 A 1B A AERNENAREFHAETERRBBN &R AT
H &

“Listing” Listing of the H Shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

[ E] | HIRR B BB P B

“Listing Rules” or “Hong Kong the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock
Listing Rules” Exchange, as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

[Em B s [EHE L&A | ERBRMES LR ARER - /e AR5 &)

“Non-competition Agreement” the non-competition agreement entered into between the Controlling

Shareholder and the Company dated 25 April 2016

[ %2 [F) 25 3% 5 199 o | EC ERRREREARA RGN B B R201654 525 H & @ % [ % 5 F 15 &
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“Prospectus”

[ R &

“Reporting Period”

[ & 8]

“RMB” or “Renminbi”

AR

“Shareholder(s)”

MR 3R )

“Xindu Investment”

[ & 1x & ]

“Yunnan Reclaimed Water”

[Z /K]

CHAPTER THREE DEFINITIONS
2=% E#

the prospectus of the Company dated 24 March 2017 in relation to the initial
public offering and the Listing of H Shares on the Stock Exchange

B #8A2017F3A24 B B M E KA M & RHE RN X5 £ 6K A 73
B2

the year of 2021 (1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021)

2021 F £ (2021118 £2021F12A831H)

the lawful currency of the PRC

PEDEEEE

holder(s) of the shares of the Company

ZNNECTN EES TN

Kunming Xindu Investment Co., Ltd.* (E B3 %1 #8 3& & B R 2 &), a limited
liability company incorporated in the PRC on 27 May 2005, which is directly

owned as to 84% by Kunming SASAC, and is not a connected person as
defined in the Listing Rules

ERFHEEARAR —KN2005F5727THEFTEAGFMERINERE
TRE HEATHREZEERERN4%  FLTHREPAEENBEEA
T

Yunnan Reclaimed Water Industry Co., Ltd* (E@m F /K T2 B R 2 7)), a
limited liability company incorporated in the PRC and a subsidiary directly
owned by the Company

EEPKIEXEARLAA RABEMRIZEREERA  BREARAERE
EAENME XA
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CHAPTER FOUR GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS
ENE RWAR

“BOO” Build-Own-Operate, a project model in which an enterprise undertakes the
financing, design, construction of wastewater treatment or water supply
facilities, which are owned by the enterprise, and has the right to operate such
facilities in the concession period, during which the enterprise can charge
service fees based on the supplied treated wastewater or tap water to cover its
costs of investment, operation and maintenance and obtain reasonable returns,
according to the concession agreement entered into by the enterprise and the
government

[BOOJ | BR-AE-—&KY —EHARA BA-FREEAERE RFT BRITK
BRESMAKRE FHERXCHZCERE ZCXEREFTHHAESESR
R ERNTHE ZCERBHEERNMAIT N SFELEEHRE
FIEEEREMN S KIARKEMBRBE NEEERE &8 REEK
R E IS & B B

“BOT” Build-Operate-Transfer, a project model whereby, pursuant to a concession
agreement entered into by an enterprise and the government, the government
grants to the enterprise the rights to undertake the financing, design,
construction, operation and maintenance of wastewater treatment or water
supply facilities in a concession period, during which the enterprise can charge
service fees based on the supplied treated wastewater or water to cover its
costs of investment, operation and maintenance and obtain reasonable returns
while, upon the expiration of the concession period, the relevant facilities will
be transferred back to the government at nil consideration

[BOT] & BER-KE-BX —RBEAERX Bt BERECEEBRNILNFILESE
EiHE BARE-—FREERBTAHRAESKEBERHKREORE -
mEF BB EERSGE ZOXER NI HAEIRMAMEDE RS KK
WH RS EAKEEKRE EEREEKALIGE IR HK - LTS
fl JE i 12 - A8 8 5% it 1§ A% 8 X B AT

“BT” Build and Transfer, a project model whereby an enterprise undertakes the
financing, design and construction of a facility for the proprietor for certain fees
to be paid during and upon the completion of the construction

BT | EREkBRZR —BEARA —REERMAAAEXEREORE R
ARER HBERAERERERTKBHMAE AN

“CAGR” compound annual growth rate, which is the annual growth rate over a specified
period of time longer than one year

[EA FiER=E] Ec EEFRREZEBRE FNRERHANFERERE
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“COD”

[coD] i<

“pre-trial operation”

[ 538 17 B B b
“TOO”
[TOO/ b

CHAPTER FOUR GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS
¥INE KEWNEAR

Chemical Oxygen Demand, the corresponding mass concentration of oxygen
for the amount of oxidant consumed when strong oxidant is used to deal with a
given water sample and is measured with mg/L. It has different ways according
to the oxidising agent, such as potassium permanganate (expressed as COD,
also known as CODmn) and potassium dichromate (expressed as CODcr)
tEFaE KARELHEEKRKEKMERANELEHHENENEER
B UE2R/FART BREMBELENTE 255 &% =(LLCODER
R+ X 18 /% CODmn) M & #& B 7 7% (LA CODer %k 7R )

a stage in the project construction process as prescribed by the PRC
government in accordance with the Provisions on Municipal Projects Design
Budget Estimate Making, Jian Biao [2011] No. 1) issued by the Ministry of
Housing and Urban-Rural Development where a facility under construction
is tested for its operational functionality and further developed to qualify for
regulatory approvals and enter commercial operation

+ IEﬁ(ﬁ*ﬁfﬁ%fﬂ%ﬂﬁl‘@“*ﬁﬁﬁ%E’J<<m RIERABERREIE) (B
T§[2011]15F)%EEE’UIE BEERBREN AR FLHHERREERE
BNRARTEE-—TRE UEINEEERHERRRE

Transfer-Own-Operate, a project model whereby an enterprise purchases
completed wastewater treatment or water supply facilities from the government
and undertakes the operation of such facilities owned by the enterprise in
the concession period, during which the enterprise can charge service fees
based on the supplied treated wastewater or tap water to cover its costs
of investment, operation and maintenance and obtain reasonable returns
according to the concession agreement entered into by the enterprise and the
government

BR-E-—KE —EBEARL B CENBRNFBECEKNITKE
B KRG URFHPEAEEFAEAORENEE -ERFFFHE
ZEEARBEEABRNATISARLERBERMHEEE REN T KK
BRKWERARTS & - LA B B & E - &8 4RI EE & IR 3R
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CHAPTER FOUR GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS

FNE KHHNAR

“TOT”

[TOT] EC

“utilisation rate”
[F] A =% | &

“wastewater treatment”

[75 7K g 22 | £

Transfer-Operate-Transfer, a project model whereby, pursuant to a concession
agreement entered into by an enterprise and the government, the government
grants to the enterprise the property rights or operation rights of constructed
wastewater treatment or water supply facilities in the concession period,
during which the enterprise can charge service fees based on the supplied
treated wastewater or tap water to cover its costs of investment, operation
and maintenance and obtain reasonable returns while, upon the expiration
of the concession period, the relevant facilities will be transferred back to the
government at nil consideration

BR-gE-BR —BEAEN Bt BECEEBFNIZLNFIFLSE
Bz BNEEERMNSKEBIHEKRBERTHENERE L LEE
HEATCE -ERNTHE ZCETRAEEE BB 5KE A RAKKER
REE ARBERE CERBEEXNARNTNGEELRR MEFTHRE
fEm& - HERERESEERZEEEBA

the actual volume of water supplied, or wastewater treated divided by the
designed volume of water supplied or wastewater treated for a given period
HEBRHBAEREKEITRKERE SR AR HKSITRKERS

use of physical, chemical and biological methods to remove pollutants from
wastewater or to turn pollutants into innoxious substances before discharging it
into a water body or reclaiming it for reuse

REFKEINFARZ -—KEXBREANKEER  WEHERAYE LB
REWERTEERTKPNSRADEAESEDNERESYE
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CHAPTER FIVE SUMMARY OF OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA
FHLE RERMBENEE

The following table sets out our key operating and financial data for the

TR THEXEARMNEIELERHT B

periods or as of the dates indicated: BUE -
SUMMARY OF OPERATING DATA REBEBE
As at 31 December
®12A31H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
2021 £ 2020 2019 F 2018 2017 &
Capacity ('000 m® per day) Eg(FUEKH)
Wastewater treatment 75K R 1B 2,043 1,970 1,830 1,827 1,807
Reclaimed water supply BAEKHRE 233 213 52 52 52
Running water supply B Rk 4 131 131 116 116 64
For the year ended 31 December
HEZE12AMHLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
2021 % 2020 & 20194 2018 4 2017 4
Volume EB(FULKS
('000 m? per period indicated) BT B )
Wastewater treatment 75 K B B 706,078 657,499 622,842 616,844 550,872
Reclaimed water supply BAEKEE 54,422 31,177 11,736 8,825 6,883
Running water supply B R 4t fE 17,116 14,863 14,801 12,957 8,998
For the year ended 31 December
BE12A3MBLLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
2021 4 2020 F 2019 F 2018 FF 2017 F
Utilisation Rate FAE
Wastewater treatment ERN B 96.3% 92.0% 93.7% 92.9% 93.9%
Reclaimed water supply BAEKHE 64.0% 53.4% 61.8% 46.5% 36.3%
Running water supply B Rk 4 e 35.8% 31.9% 35.0% 30.6% 38.5%

RRAHEBKERMERLE 2021 FERE
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CHAPTER FIVE SUMMARY OF OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA
FL1E BRERMBEREE

SUMMARY OF OPERATING RESULTS BY SEGMENT

Wastewater treatment
— Revenue
— Gross profit
— Gross profit margin

Water supply
— Revenue
— Gross profit
— Gross profit margin

Others
— Revenue
— Gross profit
— Gross profit margin

TkER
A
—E 7
—EF =

X it 4
A
—E 7
—ERE

Hit
— A
~E
ik

2021

2021 %
RMB’000
AR#TFT

1,370,283
610,365
44.5%

191,534
49,812
26.0%

755,921
64,605
8.5%

THBEREABRE

For the year ended 31 December
BE12A3MBLEE

2020

2020 4
RMB’000
AREF T

1,276,466
558,256
43.7%

260,986
53,420
20.5%

381,971
67,501
17.7%

2019
20194
RMB’000
ARBTFT

1,213,810
514,145
42.4%

304,857
57,622
18.9%

314,875
66,157
21.0%

2018
20184
RMB’000
ABREFT

1,159,075
480,070
41.4%

115,254
8,372
7.3%

155,458
40,592
26.1%

2017
2017 %
RMB’000
ARBETF T

1,037,163
446,773
43.1%

68,520
4,233
6.2%

118,142
49,484
41.9%
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CHAPTER FIVE SUMMARY OF OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA
FI1E BRERMBEREE

SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF &H&G&EWHmRBE
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 31 December
HZEZ12A3MALEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
2021 5§ 2020 F 2019 F 2018 F 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT

Revenue [N 2,317,738 1,919,423 1,833,542 1,429,787 1,223,825
Operating profit & e F s 528,368 429,524 569,692 469,723 443,317
Profit before tax oA #) 396,693 415,481 438,150 415,221 372,425
Income tax expenses SRC R -85t (57,142) (65,053) (68,072) (65,494) (58,336)
Profit for the year FENE 339,551 350,428 370,078 349,727 314,089
Other comprehensive (loss)/ HitZ&(E1E)

income i 35 (1,219) 13,290 871 3,282 (1,847)
Total comprehensive income EEGREWEARE

for the year 338,332 363,718 370,949 353,009 312,242

SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET EHEERABERME

As at 31 December

W12A31H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
2021 & 20204 20194 20184 2017 &

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETFTT ARETT ARKETT ARKTTT

Assets &E
Total assets BERT 12,067,938 10,496,492 9,576,255 7,442,063 6,024,811
Liabilities & &
Total liabilities BERTE 7,632,127 6,224,065 5,481,834 3,541,142 2,318,610
Equity W
Total equity HxmE 4,435,811 4,272,427 4,094,421 3,900,921 3,706,201
Total equity and liabilities EEZREBEEE 12,067,938 10,496,492 9,576,255 7,442,063 6,024,811
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CHAPTER SIX MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

P 7. S — -

HINE

BEEEBSRESH

A. OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

Despite over two years of COVID-19 pandemic, China’s economy
moved forward steadily. Under the ongoing prevention and control
of pandemic, China’s economy has generally shown a positive
trend of recovery, but under the influence of uncertainties in the
external environment such as the complex and volatile domestic and
international situation, rising geopolitical risks and high global inflation,
downward pressure on China’s economy will remain in the short term.
Despite this, with strong resilience, China’s economy will maintain a
positive trend in the long term. Looking ahead to 2022, the second
year of the 14th Five-Year Plan is expected to become the “second
spring” of China’s economic transformation with the further release of

benefits from system and mechanism reform.

Since the 18th CPC National Congress, China has always attached
great importance to ecological advancement and protection of
ecological environment, put forward a series of new concepts,
ideas and strategies, and made significant progress and achieved
remarkable results in ecological advancement. As China accelerates
the implementation of the ecological advancement construction
strategy and fully carries out ecological and environmental protection,
the environmental protection industry is now in a period of in-depth
reform and adjustment which brings strategic opportunities. Instead
of the extensive development model in the past, the water industry
is entering a new stage of pursuing high-quality development. Since
the 14th Five-Year Plan, water industry received a series of support
from the source to the financial level, thereby effectively promoting
the growth of the industry. During the “14th Five-Year Plan” period,
the market space of the wastewater treatment industry in which the
Company’s main business operates will continue to expand under the
joint stimulation of the rising urbanisation rate, the improvement of
wastewater treatment quality and efficiency, and the comprehensive
water environment management market. In addition, the strengthened
regulation has also resulted in the requirement to optimise and upgrade
the facilities and improve the technical standards and efficiency, thus
providing development opportunities for the industry.

S r 8 -

Al

A, RERIE

MEMARBBRECAMF 2021FPELER
AT - ERBEHEFTEBLCEAT PEREHEER
ERBHBRFERRYS BEANBTEERS
2 oEBURRBRAR 2FBRAKTEFESTITE
IBRENIABEERNZZE T BRAKETTE
WEBRDAFEE BRELEIMER RERTH
EXABEAIGRE - RE2022F L6 # b R E
AMME—-—FBERD [TOR]RANE -—F§
BERRTEECEHENE—&F]-

TARRE BREKLPEEXHERMERR
ERENECEERNEEZEME  RE —FJH
BOMBREMEE LREXHARKDNEERER
0RO o BB E BB A AR SR R AR BAES A9 0 R
HENEERERENZERR RROTEXER
FENRAEZESHEDMBMBEBEH  MKBEE
EEREBRABREASEEZRNMER -8l
MAIRENAR  KBITERFE — RN LEIRE D B
B RTTEMRERBETANIE -T+O
B EWEARET IS KEE BB KK
BRESAAEMBSNARNAT KRR T XM
BHSKEETETSZRANESHEER R
B EENEMMBRETRT REELTRMK
MEBRBANTERL KMBTERRTHEREE -
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CHAPTER SIX MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Company has established a presence along the Yangtze River
and Huai River covering Sichuan, Guizhou, Hunan, Anhui and
Zhejiang provinces, with a proprietary wastewater treatment capacity
of approximately 2.043 million m3/day as at the end of the Reporting
Period. With extensive operation experience accumulated over the
years and intelligent water services empowerment, the Company
has been able to further increase its market share with the support
of existing market. In addition, we enjoy exclusive rights to provide
wastewater treatment services to Kunming and other regions of
China. Leveraging our concession-based business model, technology,
the capability of project implementation, and expansion of service
regions, we have achieved stable income and steady business growth,
which laid a promising foundation for us to consolidate upstream and
downstream industrial chains such as water resources, watershed
management, sludge recycling and utilisation, and develop market
segments such as industrial wastewater treatment.

1. Overview of Wastewater Treatment Industry

Water resources in China are relatively limited. With the acceleration
of urbanisation and industrialisation in China, water pollution and
water shortage have become a serious constraint on the sustainable
development of China’s economy and society, and wastewater
management has become the most important task of water
environment management. In recent years, China has put more
emphasis and support on the environmental protection industry, and
introduced a number of policies related to wastewater treatment
during the “14th Five-Year Plan” period. Driven by China’s continuous
policy support and investment in environmental protection and
wastewater treatment industry, China’s wastewater treatment industry
has experienced continuous steady development. At the same time,
individual wastewater treatment and dark and odorous water treatment
projects will be extended from urban to rural areas. At present, China’s
rural water supply, wastewater treatment and domestic waste disposal
markets remain to be developed. With the realization of comprehensive
poverty alleviation in China and the in-depth implementation of the
national strategy of rural revitalization, integrated urban and rural
water supply, wastewater treatment and domestic waste disposal and
environmental improvement will bring new development opportunities
for the industry.

In addition, as the water service market enters an era of professional
operation, technical improvement and transformation and standardized
operation have become a key focus of future development, and the
focus of business has shifted from focusing on construction instead
of operation to improving quality and efficiency and sustainable
development with increasing emphasis on the operation and
maintenance of sewage networks, sewage collection rates, pollutant
reduction rates and recycled water utilisation, which promotes green
and sustainable development to become future development direction
of the industry and brings market demand for high standard services,
creating both challenges and opportunities.

P 7. -

HI/NE
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CHAPTER SIX MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

A S

ENRE EHESRREDHW

2. Overview of Reclaimed Water Industry

Water scarcity and water pollution are major water security issues
faced by the world. Reclaimed water has become an internationally
recognised “second source of water for cities” because of its stable
quantity, controllable quality and local availability. In January 2021,
the National Development and Reform Commission, together with
nine governmental departments, issued the “Guidance on Promoting
Recycling and Utilisation of Wastewater Resources ([ 7 # # 55 7k
&R A B 5 E Z 8 ))”, which clearly defined the development
objectives of recycling and utilisation of wastewater resources in
China, indicating that recycling and utilisation of wastewater resources
have been elevated to the level of a national action plan. In recent
years, China’s urban wastewater infrastructure has developed rapidly
with continuous increase in wastewater treatment capacity and
continuous improvement in water quality of wastewater treatment
plants, laying a good foundation for the utilisation of recycled water. It
is expected that during the “14th Five-Year Plan” period, the utilisation
of reclaimed water in China will experience faster development. The
planning, construction, operation, maintenance and management of
reclaimed water plants have huge development potential and market
opportunities.

3. Overview of Municipal Water Supply Industry

In recent years, the steady and rapid development of China’s national
economy and the increasing urbanisation have become an important
basis for the continuous development of the water supply industry and
the increasingly strong demand for water, and relevant investment also

showed a steady growth trend.

With the relocation of manufacturing industry to China’s western
provinces and the accelerated urbanisation, the development of an
integrated urban cluster in central Yunnan and the optimisation of
administrative districts, and the accelerated development of urban-rural
integration, the urbanisation rate in Yunnan Province will have more
room for improvement in the future, which will increase the demand
for municipal water supply. Municipal water supply industry will benefit
from the steadily accelerating urbanisation in China and the Chinese

government’s policy supporting the environmental protection industry.

2. BEKTEHRR

KERERMKRESAZERABROHEARNKE
EHEE BEKKEREZE RN EXAEEK
NREOIMEAS KR -2021F1 7 BREFERK
ERBANAPIENE KR EE S KERERN A
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RER BHESKERLMNABLEARBBERITE
FHE8I I F R MBS K E R R AR
5 K B TR BE 1 SR HR 0 )5 K R IR MK B T T 82
BRBAEKNBEETREFNER BT
HIHE RESEKMNAEESINERER -B
ERBEORE BR BELHENEEAFTEARHE
REBNMT G ZER -

3. Wk ITERR

MER REBEBREBENEY 2EBERRREL
KT ERS AR KITETEER BKEX
FEEENEREAR HERECZRFREER

o

BEEREXERPREAMBEANDOEL R TN
F EMAETHAIRRAELEDINT R — 81t
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CHAPTER SIX MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

4. Impact of the COVID-19 Pandemic

The outbreak of COVID-19 that has been spreading around the world
since 2020 has caused extensive impact on the health and economy
of the world. Facing the challenges from the pandemic, the Group
prioritised the continuous provision of reliable and high-quality services
to the customers to guarantee that, during the pandemic, the quality
of wastewater treatment, reclaimed water and running water supply
fulfilled relevant standards, while ensuring the safety and health of
the employees. During the Reporting Period, all wastewater treatment
plants, reclaimed water supply facilities and running water supply
facilities of the Company maintained normal operation, and wastewater
treatment volume increased steadily as compared to the same period
of previous year. During the Reporting Period, the COVID-19 pandemic
did not cause any material and adverse impact on the Group’s
operation, finance or future plan.

In 2021, due to the measures taken to restrict the movement of
personnel and materials as a result of the ongoing COVID-19
pandemic, which indirectly affected the actual progress and
geographical scope of the Company’s investments, the Company’s
investments during the reporting period were mainly concentrated
within the PRC, with the majority in the southwest region.

Moreover, as the main business of the Company is water treatment,
revenue is mainly generated from the local governments. To combat
the pandemic with unremitting effort, the fiscal expenditures of the
local governments are prioritised for pandemic prevention and control
and production resumption, which may have an impact on the timing
of settlement of receivables from local government. With the effective
and ongoing implementation of pandemic prevention and control
measures and the continuous progress made in vaccination, China’s
economy is recovering at a faster pace. In addition, the Company has
established a dedicated receivables management leading team and
department, which is responsible for dedicated management of the
Company’s receivables and formulating individual collection plan for
each receivable item. As such, we are of the view that the pandemic
of COVID-19 will not have a significant and adverse impact on the
Company’s cash flow, production and operation.
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CHAPTER SIX MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

P2, S
5 /N B

EHEEFm RSN

B. DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY AND
PROSPECTS

Looking ahead to 2022, China’s fiscal and monetary policies will have
ample room for adjustment and control. China will continue to introduce
policies that are conducive to economic stability in 2022, with fiscal
expenditure being guaranteed, expenditure progress being accelerated
and new tax and surcharge reduction policies being implemented,
while monetary policy will maintain a reasonable level of liquidity.
These series of policies will strongly reinforce the supporting effect of
macroeconomic policies on economic growth.

The year 2021 is the start of a new journey to fully build a modernized
socialist country and the beginning of the “14th Five-Year Plan”
period. Since the start of the “14th Five-Year Plan” period, with the
implementation of the new environmental protection law, China will
enter a new normal of environmental protection industry with stricter
policies, higher standards and social participation. In the government
work report for 2021, it is mentioned that China will continue to
implement the task of protecting the blue sky, clear water and clean
soil, and complete the phased objectives of pollution control and
prevention. China will continue to implement major projects to protect
and restore the Yangtze River, Yellow River, coastline and other
important ecosystems and strengthen ecological construction. It will
also continue to step up its efforts in ecological management, improve
the capacity of urban sewage collection and industrial wastewater
disposal in industrial parks, and adhere to the concept that lucid waters
and lush mountains are invaluable assets, indicating that the water
industry will continue to improve and develop.
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Under the guidance of key national strategic plans such as the “Yangtze
River Economic Belt”, the 14th Five-Year Plan for the Development of
Urban Wastewater Treatment and Resource Utilization ({“+ 4 f1” 3%
SESKERE R ER/IF HEREMRED), and the “14th Five-Year Plan
and the Outline of Long-Range Objectives Through the Year 2035” of
Yunnan Province, the Company will firmly support the “three critical
missions” of China and the plan of Yunnan Province to become a
leader in ecological civilisation construction, uphold the development
concept of “unitary domination with diversified development” and strive
to improve its abilities in comprehensive management of the ecological
environment. In the future, on top of continuous development in
our existing business market, we will closely follow the direction of
the industry policies and make comprehensive investment in the
upstream and downstream of the industry chain in various sectors
such as watershed management, high-quality reclaimed water supply,
construction of intelligent water plants, sludge resource utilisation,
mine restoration and solid waste treatment and disposal, so as to seize
the market benefits of high-quality development. For development
of investment and financing business, the Company will follow the
changes in economic development and environmental policies, adopt
prudent investment and financing strategies, and make appropriate
and flexible adjustments to ensure that all resources can be utilised to
maximum efficiency. In terms of management of sustainable corporate
development, we will continue to explore our internal growth drivers,
continuously stimulate the potential of the Company in technological
innovation, talent team construction and enhancement of management
quality and efficiency to ensure sustainable and high-quality
development of the Group‘s business. In terms of promoting green
and low-carbon development, the Company will strive to reduce the
average electricity consumption per tonne of water treatment. Chemical
oxygen demand, ammonia nitrogen, total phosphorus and total nitrogen
of effluents from the water purification plants in the main urban area
of Kunming and around the lake were 73%, 95%, 83% and 49% lower
than the emission limits of national Class | Standard A standard,
respectively. The Company actively participates in market-based
electricity trading and prioritises the procurement of clean energy.
In 2021, the Company procured approximately 0.27 billion kWh of
electricity, of which 55% was hydropower, 25% was thermal power and
20% was new energy. We are committed to maximising both economic
and social benefits.
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C. BUSINESS REVIEW

We principally adopt the TOO, TOT and BOT project models, with
a focus on the TOO model. For the year ended 31 December 2021,
our TOO projects contributed to 45.2% of our total revenue. Our TOT
projects contributed to 7.9% of our total revenue and our BOT projects
contributed to 28.7% of our total revenue. We also adopt the BOO and
BT project models for some of our projects.

For the TOO and TOT models, we acquire concessions to operate
existing facilities at agreed prices from the relevant local governments.
For the BOT model, we finance, construct and operate our own
facilities. After the expiration of the relevant concessions, we either
obtained new concessions from or transferred the relevant facilities
back to the relevant local governments, depending on project types.
As of 31 December 2021, we had a total of 49 plants (41 wastewater
treatment plants and 8 running water plants) under concession
agreements, of which 47 plants were in operation and 2 plants were
under construction. Among the 47 plants in operation, 14 were TOO
projects, 22 were TOT projects, 9 were BOT projects and 2 were BOO
projects.

During the Reporting Period, the utilisation rate of our facilities was
maintained at a high level. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
total volume of wastewater treated was approximately 706.1 million m?
with an average facility utilisation rate of approximately 96%.

Wastewater Treatment Projects

As of 31 December 2021, we had a total of 40 wastewater treatment
plants in operation (including 14 in Kunming and 26 in other areas of
China), with a total wastewater treatment capacity of 2.04 million m?
per day. We also had 1 wastewater treatment plant under construction
in Yunnan Province, the PRC. With our technologically advanced
facilities, independently developed patents and strong management
skills, we were able to maintain low costs while providing high quality
wastewater treatment services. During the Reporting Period, the
Company entered into the Supplemental Agreement to the Concession
Contract for the BOT Project of Fujian Xianyou Economic Development
Zone Wastewater Treatment Plant with Fujian Xianyou Economic
Development Zone Management Committee and Xianyou County
Water Services Investment Group Co., Ltd., and planned to make an
investment of RMB34.4 million to carry out the phase | upgrading and
transformation project of the Xianyou Economic Development Zone
Wastewater Treatment Plant. As of 31 December 2021, 96% of our
designed wastewater treatment capacity reached the National Class |
Category A discharge standard.
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In addition, we provided operation management services to 31 facilities
under entrustment with a designed total wastewater treatment capacity
of approximately 0.5 million m® per day. We have been entrusted to
operate and manage rural domestic sewage collection and treatment
facilities in 886 villages, covering 19 towns.

Reclaimed Water Business

For our reclaimed water business, as of 31 December 2021, we had 11
of our wastewater treatment plants producing reclaimed water, with a
total designed daily production capacity of 233,000 m®. Customers of
our reclaimed water include commercial and industrial establishments,
enterprises and public institutions in Kunming. During the Reporting
Period, reclaimed water supply was 54.422 million m3, representing an
increase of approximately 75% compared with 2020.

During the Reporting Period, our reclaimed water supply increased
significantly in line with the increase in demand for urban river
recharge and municipal miscellaneous use. We have wastewater
treatment plants in a number of regions across the country, which lay
a solid foundation for the development of our reclaimed water business
in those regions, and we will continue to promote the development of
our reclaimed water business in accordance with local policies and

market demand and supply conditions.

Running Water Business

For our running water business, as of 31 December 2021, we had
7 running water plants in the PRC, and 1 running water plant under
construction. During the Reporting Period, the supply of running water
increased by approximately 15% as compared to the year of 2020. We
expect that following the urbanisation and the construction of water
supply facilities, the running water business will grow further.

D. MAJOR RISKS

The operational risks facing the Group are mainly capital-intensive
characteristics of the industry, requirements of water quality standards

and other force majeure events.
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Capital-intensive characteristics of the industry

We are engaged in wastewater treatment, reclaimed water supply
and running water supply projects, which typically require significant
initial cash outlays and have long payback periods. On average, the
investment payback periods for our projects range from five to ten
years. If we fail to obtain financing or refinancing for such projects in
the amounts required, we may need to finance these projects from our
internal resources, which may strain our resources for other corporate
purposes. Additionally, we may fail to properly perform our obligations
in respect of these projects as a result of a funding shortage, which
may lead to a reduction in our returns and may even lead to the loss of
our initial capital investments.

We are required to make substantial capital investments during
the initial phases of our projects. These investments are primarily
dependent on the funds we raise in our global offering and bank loans
and corporate bonds to finance. For the year ended 31 December
2021, our total interest-bearing liabilities amounted to RMB6,405.9
million, representing an increase of 29.0% from RMB4,966.9 million in
2020. As of 31 December 2021, our net gearing ratio, calculated as net
debt divided by total capital, was 52.2%.

We expect to continue to utilise bank loans and corporate bonds to
finance a portion of our investments in our projects. The interest rate of
bank loans is mainly affected by the quoted market rate of RMB loans
issued by the National Interbank Funding Center each month. The
increase in the quoted interest rate of RMB loans in the loan market
may increase our total interest expense on RMB borrowings.
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Requirements of water quality standards

Our wastewater treatment, reclaimed water supply and running water
supply facilities are built to treat wastewater and raw water to specified
quality standards. The quality of our treated wastewater and supplied
reclaimed and running water depends on the level of pollution of the
inflow of wastewater into our facilities and normal operation of our
facilities. We are subject to risks of unknown or undiscovered inflow
of wastewater into our equipment that exceeds our treatment capacity
or defects or compatibility problems with our equipment. We cannot
assure that we will always be able to timely discover and repair
malfunctioning equipment or any other problems with our treatment
process or facilities. In these instances, our facilities may not be
able to treat wastewater or raw water in compliance with the relevant
regulatory and contractual standards, which could result in us being
subject to claims from our customers or governmental sanctions, and
could lead to the suspension of our operations pending rectification
as well as reputational damage. In addition, the incoming wastewater
or raw water to be treated by our facilities may contain pollutants
exceeding the types and quantity of pollutants we contemplated during
the design and construction of the facilities which will adversely affect
our operating costs, deterioration of our facilities and effluent quality.
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Force majeure events

Any future occurrence of force majeure events, natural disasters or
outbreaks of pandemics may restrict business in the areas affected
and adversely affect our business and results of operations. These
risks include damage to facilities, equipment and structures caused
by natural disasters such as heavy rainfall, extremely high or low
temperatures and lightning strikes, resulting in interruption of
production operation and damage to facilities and equipment, as well
as the global outbreak of COVID-19. The Company has formulated
contingency plans to respond to unexpected force majeure events and
conducts emergency drills in daily operation to enhance the ability
of the Company and its employees to respond to such events, and
procures relevant materials and conducts safety inspections before
the onset of the rainy season in places where it operates to reduce the
impact of such force majeure events on the Company.

E. FINANCIAL REVIEW

1. Consolidated Results of Operations

Our revenue increased by RMB398.3 million, or 20.8%, to RMB2,317.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2021, from RMB1,919.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2020. Gross profits increased
by RMB45.6 million, or 6.7%, to RMB724.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2021, from RMB679.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2020. During the Reporting Period, revenue from
wastewater treatment services, reclaimed water and running water
supply and other segments accounted for 59%, 8% and 33% of the
total revenue, respectively.
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The following discussion addresses the principal trends that have
affected our results of operations during the Reporting Period. The
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following table sets out our consolidated results of operations for the

periods indicated:
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For the year ended 31 December
HE12AMHALEE

2021 2020

2021 % 2020 F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥Fx ARKFT

Revenue N 2,317,738 1,919,423
Cost of sales & KA (1,592,956) (1,240,246)
Gross profit EH 724,782 679,177
Selling expenses HEER (13,705) (13,703)
Administrative expenses THEA (140,477) (151,365)
Research and development expenses s A (7,299) (7,398)
Net impairment losses on financial assets TREERBEREKXFE (59,593) (26,671)
Other income/(expenses) — net Hib W (FX)F58 28,025 (42,845)
Other losses Huh g8 (3,365) (7,671)
Operating profit PR IbE] 528,368 429,524
Finance income B A 83,705 71,789
Finance costs B 7% 1K AR (213,652) (85,520)
Finance costs — net g K AN —F 58 (129,947) (13,731)
Share of results of associates HENAIEERRDE (1,728) (312)
Profit before tax a0 A 396,693 415,481
Income tax expenses FrEHER (57,142) (85,053)
Profit for the year F£EMNHE 339,551 350,428
Other comprehensive income Hivsr & W= (1,219) 13,290
Total comprehensive income for the year FEFAWERE 338,332 363,718
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Revenue

Our revenue increased by RMB398.3 million, or 20.8%, to RMB2,317.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 from RMB1,919.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020, primarily due to:

Our revenue from wastewater treatment business increased by
RMB93.8 million or 7.3% from RMB1,276.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to RMB1,370.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021. In particular, wastewater treatment
operating income increased by RMB92.5 million, which was
mainly due to the increase in wastewater treatment volume;
the construction income decreased by approximately RMB15.6
million, which was mainly due to the decrease in investment
for existing projects including Zhaotong Central City Second
Sewage Treatment Plant Project and Fanchang County Second
Sewage Treatment Plant Project as compared to 2020; and the
finance income increased by approximately RMB16.9 million.

Our revenue from water supply segment decreased by
RMB69.5 million or 26.6% from RMB261.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to RMB191.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021. In particular, water supply
operating income increased by RMB15.5 million, which was
mainly due to the increase in water supply business volume of
Yunnan Reclaimed Water; the construction income decreased
by approximately RMB85.4 million, which was mainly due
to the decrease in investment for existing projects including
Chenjiaying Ditch Water Environment Comprehensive
Treatment and Ecological Water Replenishment Project Phase
Il, Wuhua Xuning Temple Area Flood Control and Pollution
Treatment and Ecological Water Replenishment Project as
compared to 2020.
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. Our revenue from other segments increased by RMB373.9
million or 97.9% from RMB382.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to RMB755.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2021. The management service income increased
by approximately RMB86.7 million resulting from the increase
in business volume of entrusted management services provided
by the Company in 2021; the construction income increased by
approximately RMB214.2 million resulting from the continuous
construction of projects such as the Kunming Domestic Waste
Sanitary Landfill Construction Project. The thermal power
income increased by approximately RMB55.8 million resulting
from the increase in supply of thermal power by Hongyu
Thermal Power during the year.

b. Cost of sales

Our cost of sales increased by RMB352.8 million, or 28.4%, to
RMB1,593.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2021, from
RMB1,240.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2020. Details are
as follows:

. Our cost of sales for wastewater treatment segment increased
by RMB41.7 million, or 5.8%, to RMB759.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021, from RMB718.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020, which was mainly due to the
increase in wastewater treatment volume during the Reporting
Period.

. Our cost of sales for water supply segment decreased by
RMB65.9 million, or 31.7%, to RMB141.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021, from RMB207.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020, which was mainly due to the
decrease in construction cost of approximately RMB51.4 million
resulting from the decrease in investment for existing projects
including Chenjiaying Ditch Water Environment Comprehensive
Treatment and Ecological Water Replenishment Project Phase
Il, Wuhua Xuning Temple Area Flood Control and Pollution
Treatment and Ecological Water Replenishment Project as
compared to 2020.
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. Our cost of sales for other segments increased by RMB376.8
million, or 119.8%, to RMB691.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, from RMB314.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2020. In particular, the entrusted management costs
increased by approximately RMB44.0 million resulting from
the increase in business volume of entrusted management
services; the construction cost increased by approximately
RMB209.1 million resulting from the continuous construction of
projects such as the Kunming Domestic Waste Sanitary Landfill
Construction Project. In addition, the thermal power cost

increased by approximately RMB58.0 million resulting from the

increase in supply of thermal power by Hongyu Thermal Power
during the year.

C. Gross margin

Our gross profit increased by RMB45.6 million, or 6.7%, to RMB724.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2021, from RMB679.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020, which was mainly due to
the increase in gross profit from wastewater treatment segment of
RMB52.1 million, decrease in gross profit from water supply segment
of RMB3.6 million and decrease in gross profit from other segments of
RMB2.9 million.

Our gross margin decreased by 4.1% from 35.4% for the year ended 31
December 2020 to 31.3% for the year ended 31 December 2021, which
was mainly due to the decrease in gross margin of other segments,
partially offset by the increase in gross margin of wastewater treatment
segment and water supply segment.

< Our gross profit from wastewater treatment segment increased
by RMB52.1 million, or 9.3%, to RMB610.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021, from RMB558.3 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020. Our segment gross margin
increased by 0.8% from 43.7% for the year ended 31 December
2020 to 44.5% for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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CHAPTER SIX MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

. Our gross profit from water supply segment decreased by
RMB3.6 million, or 6.7%, to RMB49.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2021, from RMB53.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2020. Our segment gross margin increased by
5.5% from 20.5% for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
26.0% for the year ended 31 December 2021, which was mainly
due to the decrease in proportion of construction business and
the increase in finance income from the continuous operation
of existing projects.

. Our gross profit from other segments decreased by RMB2.9
million, or 4.3%, to RMB64.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, from RMB67.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2020. Our segment gross margin decreased by
9.2% from 17.7% for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
8.5% for the year ended 31 December 2021, which was mainly
due to the lower gross margin of the thermal power supply
service of Hongyu Thermal Power; and the lower gross margin
of construction service due to the increased investment in the
construction of the Kunming Domestic Waste Sanitary Landfill
Construction Project during the year, resulting in decrease of
overall gross margin.

d. Selling expenses

Our selling expenses amounted to RMB13.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2021, which is approximately the same amount as the
selling expenses for the year ended 31 December 2020.

e. Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses decreased by RMB10.9 million, or 7.2%,
to RMB140.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2021, from
RMB151.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2020, which was
mainly due to the decrease in employees expense.
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f. Research and development expenses

Research and development expenses decreased by RMBO0.1 million, or
1.4%, to RMB7.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2021, from
RMB7.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2020.

g. Net impairment losses on financial assets

Impairment losses on financial assets increased by RMB32.9
million from RMB26.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
to RMB59.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2021, which
was mainly due to the increase in provision for losses that need to
be recognised for trade receivables, concession agreements and
receivables under construction contracts and an impairment loss of
RMB59.6 million was provided for financial assets during the Reporting
Period.

h. Other income/(expenses) — net

Our other income/(expenses) — net changed from other expenses
of RMB42.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to other
income of RMB28.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2021,
representing an increase of RMB70.8 million or 165.4%, which was
mainly due to the decrease in losses incurred from the change in fair
value of RMB105.1 million in 2021 as compared to last year.

i. Other losses

Our other losses decreased to other losses of RMB3.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021, from other losses of RMB7.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020, which was mainly attributable
to the decrease in penalty expense.

J- Operating profit

As a result of the foregoing factors, our operating profit increased
by RMB98.9 million, or 23.0%, to RMB528.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021, from RMB429.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2020. Our operating margins for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020 were 22.8% and 22.4%, respectively.
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CHAPTER SIX MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

k. Finance income

Our finance income increased by RMB11.9 million, or 16.6%, to
RMB83.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2021, from RMB71.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2020, primarily due to an
increase in interest income from borrowings to related parties.

I Finance costs

Our finance costs increased by RMB128.2 million, or 149.9%, to
RMB213.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2021, from
RMB85.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2020, primarily due
to the exchange gain of RMB41.3 million from the foreign currency
borrowings of the Company due to change in foreign exchange in 2021
representing a decrease of RMB76.1 million from last year.

m. Profit before income tax

As a result of the foregoing factors, our profit before income tax
decreased by RMB18.8 million, or 4.5%, to RMB396.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021 from RMB415.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

n. Income tax

We incurred income tax expenses of RMB65.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and RMB57.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2021 at effective tax rates of 15.7% and 14.4%,
respectively. Our effective tax rate remained basically the same as
last year. The effective tax rate was slightly lower than 15% due
to the addition of certain wastewater treatment facilities eligible for
preferential tax treatment and and the fact that certain subsidiaries are
eligible for the preferential 15% corporate income tax rate under the
“Western Development Policy”.
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CHAPTER SIX MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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o. Total comprehensive income

As a result of the foregoing factors, our total comprehensive income
decreased by RMB25.4 million, or 7.0%, to RMB338.3 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021 from RMB363.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

2. Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary uses of cash are for investing in, constructing, operating
and maintaining our wastewater treatment and water supply facilities.
To date, we have funded our investments and operations principally
with bank loans, cash generated from our operations, equity
contributions and issuance of debt instruments.

The following table sets out our cash flows for the years indicated:

k

o. HEEWAEEE

AR Ll RE - BPMEOESE WS8R E £2020
F12A3MBLEEFEMARBKIGITEE TREEE
F2021F12A3MBEFEMARKEIBIFEE T
RiEAARB254H58THT7.0% -

2. RBEEREFER
BEMNBRSTEZARKRE ER KEREERM
BSKEEREKRE 258 HMANKER
BREMBESCIEBBRITER KEELEMNR
T BRBHERBETEHTSS-

TREINRMRAREENRESRE

For the year ended 31 December
BE12A3MBHLEE

2021 2020
2021 4§ 2020 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBFT
Net cash used in operating activities KEZBFMAMNERE 2 FE (716,957) (613,467)
Net cash from/(used) investing activities BEEEMR (AN
Be B8 230,908 (290,733)
Net cash from financing activities BMEETHAMENRES FE 1,244,124 387,547
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash RekBZEEMF
equivalents # G ) 758,075 (516,653)
Effect of change in foreign exchange rates EXE (L (3,669) (23,606)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of WMEMYVHES R
the Reporting Period BeEEY 749,940 1,290,199
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the WMEBMERHNE S R
Reporting Period HeEEY 1,504,346 749,940

2021 Annual Report Kunming Dianchi Water Treatment Co., Ltd.



CHAPTER SIX MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

a. Net cash used in operating activities

Our net cash used in operating activities primarily consists of cash
received from our clients for services provided by us which net of used
cash in our operations for the purchase of raw materials and other
inventories, payments to suppliers and subcontractors, payments of
expenses such as salaries and benefits, and payments of interest and
income tax.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, our net cash used in operating
activities was RMB717.0 million, primarily comprising cash used in
operations amounting to RMB415.5 million, income tax paid amounting
to RMB62.4 million and interest paid amounting to RMB239.1 million.
The net cash used in operating activities in 2021 increased by
RMB103.5 million compared with that of 2020, primarily due to the
decrease in operating income in 2021 as compared to 2020.

b. Net cash from (used in) investing activities

Our net cash from (used in) investing activities has principally been
used to purchase property, plant and equipment, loans to related
parties and other investments.

As of 31 December 2021, the net cash from investing activities
amounted to RMB230.9 million, primarily comprising the purchase
of property, plant and equipment amounting to RMB57.7 million,
purchase of concessions that constitute intangible assets amounting
to RMB141.8 million, net collection of loans granted to related parties
amounting to RMB350.0 million and interests received amounting to
RMB90.6 million. The net cash used in investing activities changed to
net cash from investing activities in 2021, primarily due to net collection
of loans granted to related parties of RMB350.0 million during the year.

c. Net cash from financing activities

Our net cash from financing activities primarily represents borrowings.

Our net cash generated from financing activities increased from net
inflow of RMB387.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
net inflow of RMB1,244.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2021, which was primarily attributable to an increase in borrowings in
2021 compared with 2020.
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& Working Capital

38 BEELX

The table below presents our current assets and current liabilites as of TR AT REBER MO R EEL TS AE

the dates indicated: B F 5
As at 31 December
w12A31H
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AE#BFT ARBFT
Current assets mMEBEE
Receivables under service concession BHALEEBETH
arrangements & U R 18 5,463 6,562
Inventories rE 16,595 11,759
Amounts due from customers for FBHREPREES R
construction contracts 22,785 26,954
Financial assets at amortised cost KA ENSREE 294,000 300,000
Trade and other receivables & UK BR B % H b fE UK 3R 2,884,020 2,391,034
Cash and bank balances Be RRITER 1,504,346 749,940
Restricted funds ZREE S 49,650 7,990
Total current assets REBEEMAE 4,776,859 3,494,239
Current liabilities mBAaE
Trade and other payables FE A BR 30 % H th JE 5T K 678,982 699,096
Tax payables FE A B IR 97,494 96,091
Borrowings f& & 4,212,914 1,884,963
Lease liabilities HEB®E - 1,168
Contract liabilities cRAaE 7,505 45,493
Financial liabilities at fair value through BEAREBEFABZN S
profit or loss af& 110,450 84,613
Total current liabilities nBAKERE 5,107,345 2,811,424
Net current (liabilities) assets nB(EBEEFE (330,486) 682,815

We recorded net current liabilities of RMB330.5 million as of 31 202112 431 H Kk2020F12A31H - # M5
December 2021 and net current assets of RMB682.8 million as of 31 MBI EEFEARKI0558E T LB & EFH
December 2020. The decrease in our net current assets was mainly A RK#6828BE Bt - mBEEFHERLIETEZAR
attributable to the increase in secured short-term borrowings. ERO GG KM
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CHAPTER SIX MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

a. Receivables under service concession arrangements

Our receivables under service concession arrangements refer to the
outstanding receivables arising from our construction services (for
BOT projects) or acquisition considerations (for TOT projects), Under
our BOT and TOT agreements, the amounts of receivables under
service concession arrangements will be settled by tariff payments to
be received during the operation phases of our BOT and TOT projects
(adjusted by operation services and finance income). The portion of the
receivables under service concession arrangements due within twelve
months from a particular balance sheet date are classified as current
assets as at that balance sheet date and the remainder is classified as
non-current assets.

Our receivables under service concession arrangements increased by
RMB310.6 million or 12.8% from RMB2,427.2 million on 31 December
2020 to RMB2,737.8 million on 31 December 2021, primarily because
our receivables under service concession arrangements that were
classified as non-current assets increased by RMB311.8 million or
12.9% year-on-year from 2020 to 2021. The increase was mainly due
to the recognition of receivables of RMB53.2 million based on the
construction progress of the Project of Comprehensive Improvement
of Water Environment and Ecological Recharge with Reclaimed Water
for Dongda River — Zhong River in Jinning District; recognition of
receivables of RMB46.5 million based on the construction progress of
the Zhaotong Central City Second Sewage Treatment Plant Project;
and recognition of receivables of RMB191.9 million based on the
construction progress of the Project of Comprehensive Improvement
of Water Environment and Ecological Recharge with Reclaimed Water
for Ejie River in Jinning District, the Project of Capacity Expansion of
Reclaimed Water Treatment Station and Supporting Pipeline Network
in Main Urban Areas of Kunming and other existing projects.

b. Inventories

Our total inventory balance increased by RMB4.8 million, or 40.7%,
to RMB16.6 million as of 31 December 2021 from RMB11.8 million
as of 31 December 2020, which was mainly due to the fact that coal
increased by RMB6.1 million, or 469.2%, to RMB7.4 million as of 31
December 2021 from RMB1.3 million as of 31 December 2020.
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Our inventory turnover days decreased from 5.1 days on 31 December
2020 to 3.2 days on 31 December 2021 (calculated as the average
inventories for the relevant year divided by the cost of sales recognised
for the relevant year, multiplied by 365 days. The arithmetic mean of
the opening and closing balances of inventories is used for the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2021).

C. Amounts due from customers for construction contracts

The portion of amounts due from customers for construction contracts
due within twelve months from a particular balance sheet date are
classified as current assets as at that balance sheet date and the
remainder is classified as non-current assets.

Our total amounts due from customers for construction contracts
decreased by RMB57.2 million, or 8.9%, to RMB582.5 million as of
31 December 2021 from RMB639.7 million as of 31 December 2020,
primarily due to the decreased investment in construction for projects
such as the Urban Construction Demonstration Project of Improvement
of Dark and Odorous Water in Urban Area of Zhaotong and the
Environmental Protection Project in Haitou Village, Qingshuihai
Conservation Area, Xundian County as compared to 2020 as well as
the normal operation of existing construction projects.

d. Trade and other receivables

Our trade and other receivables primarily consist of (i) trade
receivables from local governments, related parties and third parties;
(ii) other receivables from related parties, third parties and local
governments; and (iii) prepayments. Our trade receivables are amounts
due from customers for operation services provided to the customers
in TOO, TOT and BOT projects. Our other receivables primarily consist
of loans granted to and interest receivable from related parties, and
VAT refund yet to be received. Our prepayments primarily consist of
prepaid construction payables and prepayment for goods.

BN EERESE X H2020512 A31H 851 KR
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The following table shows the breakdown of our consolidated trade T & # %I R A7 /R B H1 3 FI #0 & 6F /8 W BR 3¢ & H

and other receivables as of the dates indicated: JE U 5K PR 48 -
As at 31 December
m12A31H
2021 2020
2021 4§ 2020 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#BFT AR For
Trade receivables: FE W BR 5K :
— Third parties -E=h 107,999 83,918
— Related parties — A 277,462 85,983
— Local government —Hb 5 BUS 1,381,406 990,790
— Loss allowance —EERE (56,898) (35,312)
Trade receivables - net EUWERR—FHE 1,709,969 1,125,379
Other receivables: H fth B FK
— Third parties - =il 149,949 128,176
— Related parties — BT 865,438 1,029,152
— Local government — i 75 B 53,891 53,319
— Loss allowance — BB RHE (7,447) (5,533)
Other receivables — net HttEWH-FH 1,061,831 1,205,114
Prepayments: TR
— Others —H 112,224 60,545
— Impairment loss —EEME (4) (4)
Prepayments — net ERH-FHE 112,220 60,541
Trade and other receivables — net ERRAREMERR-FHE 2,884,020 2,391,034
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Our net trade and other receivables increased by RMB493.0 million,
or 20.6%, to RMB2,884.0 million as of 31 December 2021 from
RMB2,391.0 million as of 31 December 2020, reflecting in (i) an
increase in trade receivables due from local government by RMB390.6
million, or 39.4%, to RMB1,381.4 million as of 31 December 2021
from RMB990.8 million as of 31 December 2020; (ii) an increase in
amounts due from related parties by RMB191.5 million, or 222.7%, to
RMB277.5 million as of 31 December 2021 from RMB86.0 million as
of 31 December 2020; (iii) a decrease in amounts due from other third
parties by RMB163.8 million, or 15.9%, to RMB865.4 million as of 31
December 2021 from RMB1,029.2 million as of 31 December 2020,
mainly attributable to the decrease in net entrusted loans of RMB350.0
million for the year; and (iv) increase in total prepayment of RMB51.7
million in 2021.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables of our Group is shown as
follows:

P9 B FE UCBR FR & E M FE U 3RS #E 2020 12 A
3ITEM ARK2391.08 B xig A R#493.08
B T 20.6% E2021F12 A318 8 A R #2,884.0
BE T AN R R EG)FE U T BT 8RR
BF X 2020412 318 A R #990.8 5 & T 1% N
A R #3906H & 7T 5039.4% £ 202112 A31H
AR®EA1,381.4 8 Bt (i) FE Y B8 B 5 00 FE W 5k 1B
F2020F 12 A31EM AR K8.0EEH TEMAR
19158 B 7T 50222.7%E2021 412 A31H & A
RE2775B & (iNE M EIKEEHHREAR
2020F12 A31EMARE1,0202B B TRV AR
#163.8 8 & T 3 15.9% £2021F 12 A31H W A B
HeeS4E B T EHNAFZHRERFERD
350.0 & & 7T BT 2 ¢ (iv) 2021 4F T8 1% 7 18 48 28 42 40
MARBITEE T -

AEBRKERRERITOT

As at 31 December

®12A31H
2021 2020
20215 2020 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB T ARBFT
— Within one year —1F A 1,238,288 971,116
— Over one year and within two years —1E2F 467,025 175,053
— Over two years —HBR2F 61,554 14,522
1,766,867 1,160,691
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(a) Ageing analysis of gross trade receivables at the respective  (a) REEEABERD BREHEEENEK
balance sheet dates, based on the invoice dates, is as follows: IRRBRBEZERRD AT

As at 31 December

®w12A31H
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFIT AR T T
— Within one year —1FE LA 1,238,288 971,116
— Over one year and within two years —1E24F 467,025 175,053
— Over two years —HBi@E2F 61,554 14,522
1,766,867 1,160,691

The Group does not hold any collateral as security over these debtors.  ZAE B W EiF HEMER RIER/ER -

The following table sets out our receivable turnover days for the T 2% & 71 5 AT 7= B R B 11 49 FE Y 5k 1B 8 88 K 2
periods indicated:

As at 31 December

®m12HA31H
2021 2020
2021 4§ 2020 F
Days Days
x X
Trade receivable turnover days FE U BR ROR 8 R O 223.3 199.5
Trade and other receivable turnover days @ FE U5 AR 3R B H M E R 415.4 440.1

BB X
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Notes:

(1) Calculated as the average net trade receivables for the relevant period
divided by the revenue for the relevant period and multiplied by 365
days. The arithmetic mean of the opening and closing balances of trade
receivables is used for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021.

(2) Calculated as the average net trade and other receivables for the
relevant period divided by the revenue for the relevant period and
multiplied by 365 days. The arithmetic mean of the opening and closing
balances of trade and other receivables is used for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2021.

e. Trade and other payables/Contract liabilities
Trade and other payables

Our trade and other payables primarily consist of trade payables,
other payables, staff salaries and welfare payables, advance from
customers, payables on acquisition of property, plant and equipment,
payables on acquisition of land use rights from related parties, interest
payables, and accrued taxes other than income tax.

The following table shows the breakdown of our trade and other
payables as of the dates indicated:

B it

(1) REBTFEIFHRRERFERAGBAFEEEA
3k LA365K 5t & o H 22020 F 2021412 A 31
ALtFERARBKERANESRESHNEHRF
#H1E -

2) 2A B F BT R R R R E e U O EE R A
ERAER WA B RIA3BSKEE - 3 £2020F &
2021F12A31B L FEH A EWER R R E i 8
WHREB R RERNERFEHE-

e. EfEFRAEMEMS SFHEE

JE I R 50 1 AL b JE 15 34

BAMENERREMENREIZBERMER
HthER R EBRNBIITEMERN BEhHE B
ETHE ITHEIXBOENR REBIBEL
Ho R PR ORE RO BT AR A R B R BRFTS B AN A
AR

TREII AR B P E A AR E T
R

As at 31 December

m12A31H
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#FT ARBFT
Trade payables FE 1 BR 3K 317,188 327,203
Other payables H e 3 183,428 148,067
Consideration payable for acquisition of BETRAAIRINHNHEE
subsidiaries 34,150 53,057
Staff salaries and welfare payables FE T B T T & A 4@ A 42,898 42,543
Payables on acquisition of property, BETHE IHE
plant and equipment R R 17,829 48,566
Payables on acquisition of land use rights MEKSEE T EREN
from related parties FE 1 3K 58,194 58,194
Interest payables JE A~ 7 2 7,537 5,929
Accrued taxes other than income tax % AT 15 B0 5 B9 JRE 5T A 3R 17,758 15,537
678,982 699,096
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& [ A &

As at 31 December

®12A31H
2021 2020
20214 2020 %
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFT
Contract liabilities aRAE
— local government — b 75 BT - 30,793
— third parties -E=5 7,505 14,700
7,505 45,493

Our trade and other payables decreased by RMB20.1 million, or 2.9%,
to RMB679.0 million as of 31 December 2021 from RMB699.1 million
as of 31 December 2020, which was mainly due to the trade payables

decreased in 2021.

On each balance sheet date, the ageing analysis of the total trade

payables based on sales invoices is as follows:

M E FE 3 0R 3R R H Atb FE S ZX 20206 12 A 31 B
AR B699.18 8 L D AR ¥20182.9%=
2021 F12 A3THMWARKG79.08 B L  FEZHAA
2021 4F JE 1~ BR R 4> »

NREEERBRA REBEHEEXZNEMNERE
BM2BREDITOT

As at 31 December

®12A31H
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AR For
— Within one year —1F A 198,579 214,562
— Over one year and within two years —1&82% 37,523 100,354
— Over two years —HBi@E2F 81,086 12,287
317,188 327,203
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As at 31 December 2020 and 2021, all trade and other payables of
the Group were not required to pay interests, and their fair values
approximated their carrying amounts due to their short maturities.

The following table sets out our payable turnover days for the periods

M 20204 2021128318 NEB AT A B
FEEMENREIEFTEIAANE W E - EFEX
FHEMENRERACHRNIG EAnEERELE
BREEEMRL -

TREINARARRMOENKRBEERE:

indicated:
As at 31 December
W12A31H
2021 2020
2021 & 2020
Days Days
x X
Trade and other payables turnover days FE A BR 3% H Ath JE 5T K 157.9 175.0
BERXHO
Trade payables turnover days @ EREFBEXH? 138.3 119.0
Notes: Hfa -
(1) Calculated as the average trade and other payables for the relevant 1) BEBEMIEYHENERREMENZBRIAEG S

period divided by cost of sales for the relevant period and multiplied by
365 days. The arithmetic mean of the opening and closing balances of
trade and other payables is used for the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2021.

(2) Calculated as the balance of trade payables at the end of the relevant
period divided by total purchase of materials for such period and
multiplied by 365 days for the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2021.

EREHE KA B EIA365 KEHE - H E2020 £ &
2021 F12 AMBLEFERAEMER R EME
MRV R RERNERFEHE-

) 1% A8 B8 F 8 K FE 15 BR 5K B 58 BR LA A BE A R M RHER
B 48 %8 5 R LA 22020 F K 2021 F£12 A31 H 1t
FE365 Kt HE -
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Our trade payables turnover days increased by 19.3 days in 2021 as

compared with 2020, mainly due to the increase in trade payables as

at the end of relevant year.

The directors of the Company confirm that up to 31 December 2021,

there was no material default in payment of trade payables.

4. Indebtedness

a. Borrowings

All of our borrowings are denominated in RMB, HKD or USD and

some are secured by our property, plant and equipment and some are

secured by corporate guarantee issued by the Company. The following

table shows our borrowings as of the dates indicated:

P 7. -

HI/NE

CHAPTER SIX MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBFm RSN

AP A FE S BR BXOB B X 8702021 FF #2020 F 3 0
193K T EMRABFRREMNBRRE M-

ARABEERR HE2021F12A831H © E B

RN EERRERED -

4. H1E
a. & 7

BAPWERIAARE BT ETdE B E
RABPOTBE BELREEERER FHha R
ARABHORBARFER TRAH PR B HHK

fPIEy 18 3K

As at 31 December

m12A31H

2021 2020
2021 % 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE#FT ARBFT

Non-current portion 3E i B &R 0
Unsecured long-term borrowings FEROHEHER 1,492,600 850,000
Secured long-term borrowings ERORBER 700,423 2,194,263
Corporate bonds NECIREE= - 37,703
Total non-current borrowings ERBBEREE 2,193,023 3,081,966

Current portion B

Unsecured short-term borrowings RAERDEHE K 2,129,226 1,390,000
Secured short-term borrowings ERHOEHER 2,044,877 494,963
Corporate bonds NEIREE - 38,811 =
Total current borrowings mMEBERAER 4,212,914 1,884,963
Total borrowings & B 6,405,937 4,966,929

RRAEMKBERGAERLA
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The weighted average effective interest rates at each balance sheet
date are as follows:

I0HE T35 H BRI K

Weighted average effective interest rates

BEEERBERAMONEFHERNEMNT

As at 31 December

W12A31H
2021 2020
20214 2020 %
5.34% 5.89%

As of 31 December 2020 and 2021, our total borrowings amounted to
RMB4,966.9 million and RMB6,405.9 million, respectively, mainly due
to the fact that to meet the relatively significant capital requirements for
project construction, the Company increased the bank borrowings of
approximately RMB1,439.0 million this year. Among our indebtedness,
borrowings amounting to RMB363.9 million and RMB561.5 million as
of 31 December 2020 and 2021, respectively, were secured by our
property, plant and equipment. In addition to the above borrowings,
our total borrowings also include corporate bonds of approximately
RMB700.0 million we issued on 25 December 2015 in the PRC for
a term of seven years with an annual interest rate at 4.35%. At the
end of the fifth year, the Company may adjust the interest rates for
the remaining two years. In the event that investors disagree with the
adjustment made to the interest rates, they may choose to demand an
early redemption of outstanding corporate bonds.

In 2020, the Company has repurchased corporate bonds with a
nominal value of RMB660.0 million, and reduced the coupon rate of the
bonds to 4.15%, which will remain unchanged in the sixth and seventh
years of lifetime (from 25 December 2020 to 24 December 2022).

As of 31 December 2021,
repayment of our borrowings, and no bank had withdrawn any of the

there was no delay or default in the

banking facilities previously extended to us or had demanded any early
repayment.

As of 31 December 2021, we were not in breach of any covenants in
our loan agreements. Given our ability to access new bank borrowings
and our strong credit profile, we believe we will not be subject to any
risk of potential withdrawal of banking facilities or early repayment of
outstanding loans. As of 31 December 2021, we had not received any
requests for early repayment of the principal or interests under any of
our loan agreements.

M 20204 K% 202112 A318 > R PAMEREEH
Al ABANREA966.95 BErk ARK6,405.98 & T
FTEHRARANEEREREBRANES
AU AFEMTIRTEROBARK1,430.08 8
JL o & % - B £20204F 20214128311
WERARBIIIEETRARKSBISEE T
UABE - TREEEEERR - R EREBRIN B
MEEREBBIIBERMN2015F 12258 £ F
BEETSEOBARKETIN0EETHRAAES
/H\HWEJ‘%7¢~¢%U>‘E%435%O\%siﬂi'zﬁ@

T FE K

TT.ﬂ%ﬁ%TﬁﬁiE’ﬁ" WEREETRAEE A
P 1F 3 B BEERR ﬁ“@ﬁfﬂa}&ﬁ’]@ﬁ?
855 e

B2020F - AR RIERBEEEAARK660.05 &
THARESR A TABSFZEHN X H4.15% -
THEGFEHNFEF = F7H(2020F12A250 =
202212 A24 R)E F % o

BHE2021F12A31R HMEEERLELRE

RAIERKELD FTERITHRE AR TFHRMNE
ARITHENRIRAIBZREEBR -

BEE2021F12AMB HMEYBERERBENR

MEMZH AR BEMEENEMRITESE
R BAEERG AUBRMRRALEEERITRE

BEsIRATEE R KB ERR - 8 £2021F12
A31B TEKINTMRAMEERMERDFEM
BASHFEMBK-
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The table below sets out the maturity profiles of our borrowings as of
the dates indicated:

FRE EERERFSWESH

TREIHATEHARMEROIHBER

As at 31 December

®m12H31H
2021 2020
2021 4§ 2020 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®Frx AREBFT
On demand or within 1 year BN EA 1 F LAY 4,212,914 1,883,854
Between 1 and 2 years 1524 1,020,349 2,431,242
Between 2 and 5 years 2FE5F 883,544 626,633
Later than 5 years 5F A F 289,130 25,200
6,405,937 4,966,929

As of 31 December 2020 and 2021, our net gearing ratios were 49.6%
and 52.2%, respectively. Our net gearing ratios as at 31 December
2021 increased as compared with 31 December 2020 primarily due to
an increase in closing balance of borrowings by RMB1,439.0 million in
2021.

Except as disclosed above, as of the 31 December 2021, we did not
have any loan capital issued and outstanding or agreed to be issued,
bank overdrafts, loans or other similar indebtedness, liabilities under
acceptances or acceptable credits, debentures, mortgages, charges,
hire purchases commitments, guarantees or other material contingent
liabilities.

MR20204F K 2021 F12A31B RPN EFEEEE
Lt & 5 5l 549.6% £ 52.2% ° 18 8 7 & = 2020 F 12
A31A HMEZ2021F12A831BNFEEAR
b SR 80 B9 = B R A 2 2021 4 3R HI R A% 28 18 0
ARH1,4390F8 T -

B X AT EEN B E2021F12A4318 - & M
VTEEAEZETRHAEEXRBEBETNEESR
ARTEX BERIEMBUER RELEBEEX
AEIERE EREE BB EW MEBRE £
RELEMBEANIEEE -
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b. Commitments b. R E
(a) Capital commitments (a) BRI A&GE

Capital expenditures contracted for at each balance sheet date, butnot WEEEBEBEBXAHETNENAEENE KNE

yet incurred are as follows: AT
As at 31 December
®12A31H

2021 2020
20214 2020 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBTFT
Property, plant and equipment THE ITBEEE 317,311 54,099
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(b) Concession projects and construction projects contracted at  (b) REZEBEMEZRHABZFLHE KR ELB K
each balance sheet date, but not yet incurred are as follows: FFIEE KERIFELH LT -

As at 31 December

m12A31H
2021 2020
2021 4§ 2020 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#BFT AREBFT
Concession projects and construction projects HHEERERXREE 1,288,760 1,521,290

c. Capital expenditure c. -y

Our capital expenditure mainly comprises purchases of land use rights, KMHWEAM X T ERHEBEE LI HERAE T8
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. Our capital ZE ° WFE k& E k& & E o # £2020 F 2021
expenses were RMB376.4 million and RMB59.1 million for the years 12 A31 BIEFE HMNELARX DA BAR
ended 31 December 2020 and 2021, respectively. We expect to fund #3764 BB TR AR¥E91 BE T - HMAHE
our contractual commitments and capital expenditures principally ZBBRMLLEETHELANR S FR BRME
through net cash generated from our operating activities, proceeds B KRH B2 K EFEHNMERIBE RS E MO & [ &
from borrowings and the proceeds we receive from the global offering # M E A X RHEE S -

of H shares.

Our capital expenditure for each of our segments as at the dates R FAFAREMEME MO ERF MO T
indicated below is as follows:

As at 31 December

®12A31H
2021 2020
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Frx ARBFor
Wastewater treatment 75 KR B2 41,492 355,037
Water supply KA 4 3,967 9,435
Others H A 13,671 11,944
Total A&t 59,130 376,416
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Based on our current business plan, we expect to incur capital
expenditure amounting to RMB155.8 million for the year ending 31
December 2022. Our anticipated capital expenditure is subject to
change from time to time based on the reassessment of our business
plan, prevailing market conditions, regulatory environment and outlook
of our future operational results.

5. Off-balance sheet arrangements

Save as disclosed in this report, as of 31 December 2021, we did
not have any outstanding off-balance sheet guarantees, commodity
forward contracts or other off-balance sheet arrangements. We do not
engage in trading activities involving non-exchange traded contracts.
The Group’s policy does not participate in and invest in any financial
products that are speculative and/or have significant risks. In the
course of our normal business, we do not enter into transactions
involving, or otherwise form relationships with, unconsolidated
entities or financial partnerships that are established for the purpose
of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements or other contractually
narrow or limited purposes.

6. Initial public offering and use of proceeds from initial

public offering

The H shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on 6
April 2017 and the Company issued 339,430,000 H shares of par value
of RMB1.00 per share with the Offer Price of HK$3.91 per H share.
The total issuance size (before deducting the expenses) amounted to
approximately HK$1,327,171,300. Following the Listing of H shares of
the Company, a total of 593,000 H shares were over-allocated. After
deducting (i) the net proceeds from the sale of Sale Shares by the
Selling Shareholders in the Global Offering; and (ii) the underwriting
commissions and other expenses relating to the Global Offering, the
Company received net cash proceeds of RMB1,072.3 million from the
Global Offering.

BERMOEMNEBTE BMHAEHERER
2022F12A3MBILFEEAEA AR AR 155.8
BEL BMAMNBHEAHEITERERMER
B BRI EEERBRARKEEERZEN
BETEHEZL-

5. EEEBERILH

BrAR SRS BT EE B SN FR2021F12A31H8 - B
WEINAEENEEABRIER BoEH
AN EMEEABRIINTE BMABARESS
FERSGEBECGHNNRSEY AEBEZ2HER
FT2ERTRERTANEBEREER KBEEX
ERzeMERE - REMOLLEBREH  HME
HEHEAAHERIUII I UNTMAIRNEEEY
BE REAREEEABRITHEXAEME
WEEXBERENMBEYNMBEEHBERIT LR
%o

6. BERPAPRABEREXRPHBEMSREHR

ANQBHRR2017F4 6 A EB R £ I LA
5 % 3.91%8 JT & {8 1§ 3 1T 4N 2 §]339,430,000 f% &
BRTEE A RB1.007T HIHAR - /TR EBEONKRFE X A
A #91,327,171,30078 7L - A QR AHR E W& - & #
593,000k HAX #E B RE AL 2 - MR ()2 R BEE
ERBRRLEREROGHOABREFE: k()2
HEEHAAHAESREMBAIE A2 A KE
MERBEMBERERESFEAARK1,07238

= —

& JC °
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As of 31 December 2021, approximately RMB927.4 million, accounting
for 86.5% of RMB1,072.3 million of net proceeds from the Initial
Public Offering, has been used in accordance with the use as stated
in the paragraph headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the  f% i B8 & & & & &t 8] & BT 13 X

Prospectus. The use of proceeds is as follows:

Business strategies as stated in the

B ZE2021F12A318 ' 2B EMEREIR 2 F
BEARB10723EBETHFHARKE2745 8B t(h
BRARMIEERSRIEFENS6.5%)C K IERBA

BAZ— R A
ZER - BEEEcRBERAT:
Actual use of

net proceeds  Actual use of

fromthe  net proceeds

Percentage Planned Initial Public from the

of total net use of net Unused net Offering  Initial Public

proceeds proceeds proceeds forthe  Offering from
from the from the from the period from the Listing Unused net
Initial Public  Initial Public Initial Public 1 January Date to the proceeds
Offering (as ~ Offering (as Offering as 2021to 31 period ended from the
setoutinthe setoutinthe  at1January December 31 December Initial Public
Prospectus)  Prospectus) 2021 2021 2021 Offering

B20215 ALtz

1R1RE AEZ

UES B FNNE 20215

BEROR R ®2021% 12R318 12R318
BERE FEHE 1818 LHE  LHEER HREA

BAlt BEGE HADREX BRAR
(BRER REER AFARERS BERBRRE

NARE BERAR
FERE REMG

Prospectus ARAVERENERRE HEE)  RRAEE) EFERE FEHEEXY FREBXE  EXEERE
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
ARBEEL ARKEET AREBET AREBEET ARKEBETR
Investments in BOT/BOO wastewater treatment BOT/BOO 5 7k 52 2 i )t 35% 375.3 517 - 3176 577
and running water supply projects BERKEEERNRE
To acquire TOT/TOO wastewater treatment Y 8 TOT/TOO 5 7K &£ 2 [t |2 35% 375.3 85.6 S 289.7 85.6
plants and running water supply projects BRKEEER
Repayment of bank borrowings BEBIER 20% 2145 16 - 2129 16
To supplement working capital and for general HZE£EZ S RIE—HRAARE 10% 107.2 = = 107.2 =
corporate purposes
Effect of foreign exchange EigE 6.6
Effect of interest income FEMAZE 0.4
Total &5t 100% 1,072.3 1449 - 927.4 151.9
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As of 31 December 2021, the unused net proceeds from the Initial
Public Offering for each of the business strategies as stated in the
above table have been placed as deposits in licensed banks of
the PRC which will be used in accordance with the progress of the
Company’s investment projects. Affected by the COVID-19 pandemic,
the original progress of utilisation was slight delayed, and is expected
to be used up by June 2023. The business objectives, future plans and
planned use of the proceeds as stated in the Prospectus were based
on the best estimation and assumptions of future market conditions
and industry developments made by the Company at the time of
preparing the Prospectus, while the proceeds from the Initial Public
Offering were used in accordance with the business of the Group and
the actual development of the relevant industry.

The net proceeds from the Initial Public Offering were used and
expected to be used according to the intentions previously disclosed
in the Prospectus. As of 31 December 2021, there was no material
change in the use of proceeds of the Company.

7. Exchange rate risk and management

The Group still retains some foreign currency funds, mainly Hong
Kong dollars and US dollars, with principals of USD180,198,000
and HKD812,000,000 respectively. Exchange rate fluctuations have
a certain impact on the retention of foreign currency funds and the
return of principal and interest on borrowings. The Group entered into
a confirmation of RMB foreign exchange currency swap transactions
with financial institution to fix the exchange rate at the time of loan
repayment and interest payment, which was used to hedge the risk
of foreign exchange fluctuations when repaying foreign currency
borrowings and foreign currency interest. Details are as follows:

The financial institution pays floating interest on swap agreements
and the fixed interest payer is the Group. Before the Group pays
each instalment of the foreign currency principal and interest, the
financial institution will pay the equivalent currency into the Group’s
account. The Group can use the foreign currency to pay the principal
and interest. At the same time, when the Group pays RMB to the
financial institution, the interest rate is fixed. The nominal principal for
calculating the interest is calculated by multiplying the principal in the
loan agreement by the fixed exchange rate locked by the confirmation
of swap transactions, actually using a fixed cost in exchange for the
foreign currency to be paid and turning unknown risks of exchange
rate changes into fixed interest expense costs. For the year of
2021, loss on change in fair value of such swap transactions was
RMB25,837,000 and exchange gain from foreign currency borrowings
was RMB24,245,000.

HE2021F12A31M8 LR S HEBKKED
MABRAEAAHRBEEMBSERBFECELART
REBRRFREBEET TBERAARKREE
EMEEFER AZIFTHALBEE B2AR
51 By {E FAOBF R RS N KE O I FE 5T £ 202366 A Z Bl
FATRE BRAVPEMAEBBE IR KRR E X
FTBFRERSAENDBREBEARARNEEBRFER
EEHEREMBERALTESERET U IMH
AR BREMABE 8 X ARESE S REIRE
AEENEBREBTENERERM FUER -
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CHAPTER SIX

8. Employees and remuneration policies
Relationship with Employees

For details of the employees and remuneration policies during the
Reporting Period, please refer to “Report of the Board of Directors — A.
Business Review — 7. Relationship with Employees”.

9. Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

10. Material charges on assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s secured bank and other
borrowings are secured by:

(i) certain wastewater treatment and water supply concession
rights (comprising operating concessions and receivables
under service concession arrangements) which are under the
management of the Group pursuant to the relevant service
concession agreements signed with the grantors;

(i) certain equipment of the Group’s wastewater treatment
facilities.
11. Major investment and acquisition

On 11 September 2020, the Company (as the asset entrustor) entered
into an asset management agreement with Bosera Capital (as the
asset manager) and China Merchants Bank (as the asset entrustee)
in relation to the investment and management of the entrusted assets.
Pursuant to the agreement, the Company agreed to entrust an amount
of RMB300 million as the entrusted assets for investment in the credits
of accounts receivable held by Kunming Agricultural Development
Investment Co., Ltd. (“KADI”). KADI is a state-owned company
owned as to approximately 90% by the Kunming SASAC and is not
a connected person as defined in the Listing Rules. The Company
invested RMB300 million in the asset management plan. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 11 September
2020.

During the Reporting Period, the above asset management agreement
has expired, and the Company has recovered all the entrusted amount
and the investment income derived therefrom pursuant to the contract

terms.
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On 29 September 2021, the Company (as the asset entrustor) entered
into the Mutual Trust No. 5 Asset Management Agreement with Bosera
Capital (as the asset manager) and China Merchants Bank (as the
asset entrustee) in relation to the investment and management of the
entrusted assets. Pursuant to the agreement, the Company agreed
to entrust an amount of RMB300 million as the entrusted assets for
investment in the credits of accounts receivable held by KADI for a
term of 3 months. The Company invested RMB300 million in the asset
management plan. For details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 29 September 2021.

On 31 December 2021, the Company entered into a supplemental
agreement in relation to the extension of the term of the Mutual Trust
No. 5 Asset Management Agreement with Bosera Capital and China
Merchants Bank, extending the term of the Mutual Trust No. 5 Asset
Management Agreement and the asset management plan thereunder
to 10 April 2022. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 31 December 2021.

As at the end of the Reporting Period, such asset management plan
accounted for approximately 2.4% of the total assets of the Company.

These investments recorded realised gains of approximately RMB21.0
million during the year. By entering into the asset management
agreements in accordance therewith, the Company intends to increase
the rate of return of its cash and cash equivalents which can improve
the Company’s investment income and profit earnings.

The Company’s investments mainly focus on its main business and
relevant environmental protection industries in the upstream and
downstream. On the basis of prioritising the investments in the main
business and related industries, and in accordance with the progress
of project implementation, the Company will manage idle funds, if any,
to improve the efficiency of capital utilisation on the premise of keeping
the risks under control.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had no plans of major
investments or capital and asset acquisition as of 31 December 2021.
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CHAPTER SIX MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

12. Loans to Certain Entities

The Company entered into a entrusted loan contract with Kunming
Bus and Yunnan Branch of Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. (X &
BITRMARRDAEZEMEA HTT) (“Bank of Communications”) on
22 February 2021, pursuant to which the Company entrusted Bank
of Communications to grant a loan of RMB300 million respectively
to Kunming Bus with an annual interest rate of 8.5%. The loan will
become due on 24 February 2022. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 22 February 2021.

The Company entered into two entrusted loan contracts with Kunming
DIG, Bank of Communications and Kunming Guandu Sub-branch of
Bank of China Limited (“Guandu Sub-branch of Bank of China”) on
17 June 2021 and 11 October 2021, respectively, pursuant to which the
Company entrusted Bank of Communications and Guandu Sub-branch
of Bank of China to provide loans of RMB200 million and RMB100
million respectively to Kunming DIG with an annual interest rate of
7.5%. As at the Latest Practicable Date, the loans under these two
entrusted loan contracts have been repaid pursuant to the contracts.
For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
17 June 2021 and 11 October 2021.

The Company entered into an entrusted loan contract with Xindu
Investment and Kunming Panlong Sub-branch of Bank of China Limited
(“Panlong Sub-branch of Bank of China”) on 24 September 2021,
pursuant to which the Company entrusted Panlong Sub-branch of Bank
of China to provide a RMB350 million loan to Xindu Investment with an
annual interest rate of 7.5%. The loan will become due on 28 February
2022. For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 24 September 2021.
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The Company entered into an entrusted loan contract with Kunming
Zhongbei Transportation and Tourism (Group) Company Limited and
Guandu Sub-branch of Bank of China on 25 October 2021, pursuant to
which the Company entrusted Guandu Sub-branch of Bank of China to
provide a RMB80 million loan to Kunming Zhongbei Transportation and
Tourism (Group) Company Limited with an annual interest rate of 8.5%.
The loan has been repaid on 24 November 2021.

According to the knowledge of the Company, Kunming Bus, Kunming
Zhongbei Transportation, Kunming DIG and Xindu Investment are
all controlled or held by Kunming SASAC, and Kunming DIG holds
6.818% equity interest of Xindu Investment and Kunming Bus holds
10% equity interest of Kunming Zhongbei Transportation. Saved as
disclosed above, Kunming Bus, Kunming Zhongbei Transportation,
Xindu Investment and Kunming DIG are not related to each other, and
neither are they the connected persons as defined in the Listing Rules.

On the basis of prioritising the investments in the main business and
related industries, and in accordance with the progress of project
implementation, the Company will manage idle funds, if any, to improve
the efficiency of capital utilisation on the premise of keeping the risks
under control. When selecting counterparties, we will assess the risk
of capital recovery based on the counterparties’ operating conditions
and past cooperation, and will continuously monitor whether there is
any material adverse impact on the counterparties’ operations so that
we can take timely measures to ensure the safety of the Company’s
capital.
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CHAPTER SEVEN PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

FtE

A. EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zeng Feng (% ££), aged 57, joined our Group in August 2021.
Mr. Zeng was appointed as an executive Director and the Chairperson
of the Board on 16 September 2021 and is responsible for strategic
decision making of our Company’s operations. Mr. Zeng is the
chairperson of the Strategy and Investment Decision Committee, and
a member of the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee and the
Nomination Committee of our Company.

From August 1985 to May 1993, Mr. Zeng worked at the Southwest
Aviation Forestry Protection General Station of the Ministry of Forestry
(PR % EB 75 F9 AL Z= 7% MK 42 3h). From May 1993 to January 2006, he
worked at the Administrative Committee of Kunming Hi-tech Industrial
Development Zone (E A S I XM E ZF % E T Z €) and served
as deputy chief officer, chief officer, assistant to director and deputy
director of the finance department and director of accounting and
settlement center, during which he also attended a postgraduate
course in business and economics at the Chinese Academy of Social
Sciences (% B # & &l 2 % ) from December 1996 to November 1998.
From January 2006 to November 2010, he worked at the Management
Committee of Kunming Airport Economic Zone (EBHZE K E R E
Z @) and served as the person in charge and head of the finance
department, deputy director of the management committee, member
of the Party working committee, and vice mayor of the People’s
Government of Guandu District. From November 2010 to August
2021, he worked at Kunming Development Investment Group Co.,
Ltd. (R ERIEE S BB R 2 A)) and served as deputy secretary
of the Party committee and secretary of the disciplinary inspection
committee, chairman of the trade union, general manager, secretary of
the Party committee, director and chairman of the board of directors,
during which he also served as the secretary of the Party committee
and chairman of the board of directors of Kunming Dianchi Investment
from March 2011 to June 2012. He also concurrently served as a
non-executive Director of the Company from January 2011 to June
2018, and has served as a director of Kunming Dianchi Investment
since December 2021.

Mr. Zeng graduated from Yunnan Finance and Trade College (£
B8 28t ) in June 1990, majoring in accounting. He also obtained
the accounting professional and technical qualification certificate in
October 1994.
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CHAPTER SEVEN PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

FLtE EEF - EERSREEEGRE

Mr. Chen Changyong (B & B), aged 52, joined the Group in June
2019 and has been the general manager of the Company since 10 July
2019, responsible for the Company’s operation management. He was
appointed as an executive Director of the Company on 19 June 2020.

Mr. Chen worked in the Land Acquisition Office of the Municipal Land
BB+ &R D) from August
1999 to November 2002 and served as the deputy director of the

and Resources Bureau of Kunming (&

general office of the Municipal Land and Resources Bureau of Kunming
from November 2002 to January 2005. He joined Kunming Dianchi
Investment Co., Ltd. (B B3 A #& & B R & £ 2 7), the controlling
shareholder of the Company, in September 2004 and until March 2016,
he successively served as a member of the party committee, director,
deputy general manager, deputy secretary of the party committee,
secretary of the disciplinary committee and chairman of the labor union
of Kunming Dianchi Investment. He was a director and the secretary
to the party committee of Kunming Drainage System Management Co.,

Ltd. (REABF KB EEEERE
Dianchi Investment) from March 2016 to June 2019. He joined the

= {f /2 A)) (a subsidiary of Kunming
Company in June 2019.

Mr. Chen graduated from the Changchun Institute of Geology, Jilin
Province, China (& & i & £ ) with a bachelor’s degree in July 1992,
majoring in geology and mineral exploration and graduated from the
Changchun Institute of Geology with a master’s degree in July 1995,
majoring in mineral prospecting and exploration. Mr. Chen graduated
from Kunming University of Science and Technology (& B2 T K £)
with a doctorate in July 1999, majoring in mineral prospecting and
exploration in the Department of Territorial Development and Urban
and Rural Architecture. Mr. Chen is also a senior engineer.

Mr. Luo Yun (#Z), aged 43, joined our Group in June 2013 and
was appointed as an executive Director of our Company on 23 June
2016. Mr. Luo has been the deputy general manager of our Company
since January 2015, responsible for supervising our Company’s
investment strategies, market expansion and production safety and
environmental protection. He served as an assistant to the general
manager from June 2013 to January 2015, responsible for assisting
the general manager in the management of our Company’s operation,
development, investment programs and marketing strategies. Mr. Luo
is currently a member of the Strategy and Investment Decision
Committee of our Company.
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CHAPTER SEVEN PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

FLtE EE - EERSRE

Mr. Luo served as a director of coordination department at Kunming
RENEREERRA
7]), a subsidiary of Kunming Dianchi Investment, from June 2008 to

Dianchi Project Management Company (&

June 2009. He also served at Kunming Dianchi Property Development
¥ B R & T 2 &), asubsidiary
of Kunming Dianchi Investment, as the deputy general manager
from June 2009 to June 2013. From June 2012 to 3 November
2016, Mr. Luo served as a director of Kunming Dianxing Property
Development Co., Lid. (R A EE FE b E M % H R & £ 2 &) and
Kunming Dianlong Property Development Co., Ltd. (& F3E 5 5 Hb &=
MEARBEMELQA).

Company Limited (E 8 )& b &

Mr. Luo graduated from Yunnan University (£ X £) in Yunnan
Province, the PRC, majoring in engineering management in January
2007, and obtained a master’s degree in agricultural extension from
Southwest Forestry University (78 # #& 3 X £) in Yunnan Province,
the PRC in January 2013.

B. NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Song Hong (3R 4L), aged 58, joined our Group in June 2016 and
was appointed as a non-executive Director of our Company on 23 June
2016. Ms. Song participates in the development of our business
strategies. She has over 30 years of experience in finance sector.
Ms. Song joined Kunming Dianchi Investment in September 2008.
She served as a director and the chief financial officer of Kunming
Dianchi Investment since June 2012. Ms. Song serves concurrently as
a chairperson of Kunming Diantou Bishuiyuan Water Technology Co.,

Ltd (R AR B KIRKBREER 2 A).

Ms. Song worked at Kunming Tap Water Group Co., Ltd. (£ B8 8 &
KEBABRE TR A from December 1982 to September 2008, and
served as the deputy Director of finance department from December
2005 to September 2008. Ms. Song served as the director of the
financial center of Kunming Dianchi Investment from September 2008
to September 2012.

Ms. Song studied at the Party School of Yunnan Provincial Committee
of the Chinese Communist Party (FEBI X EEEZHMEZE S ER)in
Yunnan Province, the PRC, majoring in economic management from
September 1997 to December 1999.
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CHAPTER SEVEN PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Ms. Ren Na (£ #), aged 41, joined the Group in November 2020
and was appointed as a non-executive Director of the Company on
6 November 2020. Ms. Ren participates in the development of our
business strategies. Ms. Ren has more than 18 years of experience
in the financial field. She currently serves as a director of Yunnan
Medical Investment and Management Group Co., Ltd. (£ 4 & & &
& E 1S BB R A A) and the financial controller of Yunnan Kunhua
Hospital Investment Management Co., Ltd. (EF R £ 2R & & & &
BB A A

Ms. Ren served as the chief accountant of the hydropower station
and the department head of No. 1 water resources machinery plant
of Sinohydro Bureau 5 Co., Ltd. (F Bl K F| /K EE H T2 B) from
July 2002 to April 2008. From April 2008 to May 2009, she worked in
Yunnan Tonghe Technology Development Co., Ltd. (E & i 1 &} 5 3
EBRERLQF

2009 to October 2013, she served as the person in charge of finance

a] ) and was responsible for finance management. From May

of the Lidi branch of Yunnan Lancangjiang Property Management Co.,

Ltd. (EmMEAIMEEE AR AFAEK D A Al). From November
2013 to July 2019, she served as the manager of general management
department of China Southern Power Grid Integrated Energy (Yunnan)
Co,Ltd. (A BB AR (EmM) &R AT A F). She served
as the deputy general manager of financial sharing center of Yunnan
HMAREEREEER D A)
from August 2019 to March 2022. She was appointed as a director of

Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd. (£

Yunnan Medical Investment and Management Group Co., Ltd. (£FE %
ERREEEEEERAA
a supervisor of CTV Yuntou Culture Tourism Industry Investment Co.,
Ltd. (F R EEH/ XL R 2 E £ % & B R 2 7)) since October 2020,
and the financial controller of Yunnan Kunhua Hospital Investment

MEERREAEEREARAAF)since

) in April 2020, and has been serving as

Management Co., Ltd. (£
March 2022.

Ms. Ren graduated from Changchun Institute of Technology (& &
T f2EP%) in July 2002, majoring in computerised accounting; and
graduated from Changchun Institute of Technology in July 2013,
majoring in finance management. Ms. Ren is a senior accountant,
certified public accountant and certified tax agent.
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FLtE EEF - EERSREEEBEE

Ms. Yu Yanbo (£ #% i), aged 51, joined the Group in June 2020
and was appointed as a non-executive Director of the Company on
19 June 2020. Ms. Yu participates in the development of our business
strategies. Ms. Yu has more than 30 years of experience in the
financial field. She currently serves as supervisor and assistant to the
general manager of IDI.

Ms. Yu worked in the Kunming Light Union City Credit Cooperative
(B & B 3 (= A A fE4L) from August 1988 to April 1993. From
May 1993 to March 1994, she worked in Kunming Lianfa City Credit
Cooperative (E B3 B % 3 ™ /& A & E 4 ) and worked at Kunming
International Trust and Investment Co., Ltd. (E B {E5E R E R 7))
from April 1994 to November 2005. She has been working in Kunming
Industrial since November 2005. She has been serving as the deputy
manager of the planning and finance department, deputy manager of
the contract audit department, manager of the audit legal department,
manager of the capital operation department, supervisor and assistant
to the general manager of Kunming Industrial.

In July 1988, Ms. Yu graduated from Kunming Second Light Industry
School (& B3 ™ — & T % £ 1%), majoring in finance and graduated
from Yunnan Finance and Trade College (£ F 8 & £ ) in June
1992, majoring in finance. In December 2010, she graduated from
CPC Yunnan Provincial Party School (1 £ = % £ ¥ %), majoring
in economic management. Ms. Yu is also a senior accountant in the
PRC.

C. INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yin Xiaobing (# BE k), aged 48, joined our Group in June 2016
and was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
23 June 2016. Mr. Yin participates in making significant decisions and
advises on corporate governance, connected transactions, and various
matters concerning Directors and senior management. He is currently
the chairman of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee,
and a member of the Strategy and Investment Decision Committee and
the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee of our Company.

Mr. Yin currently serves as a visiting scholar of the Sloan School
of Management of the Massachusetts Institute of Technology, and
a non-practicing member of Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He used to serve as the head, an associate professor
and a tutor for master’s degree students of the Financial Management
Department of the School of Business Administration and Tourism
Management of Yunnan University (&£ & A £).
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Mr. Yin served as a director in the following companies listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Shenzhen Stock Exchange in the

last three years:

Serving time
1 B 5 &

May 2014 to January 2020

20145 H £2020F 1 A

June 2016 to April 2021

201646 4 £202154 A

April 2019 to July 2019

201944 A £201957 A

August 2019 to present

20198 A ES

February 2020 to present

2020F2A &4

February 2021 to present

20212 &%

Mr. Yin also currently serves as the general manager of Yunnan
Tianshu Yuheng Equity Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd. (£
A EEkiEREEZSEERFR 2D A), and a director of Kunming
Land Development Investment Management Co., Ltd. (B 88 ™ £ i
f % % & &£ % B R & 1T 2 al), Kunming Dianchi National Tourism
Resort State-owned Assets Investment Management (Group) Co., Ltd.

Company name
BAE

Yunnan Aluminum Co., Ltd.
iK1 B R A (Stock code:
000807)
TR ERMD AR A A (R ZE R %000807)

Yunnan Copper Industry Limited
(EFE ¥R %A R QA (Stock code:
000878)

TR ERNBRAAREREF000878)

Yunnan Luoping Zinc & Electricity Co., Ltd.
(Stock code: 002114)

EERTHEBRHGERAA
(B 2 £ 75 5 002114)

Yunnan Baiyao Group Co., Ltd.

(BRI A% EEKEG AR A ) (Stock code:

000538)
EHMRESEERMNDERRQA

Yunnan Tin Company Limited
(EEHERH B R Q) (Stock code:
000960)

R ERM AR LD E(RERT R000960)

Huaneng Lancang River Hydropower Inc.

(FERE BB II/KE R M BB A ) (Stock code:

600025)
ERERATIKERMNERRA A
(B% Z £ 5 4 600025)

MR~ A&

(ERAEREAEREEERENEEEREKEER(EE)AREE
A @), Yunnan Ronghe Investment Holding Co., Ltd. (EF A KA K&
£ {% & BR A A]), and Kunming Urban and Rural Industrial Development
Co., Lid. (EFAM BB EEFEHBREME R F).
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Mr. Yin obtained a bachelor’s degree in applied mathematics from
Yunnan University (£ & X 2) in Yunnan Province, the PRC, in June
1997, a master’s degree in management from Yunnan University (£
A Z) in July 2000, and a doctorate degree in political economy from
Yunnan University (= g X £) in December 2012.

Ms. Zheng Dongyu (#8 % ifi), aged 65, joined our Group in June
2021 and was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
18 June 2021. Ms. Zheng participates in making significant decisions
and advises on corporate governance, connected transactions,
and various matters concerning Directors and senior management.
Ms. Zheng is currently a member of the Audit Committee of our
Company.

Ms. Zheng served as a lecturer at the School of Law of Yunnan
University (£ 8 KX 2£) from August 1984 to December 2012. She
currently serves as a two-level teaching supervisor of the schools and
colleges of Yunnan University, a leader of the teaching supervision
team of the School of Law, an independent director of Kunming
Automation Whole Set of Equipment Business Co., Ltd (E ¥ 8 &1t
A E £ B %D AR 2 Al) (a company listed on the National Small and
Medium-sized Enterprise Share Transfer System, stock code 832848)
and an independent director of Yunnan Gold Mining Group Co.,
Ltd (EmEaBE XS ERMD AR A F). Ms. Zheng served as an
independent director of Yunnan Nantian Electronics Information Co.,
Ld(EEEREFEEEXRHARRQA) (a company listed on
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code 000948), Yunnan Yuntianhua
Co, Ltd (EMEXKH BRAA) (a company listed on Shanghai
Stock Exchange, stock code 600096) and Huaneng Lancang River
Hydropower Inc. (2 82 % )8 I /K E iz 17 A BR 2 7)) (a company listed
on Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code 600025).

Ms. Zheng graduated from the Southwest University of Political
Science and Law (7 & Bl %A K 2) with a bachelor of laws degree in
July 1984 and obtained a master of laws degree from Peking University
(dE K ) in July 2000.
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Mr. Ong King Keung (E # 5 ), aged 46, joined our Group in
November 2021 and was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 12 November 2021. Mr. Ong participates in making
significant decisions and advises on corporate governance, connected
transactions and various matters concerning Directors and senior
management. Mr. Ong is currently the chairperson of the Remuneration
and Appraisal Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee of our Company.

Mr. Ong is an independent non-executive director of Risecomm
Group Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 1679). Mr. Ong is also an independent
non-executive director of Bingo Group Holdings Limited (a company
listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8220), and K
Group Holdings Limited (a company listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 8475). He currently serves as the company
secretary of Harbour Digital Asset Capital Limited (formerly known as
Unity Investments Holdings Limited, a company listed on Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 913).

Mr. Ong was an independent non-executive director of China Water
Affairs Group Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 855) for the period from March 2007 to
November 2019 and Tech Pro Technology Development Limited (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
3823, but de-listed with effect from 2 March 2020) for the period from
March 2017 to February 2019, respectively.

Mr. Ong had also been an independent non-executive director of
Deson Construction International Holdings Limited (now known as
Smart City Development Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8268) since December 2014
and was subsequently re-designated as a non-executive director since
December 2015. In July 2019, Mr. Ong resigned as a non-executive
director of the company; and served as an independent non-executive
director of My Heart Bodibra Group Limited (currently known as Ocean
Star Technology Group Limited, a company listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 8297) for the period from December 2017
to May 2021.

Mr. Ong obtained a bachelor degree in accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and a master degree in corporate
finance from the City University of Hong Kong. He is a member of
both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He has over 15 years
of experience in auditing and accounting industry.
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D. SUPERVISORS

Mr. Na Zhigiang (38 % 58 ), aged 60, is the chairman of our Board of
Supervisors and an employee representative Supervisor, responsible
for leading the daily work of our Board of Supervisors, overseeing
the Directors, managers and other management personnel to ensure
compliance with laws and regulations, the Articles of Association and
the resolutions of shareholders’ general meetings. Mr. Na joined our
Group in February 1990. On 19 January 2011, he was appointed as the
chairman of our Board of Supervisors and an employee representative
Supervisor. Mr. Na has over 30 years’ working experience in the
wastewater treatment industry.

Mr. Na worked successively as the office manager, assistant to
the plant manager, and the plant manager of Kunming No. 1 Water
Purification Plant from February 1990 to December 2007. From
January 2008 to June 2009, Mr. Na served as the deputy general
manager of Kunming Municipal Wastewater Treatment Co. Ltd., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. From June 2009 to June
2011, he served as the manager of general affairs department of
Kunming Dianchi Investment.

Mr. Na graduated from the Party School of Yunnan Provincial
Committee of the Chinese Communist Party (FTEEXEEZME L 8
g ¥ %) in Yunnan Province, the PRC, in December 2004, majoring in
economics and management.

Mr. Yao Jianhua (#k i %), aged 63, joined our Group in November
1995 and has been an employee representative Supervisor of our
Company since 19 January 2011 in charge of overseeing the Directors,
managers and other management personnel to ensure compliance with
laws and regulations, the Articles of Association and the resolutions of
shareholders’ general meetings. Mr. Yao has over 28 years’ working
experience in the wastewater treatment industry. From June 2005 to
November 2019, Mr. Yao has been the executive director, the general
manager and the legal representative of Kunming Dianchi Logistics, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Yao served successively as a section
clerk and deputy section chief of Kunming Municipal Facilities
Management Cashier Office (B B3 ™ ™ X &% i W & & 12 &) from
February 1988 to February 1998, and deputy chief of the Management
Cashier Office of Kunming City Drainage Company Limited (£ B8 % ™
PEK A 7)Y & & 3 &R ) from February 1998 to June 1999.

Mr. Yao graduated from Chinese People’s Liberation Army Kunming
Army College (F Bl A K ## i % 2 85 £ E £ f% ) in Yunnan Province,
the PRC, majoring in political theory in July 1999.
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Mr. Shao Wei (&B %), aged 41, joined our Group on 7 May 2016 and
is a Supervisor of our Company in charge of overseeing the Directors,
managers and other management personnel to ensure compliance with
laws and regulations, the Articles of Association and the resolutions of
shareholders’ general meetings. Mr. Shao has over 10 years’ working
experience in the corporate finance management. Mr. Shao worked
as the accounting manager of planning and financing department of
Kunming DIG, responsible for corporate finance and accounting affairs.
He was transferred to Kunming Development New Energy Industry
Investment Operation Co., Ltd. (EFRE R F e REXREEL F
[ 2 A]) in August 2018 and has been serving as the deputy general
manager since October 2018. He has been serving as the financial
controller of Kunming Zhongchuang Sanyou Kun Development New
—ERERMERMRER

‘A 7A]) since March 2018. He has also served as the executive deputy

Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (& 3+ £l

general manager of Kunming Petrochina Kunlun CNG Co., Ltd. (£ A
FOHE®EAXARIABMRADAF) since March 2019, a director of
such company since June 2020, and ceased to served at the company
in June 2021. He has served the chairman of the board of supervisors
of Kunming Petrochina Energy Investment and Development Co.,
Ltd. (B 83 # ) 82 JR % & % & B PR 2 A]) since March 2021. He has
also concurrently served as the deputy general manager of Kunming
Kangju Industrial Development Co., Ltd. (E B BEEEXH ZE A R
7~ Al) since April 2021, and as the legal representative, executive
director and general manager of such company since October
2021; and concurrently served as an executive director and deputy
general manager of Kunming Yunzhong Recreation Investment and
Development Co., Ltd. (R A E #F & % & i % AR 2 &) since April
2021, and as the legal representative, executive director and general
manager of such company since November 2021.

Mr. Shao worked at Yunnan Yatai Electronic Information Technology
Co.,Ltd. (EM I AEFELEKMARZA A) from March 2004 to
March 2009. He worked at the financial department of and served as
the deputy director of legal and risk control department of Yunnan
Electrical and Mechanical Equipment Corporation (£ & & # & & &
# /A 7)) from May 2010 to August 2011 and May 2012 to November
2015, respectively. He worked at Yunnan Yunrui Automobile Sales and
Service Co., Ltd. (2B £ T = #HE R % A R 2 @) from August
2011 to May 2012, responsible for financial management.

Mr. Shao graduated from Kunming University of Science and
B3 T KX 2) in Yunnan Province, the PRC, majoring
in accounting computerisation in July 2010. He received a certificate

Technology (£

in accounting (intermediate level) in September 2010 and obtained the
professional and technical qualification certificate of senior accountants
in June 2018.
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E. SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Each member of our senior management satisfies the qualification
requirements under the relevant PRC laws and regulations for his or
her position. The senior management is responsible for the day-to-day
management of our business The following table sets forth the

E. BHREEE

information regarding our senior management as at the end of the

Reporting Period:

Name

B

Mr. Chen Changyong

Mr. Luo Yun

BERAE

Age

F&

52

52

43

43

Position Roles and responsibilities

Bt BEREE

Executive Director  Participate in the Company's

and General strategic decision-making
Manager and be responsible for the
Company’s operation and
management
BES SENFAHBARR
E3 b BEARAMERER
Executive Director  Responsible for supervising

and Deputy our Company’s investment

General strategies, market

Manager expansion and production
safety and environmental
protection

HOER BEEEANANKE

RElEEE KB mERARZ2

EEERRERELR

Appointment date

ZfER Y

Appointed as General Manager in 10 July
2019 and as Executive Director on 19
June 2020

WOETRI0REZERREER
R00F6A19 REZEARTES

Appointed as Deputy General Manager in
January 2015 and as Executive Director
on 23 June 2016

NW5F1REZERABEER
RW16F6ABREREANITES

RRAHEBKERMERLE 2021 FERE

Date of
joining our Group

MAEEEH
R

June 2019

201946 A

June 2013

2013%6 4

EEREREXRBEYREMAPEERRERY
HAEBUNERER - BREBEAELRRA
AEEBNER - TRBI R REBRBEHEZD
MEEEKRBENER:

Relationship
with other
Directors,
Supervisors
and senior
management
BEpES.
BEREH
EEEHER

None

None
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Mr. Chen Changyong (B & B) is an executive Director and the
general manager of our Company. Please see the section headed
“Profiles of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management — A.
Executive Directors” in this report for details of Mr. Chen Changyong’s
biography.

Mr. Luo Yun (# &), is an executive Director and the deputy general
manager of our Company. Please see the section headed “Profiles
of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management — A. Executive

Directors” in this report for details of his biography.
Except as disclosed above:

(1) none of our Directors has any interests in any business, which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with our business;

(2) none of our Directors, Supervisors and senior management has
been a director of any public company, the securities of which
are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in
the three years immediately preceding the date of this report;
and

(3) there is no other information that needs to be brought to the
attention to the Shareholders under Rule 13.51(2) of the Hong
Kong Listing Rules.
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[Fe COMPANY SECRETARY

As at the end of the Reporting Period, Mr. Chiu Ming King (£ B %) is
our company secretary.

Mr. Chiu Ming King (#83%) currently serves as the Managing Director
for Corporate Services at Vistra Corporate Services (HK) Limited. He
has over 10 years of experience in the company secretarial field.

Mr. Chiu was elected as an associate and a fellow of The Chartered
Governance Institute in the United Kingdom in 2003 and 2015,
respectively, and admitted as an associate and a fellow of The Hong
Kong Chartered Governance Institute (“HKCGI”) (formerly known
as The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries) in October
2003 and September 2015, respectively. He is also a holder of the
Practitioner’'s Endorsement Certificate issued by HKCGI. He has been
a vice chairman of the Membership Committee, a chairman of the
Professional Services Panel and a council member of HKCGI.

Mr. Chiu obtained a bachelor of arts from University of Toronto in
Toronto, Canada, in June 1999 and received a master of arts in
professional accounting and information systems from City University
of Hong Kong in November 2003.
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CHAPTER EIGHT REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BFNE EFTEHSE

The Board hereby submit their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

A. BUSINESS REVIEW
1. Operating Environment and Prospects

The Company is a leading wastewater treatment and reclaimed water
services enterprise in Yunnan Province, the PRC, and the largest
wastewater treatment company in Yunnan Province, the PRC. The
Company enjoys exclusive rights to provide wastewater treatment
services in Kunming and certain other parts of China. The concession
helps the Company maintain and consolidate its operating advantages
and competitive edge in the water market in Yunnan Province.
Leveraging our concession-based business model, technology, the
capability of project implementation, and expansion of service regions,
we have achieved stable income and steady business growth.

ESSHNARFIREAEEH E£2021F12A31H
EEERERCEEFTERE -

A EHER
1. BERERRYZ

ARARTPEEFEAFKEEMBEKRBETE
MEFLE CLEPEEMERKEERAERK
MEX ZERMERATRPEEME THREIEH
BREERBOBREN BHELEREBNNA
NRAEBERFENZEEZHEAKBHENLLE
SHHEBWA  BREERNBHFELENEBREA K
- HERTHERBREENAE RMAESRERE
ERMRARFROEBER-
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The “14th Five-Year Plan” period is a critical period for China to further
promote the construction of ecological civilization, a transformation
period to promote comprehensive green development of the economy
and society, a window period to continuously implement the tasks of
pollution control and prevention, and a construction period to achieve
the ambitious goal of “carbon neutrality”. In recent years, with the rapid
development of China’s economy and society and the introduction
of relevant policies, the industry is facing a favourable external
environment for development as the benefits of policies continue to
emerge in water industry. In addition, with the rapid advancement of
industrialisation and informatisation in China, especially the penetration
and development of modern Internet technology in the water industry,
the water industry will become one of the rapidly developing industries
in China in the future.

With the rapid information-based urban development in China
and water service management being an integral part of urban
management, intelligent water services will enter a prime period
of development. With the improvement of intelligent water service
technology and the in-depth integration of the industry, the Company
actively accelerates the implementation of its plan of “intelligent
water services”, which will be an important way for the Company to
strengthen refined management, reduce operating costs, improve
operational management.
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With China’s emphasis on “carbon neutrality” and “carbon peaking”,
the improvement of relevant policies, and the launch of the national
carbon trading market, more and more water and environmental
protection enterprises are joining the “double carbon” race. The
Company has made early efforts to promote the use of clean energy
and has contributed directly and indirectly to “carbon neutrality” and
“carbon peaking” through COD reduction, sludge resource utilisation
and mine rehabilitation in order to achieve an effective integration of
social and economic benefits.

As the final section of wastewater treatment and a major problem in
water pollution prevention, the treatment and disposal of sludge has
long been a concern for the country. With the growth of wastewater
treatment volume and the increase of sludge production, there is still
a large demand for the construction of sludge harmless treatment
facilities. The Company attaches great importance to sludge treatment
and disposal and has developed a sludge disposal method combining
“1+N” multiple methods, thereby striving to transform sludge disposal
from an expense item to an income source.

BEEBERY G M MIHEE] N ERMBEK T
Z 2EMRSMB LA BRBEZKBRALE
MATERI BB -ARRREMR BEEAER
BEJR - BBCODREH 5 RERMCMA - BEILIEE
ETAEE BER/MPMIRREEIEBNE
NERHERERBBERENERRA -

1R 5 KO0 1B B MR IR B M1 KO5 R B a R B 3 B
ARMNEEREXIBEBRRAMEIT - BEITK
EEENERLSEELENE N FREF(
EEREHORITSDEFRAF R - AAERS
REBREEIE ERTIHNZEAAEENITR
BETX FRMERISEEE MK AR KA iR
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The Company adheres to the operation strategy of “unitary domination
with diversified development”, and extends its industrial chain, from
wastewater treatment to reclaimed water utilisation, sludge resource
utilisation, running water supply, aquatic biotechnology, pharmacy
and other related sectors, with operations gradually expanding to
solid waste treatment, soil restoration, watershed management, clean
energy, scientific research cooperation, project incubation and other
areas of “Macro Environmental Protection”, and strives to develop itself
into an international integrated ecological and environmental protection
and management service provider. With years of experience in water
service operation, the Company will continue to leverage its strengths
to promote high-quality corporate development and continue to create
value for its shareholders in the market environment of intensifying
market competition and increasingly concentrated industry landscape.

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ENE EFEEHE

ARARBHI—TTRE HHESZTERILCLEE .
EFERSKERBEMRIBAEKMNA FEER
fEMA BRKEE KEEYREREBEES
HERAE YEFRAEELREE TEEE RLE
BRRRER BMMAERBEERLEEIRRRIER
HEE BIRBAEFHTEKRS - RERLES
MERRERELIEGARBEE - ARAEFZ
FOKBELER EENMEHFME TEE
TETHRSOTERET ARAAGEERE
EHEY HELESESRER HERKRERAE
EE-

RRAHEBKERMERLE 2021 FERE

79



CHAPTER EIGHT REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FNE EEEHS

2. Business

For principal business activities of the Company during the Reporting
Period and the discussion and analysis thereof, please refer to the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis — C. Business
Review”.

3. Key Financial Ratios
The following table shows some major financial ratios of the Group to

reflect the Group’s profitability, operational capabilities and solvency,
for shareholders to analyse the Group’s potential to grow and develop:

2. %

FREARAHREHANTIEEZR TR ETEZE
BRABMEwmEINT F2HEEETRLRON-
C XBmE]-

3. MBRBER

TR AEEETIEMBLE URBRAE
BmAENgE N EZ I RERBED AEBREREY
AEBMKREMEREDIEL DN :

As at or for the year ended
31 December
m12A31H =

RBE12AMBLEEE

2021 2020
2021 4§ 2020 F
Gross profit margin( EMEO® 31.3% 35.4%
Net profit margin®@ FREE 14.7% 18.3%
Return on equity® R 7N [B] ) & @) 7.7% 8.2%
Return on total assets® BEEDHRE® 2.8% 3.3%
Current ratio® MBI RO 93.5% 124.3%
Quick ratio® R EO 93.2% 123.9%
Gearing ratio® FEEAGHLERO 52.2% 49.6%
Notes: b aF -
(1 Equals to gross profit divided by our total revenue for the same period. (1) EREMNBRURMRERBENEEA -
2) Equals to profit for the year divided by our total revenue for the same  (2) ERFERAMBHRIARMAERBEEEZKA -
period.
3) Represents profit for the year as a percentage of total equity for the  (3) FAMBARGEERPERESEENTDLL -
same period.
(4) Represents profit for the year as a percentage of total assets for the  (4) FANEMEERSREEENT DL -
same period.
(5) Equals to current assets divided by current liabilities as at the end of the  (5) ERNRBEERINGFRADAE -
period.
(6) Equals to current assets less inventories divided by current liabilities as  (6) ERNRNDEERTFEERUARRDEME -

at the end of the period.

(7) Calculated as net debt divided by total capital at the end of the
period. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents at the end of the period. Total capital is calculated as total
equity plus net debt.

(7) REBIERAPREAMENE - BB FRER
EREEABRARRERASEZEBOFAE-EXR
HRESEENERFEAE -
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Gross profit margin and net profit margin

Please refer to “Management Discussion and Analysis — E. Financial
Review — 1. Consolidated Results of Operations” for a discussion
of the factors affecting our gross profit margin and net profit margin
during the Reporting Period.

Return on equity

Our return on equity decreased from 8.2% in 2020 to 7.7% in 2021,
primarily due to the increase in total equity by RMB163.4 million in
2021.

Return on total assets

Our return on total assets decreased from 3.3% in 2020 to 2.8% in
2021, primarily due to an increase in total assets by RMB1,571.4
million in 2021.

Current ratio and quick ratio

Our current ratio and quick ratio decreased from 124.3% and 123.9%
as of 31 December 2020 to 93.5% and 93.2% as of 31 December
2021, respectively, primarily because current liabilities increased by
RMB2,295.9 million in 2021.

Gearing ratio

Please refer to “Management Discussion and Analysis — E. Financial
Review — 4. Indebtedness” for a discussion of the factors affecting our
gearing ratio during the Reporting Period.

Based on the above indicators, we believe that the Group possesses
strong competitiveness and operational capabilities to create value for
shareholders on an ongoing basis.
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P9 R 488 7 @ 4R & £ 2020 FF #93.3% T & = 2021
FR28% TEHRN2021IEFHLBEEEMARE
1,571.4EH B T °

HEBHLEREBILE

AR ED b R R B bE R A 702020 F 12 A 31 H
£)124.3% [ 123.9% 73 5l T b = 722021412 A31 A
#993.5% ;. 93.2% * * 2 B 1020214 i 8) & H L N
AR#229598 & T °
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4. Laws, Regulatory and Compliance Matters

Our operations are subject to various national and local laws and
regulations governing environmental protection, safety production and
product quality, among others. As for our compliance measures, we
aim to meet regulatory and industrial standards of the relevant central
and local government authorities and our industry associations.

As of 31 December 2021, there are no material pending or threatened
litigation matters or other proceedings, and the Group is not involved in
any litigation or other proceedings that would materially and adversely
affect our business, financial condition or results of operations.

Directors confirmed that during the Reporting Period, the Group had
complied with the applicable PRC laws and regulations in all material
respects, and did not have any incidents of material non-compliance,
and had obtained all relevant permits, approval documents,
qualifications, authorisations and approvals that are material to our
business operations.

5. Major Financial Risk Factors

The major risks that the Company’s business is exposed to are as
follows:

Market Risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk primarily arising from
currency exposure with respect to Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”) and
United States dollars (“USD”). Foreign exchange risk arises from cash
and cash equivalents and borrowings denominated in HKD and USD.
The Group has entered into a currency swap agreement with banks to
manage the currency risk in related to the borrowings.

As at 31 December 2021, if RMB had weakened/strengthened by
1% (2020: 1%) against HKD and USD denominated cash and cash
equivalent with all other variables held constant, net profit for the year
would have been approximately RMB1,021,000 (2020: approximately
RMB2,004,000) higher/lower. If RMB had weakened/strengthened
by 1% (2020: 1%) against HKD and USD denominated borrowings
with all other variables held constant, finance cost for the year would
have been approximately RMB21,071,000 (2020: approximately
RMB23,002,000) higher/lower.

4. &

b

CHERAERER

BMNEBAETSERARRERE X224 E
EREESTENBRERM T EZRZER R
MERUEEES EEREMAET R R0 RF
FIRTTEBENEERITERE-

BHE2021F12A310 1L AEE L E B R AR
FEENFASIEMERREF AEE BT EE
ATMEHEER BBRAXZEREELE
AAME BN FRIEMERRERF -

EXZHR RAREHAN - AEEERMEERTE
BFTHRERZERER TEECTANERTERSE
 BEAEECRERERLCENEBEENAA
BHBEFT HXRERIE BELREH]-

5. TEMBRBRER

ARRAEBEBENTEZRARMAT

i 45 E B

(i) S IE Ja]

AEBHNEBPERAZEERNSHEEBEIIER
B kNEBTEREL(BERDRET(E
T ERBEEAEBETRETHNRERE
CEEYREE-AEBERRITITZLEEKEH
W AEERREXEHENEERR -

R2021F12A318  EEMBEHETEHBERT -
EARELABTIRETAEBHNESIRRSEEY
B (B, (E 1% (20205 - 1%) - EEFF B & 18
o/ m  #9 A R #1,021,000 7T (2020 £F - 49 A R ¥
2,004,00070) - 5 ARBH BT RETTEHER
RE/EEE1%(2020F :1%) FEHEX A S
#4008 2 4 A R 21,071,000 T (202045 : AR
# 23,002,000 7T) °
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(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of
a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s borrowings.

Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest-rate risk. Borrowings obtained at fixed rates expose the Group
to fair value interest-rate risk.

Borrowed weighted average effective interest rate and borrowing
maturity date are disclosed in Note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2021
borrowings had been higher/lower by 0.5%, the Group’s net profit

, if the interest rate on floating interest rate

for each year would have changed mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest expenses on floating rate borrowings. Details of changes are
as follows:

BEAFEL:
FRE O A,/ 12 0
—#& 110.5%
—% 2 0.5%

Year ended:

Net profit (decrease)/increase
— 0.5% higher
— 0.5% lower
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IR ERGIMB

M2021FE12A31 8 - B F REXOME L7/

TF20.5% RIS B % F 2 690% M B A 3 24
TERAFHANERERNANEERA LA TRA

BoARE(WT:

Year ended 31 December
BHE12A3MBLEE

2021 2020
2021 % 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Frx AR For
(17,546) (15,720)
17,546 15,720
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Credit risk

The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances, restricted funds,
term deposits with initial term of over three months, trade and other
receivables, receivables under service concession arrangements,
amounts due from customers for construction contracts, contract
assets and financial assets at amortised cost included in the
consolidated statement of financial position represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial assets. The
objective of the Group’s measures to manage credit risk is to control
potential exposure to recoverability problem.

All the cash and cash equivalents and term deposits with initial term of
over three months were deposited in the major financial institutions in
Hong Kong and the PRC, which the directors of the Company believe
are of high credit quality.

For receivables, the Group assessed the credit quality of the
counterparties by taking into account their financial position, credit
history and other factors. Management also regularly reviews the
recoverability of these receivables and follow up the disputes or
amounts overdue, if any.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition
of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk on an ongoing basis throughout each Reporting Period. To
assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the reporting
date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It also
considers available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information.

(i) Trade receivables

For trade receivables, the customers are primarily local governments
and PRC state-owned entities. The Group applies the simplified
approach to provide the expected credit losses prescribed by IFRS
9, which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all
trade receivables.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of
sales over a period of 12 month before 1 January 2021 and the
corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this
period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information on macro-economic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivables. There has been no
change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made
throughout the year.

1= A Ja B
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On that basis, loss allowance provision for trade receivables
amounting to approximately RMB56,898,000 (2020: approximately
RMB35,312,000) was recognised as at 31 December 2021. The
expected loss rate for the remaining trade receivables as at 31
December 2021 is determined as follows:
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B EE > R2021F12A31BHERE 5 E WK A
B 18 B % 49 A R 56,898,000 7T (20204 : #) A R
#35,312,0007C ) ° N 20214E12 8318 # T~ & 5
EUREHEHBERXEETNOT

Up to 1to 2 to
1 year 2 years 3 years Total
BR1E 15245 2F3 % i st
Trade receivables B 5 ERME
As at 31 December 2021 M®2021¥12A31H
Expected loss rate 78 Hi 5 18 % 1.97% 2.94% 30.48%
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) #ABRmEE (A K # Fr) 1,238,288 467,025 61,554 1,766,867
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) & 18 i {# (A & 4 F i) (24,405) (13,732) (18,761) (56,898)
1,213,883 453,293 42,793 1,709,969

(i) Receivables under service concession arrangements/amounts
due from customers for construction contracts/financial assets
at amortised cost/other receivables/contract assets

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition
of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk on an ongoing basis throughout each Reporting Period. To
assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the reporting
date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It also
considers available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information.

The Group uses four categories for these receivables, which reflect
their credit risk and how the loss provision is determined for each of
those categories.

(ii) i S HET B ER AT TEWE P
BESRS NBEKALA BN HEE"
E W HIE AR E
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On the basis as stated above, a total loss allowance provision for
receivables under service concession arrangements, amounts due from
customers for construction contracts, other receivables, financial assets
at amortised cost and contract assets (other than tax refunds that are not
financial assets) amounted at 31 December 2021 were recognised as

EEXARMER L FHAKEEBETHER
RENEEERE BREZPREARNR HMtRE
WHRIE LNEER A ENEREERGNEE
(BTABREBEEMNRBIN NS ER2021F12
H31BMRMT -

follows.
Amounts
Receivables due from Financial
under service ~ customers for assets at
concession  construction Other amortised Contract
arrangements contracts  receivables cost asset Total
BagER DS
W TH EKE R el  HAHEN
ERZE BEARX 4] EREE ANEE @
As at 31 December 2021 2021412 A318
Expected loss rate BHERX 0.01%-1.1% 0.5%-4% 0.3%-1% 2% 0%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) BERSBARETFT) 2,766,848 603,836 1,047,743 300,000 249,825 4,968,252
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) BREBARKFT) (29,034) (21,337) (7,447) (6,000) = (63,818)
2,737,814 582,499 1,040,296 294,000 249,825 4,904,434

A summary of the assumptions underpinning the Group’s expected
credit loss model is as follows:

Category Group definition of category

R AEEHEENESR

Performing Customers have a low risk of default and
a strong capacity to meet contractual
cash flows

IE % BERFEARBRE BEBENELEED
RenE

Underperforming Receivables for which there is a significant
increase in credit risk

Dz 15 B 2 b 58 2 32 o0 &Y FE W 5K IE

Non-performing Customers have difficulties in making full

payment despite numerous reminders

AEBEREEEEEANBEERIPANT

Basis for recognition of expected
credit loss provision

BAEREEELBENESE

12 months expected losses. Where the expected
lifetime of an asset is less than 12 months,
expected losses are measured at its expected
lifetime

NREAEHELX - WEENHEHFEHIR
127  FEMBLRAEERFERTE

Lifetime expected losses

BEEFEMAEHRBER

Lifetime expected losses

R BEZRIEE BEFDELNZEMNK EEFEHANEEBELX
Write-off There is no reasonable expectation of recovery  Asset is written off

i 88 SBEH EKE iE & =
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The Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately providing
for expected credit losses on a timely basis. In calculating the
expected credit loss rates, the Group considers historical loss rates
for each category of receivables and adjusts for forward looking
macro-economic data.

To measure the expected credit losses of these receivables, they
have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and
the days past due. As at 31 December 2021, the expected loss rate
of the then unfulfilled service concession arrangements and amounts
due from customers for construction contracts was approximately
1.0% and 3.5% respectively, with a carrying amount of approximately
RMB2,766,848,000 and RMB603,836,000, respectively, and a provision
of approximately RMB29,034,000 and RMB21,337,000, respectively.
The expected loss rate of other receivables (excluding refund tax and
other non-financial assets) being performed is approximately 0.7%
with a carrying amount of approximately RMB1,047,743,000 and the
allowance provision was approximately RMB7,447,000. The expected
loss rate of financial assets at amortised cost was 2.0% with a
carrying amount of RMB300,000,000 and the allowance provision was
RMB6,000,000.

Liquidity risk

Our objective is to maintain sufficient cash and sources of funding
through available banking facilities and maintain flexibility in funding
by maintaining committed credit lines. We had net current liabilities
of RMB330.5 million as of 31 December 2021. With respect to our
future capital commitments and other financing requirements, we had
unutilised banking facilities of RMB1,746.6 million as of 31 December
2021.

To manage the liquidity risk, our management monitors rolling
forecasts of our liquidity reserve (including undrawn banking facilities)
and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows.
We expected to fund the future cash flow needs through cash flows
generated internally from operations and borrowings from financial
institutions.
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6. Significant Subsequent Events
(a) Dividends

Pursuant to a resolution of the Board of Directors dated 25 March
2022, the Company has proposed final dividends of RMB0.100 per
share (inclusive of tax), which is RMB102,911,100 in total (inclusive
of tax). The proposal is subject to approval by the shareholders at the
annual general meeting of the Company.

(b) Provision of entrusted loans

The Company entered into an entrusted loan contract with Kunming
Bus and Bank of Communications on 22 February 2021, pursuant to
which the Company entrusted Bank of Communications to grant a loan
of RMB300,000,000 to Kunming Bus with an annual interest rate of
8.5%. In February 2022, all the loans under the entrusted loan contract
have been repaid pursuant to relevant entrusted loan contract, and
interest of approximately RMB4,604,000 was received subsequently
after the Reporting Period.

The Company entered into an entrusted loan contract with
Xindu Investment and Panlong Sub-branch of Bank of China on
24 September 2021, pursuant to which the Company entrusted
Panlong Sub-branch of Bank of China to provide a RMB350,000,000
loan to Xindu Investment with an annual interest rate of 7.5%.
In February 2022, all the loans under the entrusted loan contract have
been repaid pursuant to relevant entrusted loan contract, and interest
of approximately RMB5,021,000 was received subsequently after the
Reporting Period.

The Company entered into an entrusted loan contract with Xindu
Investment and Kunming Chenggong District Rural Credit Cooperative
(“Chenggong District Rural Credit Cooperative”) on 28 February
2022, pursuant to which the Company entrusted Chenggong District
Rural Credit Cooperative to provide a RMB250,000,000 loan to Xindu
Investment with an annual interest rate of 8.5%. The loan will become
due on 28 March 2022. For details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 28 February 2022.
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7. Relationship with Employees

As of 31 December 2021, we had 1,403 full-time employees, all of
whom were in China and most of whom were based in Yunnan. The
following table sets forth the breakdown of our employees by function
as of 31 December 2021:
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70, #HETHEREF

M2021%12A318 > KM B14032 2 REE =
HERE KD EER - TR KB E2021
FIR2AMHERBEEONESHA:

Number
Function B g€ A#E
Management and Administration ERRITHE 165
Finance B 1% 42
Research and Development ot 5% 73
Quality Monitoring BEEEA 238
Marketing = i 16
Operations B 823
Construction and Maintenance BER Rk E 46
Total @t 1,403

We recruit our employees on the open market. Compensation for our
employees includes basic wages, performance-based wages, bonuses
and other staff benefits. For the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2021, our employee benefits amounted to approximately RMB177.9
million and RMB185.2 million, respectively.

We believe our employees are the most valuable resources to achieve
our success. To ensure the quality of our employees at all levels, we
have in-house training programs to train our staff. New employees at
our production facility receive trainings pertinent to their job duties.
We also own Kunming Dianchi Water Treatment Vocational Training
School, which provides more training courses for our employees.

The labor union communicates closely with the management regarding
labor matters and represents our employees’ interests. During the
Reporting Period, we had not experienced any interruptions to
our operations caused by major labor disputes and there were no
complaints or claims from our employees which had a material adverse
effect on our business. The Directors believe that we have a good
relationship with our employees. During the Reporting Period, the
Group had no major labor disputes which might produce significant
impact on the normal business and operation of the Group.
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8. Relationship with Customers

Customers of our wastewater treatment services were primarily
local governments in Yunnan Province, the PRC. Customers of our
reclaimed water supply services were municipal government agencies,
public parks, and residential property management companies.
Customers of our running water supply service were generally local
residents, commercial and industrial users and other institutions
located in the areas covered by our concession agreements.

Our largest customer during the Reporting Period was the Kunming
Finance Bureau. The revenue attributable to our largest customer
was approximately RMB573.8 million, accounting for approximately
24.8% of the total revenue of the Group. During the Reporting
Period, the revenue attributable to our top five largest customers
was approximately RMB1,175.4 million, accounting for approximately
50.7% of the total revenue of the Group.

Our revenue mainly comes from wastewater treatment service in
Kunming. The wastewater treatment fee paid to us came either from
government purchase, public procurement, or direct collection from
individuals and entities using self-supplied water sources. Of those
fees, payment from government purchase comes directly from the
Kunming Finance Bureau which was our largest customer during the
Reporting Period; payment from public procurement is collected by
Kunming CGE Water Supply Co., Ltd., which was the running water
supplier in Kunming main city area and our second largest customer
during the Reporting Period, and Kunming Qingyuan Water Supply
Co., Ltd., a running water supplier in Chenggong District of Kunming.
Specifically, end users of running water in Kunming main city area
would pay a statutory wastewater treatment fee to Kunming CGE
Water Supply Co., Ltd., and end users of running water in Kunming
Chenggong District would pay a statutory wastewater treatment fee
to Kunming Qingyuan Water Supply Co., Ltd., and any difference
between the amount that we are entitled to receive under the
concession agreement and the amount we actually received from
public procurement and direct collection would be paid to us by the
Kunming Finance Bureau through government purchase.

During the Reporting Period, we also provided management services
to our Controlling Shareholder. Our other major customers included
Housing and Urban-Rural Construction Bureau of Zhaotong City and
Xundian County Government, etc. We provided wastewater treatment
and construction services to Xundian County and Zhaotong City under
the relevant concession agreements.
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Except for our Controlling Shareholder, all of our five largest customers
are independent third parties, and none of our Directors, their
associates or any Shareholder (who, to the knowledge of our Directors,
owned more than 5% of our Company’s share capital) had any interest
in any of our five largest customers during the Reporting Period. We
did not have any major customers who were also our suppliers.

9. Relationship with Suppliers

Our principal suppliers are power suppliers who provide electricity to
our facilities, construction contractors who designed and constructed
our facilities and suppliers of raw materials including wastewater
treatment chemicals and other equipment maintenance replacements.
We have been working with our major suppliers for a period ranging
from one to more than five years.

During the Reporting Period, our purchases from our top five suppliers
account for less than 30% of our total purchases.

Huajian Lian Construction Group Co., Ltd., a private enterprise,
provides project construction services for us. Our other major
suppliers include Kunming Power Supply Bureau of Yunnan Power
Grid Company Limited which provides electricity for our operation,
construction contractors such as China Europe International
Construction Group Limited and Hunan No.4 Engineering Co., Ltd.
which undertake the construction portions of our projects and raw
materials providers such as Kunming Kejingyuan Environmental
Protection Technology Co., Ltd., Yunnan Haida New Ecological
Environment Construction Co., Ltd. and Kunming Lude Chemical Co.,
Ltd. which provide water treatment chemicals and others materials for
the operation and maintenance of our facilities.

All of our five largest suppliers are independent third parties based in
China. We did not enter into any long-term agreements with our major
suppliers during the Reporting Period.
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Except for our utility service providers, we have established a
centralised procurement policy for our cooperated suppliers. Under
such policy, our subsidiaries are required to solicit bids from different
suppliers, and select the suppliers based on price, quality, and
timely delivery of the products. All supply contracts will be required
to be reviewed and approved by the headquarters which will conduct
periodic tests to check the quality of the delivered products.

We have sourced our raw materials from a few local suppliers located
near Kunming in order to benefit from the economies of scale and
convenient transportation, which allowed for faster and cheaper
delivery of raw materials. We generally pay our suppliers within 10
to 15 days after receiving the delivery of goods, subject to internal
review and approval. For our major suppliers, we often settle accounts
monthly, and as of 31 December 2021, we did not have any payments
in arrears.

We may from time to time cooperate with any suppliers in the market
who offer similar raw materials with terms comparable to our existing
suppliers so as to replace the existing suppliers. To mitigate the risks
associated with any reliance on our major suppliers, we periodically
seek potential alternative suppliers and obtain quotations from such
suppliers with a view to keeping in contact with potential suppliers. In
addition, in order to secure reliable supply channels and ensure the
quality of our supplies, in 2015, we acquired 51% interest in Kunming
B A 2R R AR

TEBEREMTEAQA), a producer of wastewater treatment chemicals,

Heertai Environmental Industry & Trade Co. Ltd. (B

from which we intend to procure a majority of our chemicals in the
future. As of 31 December 2021, we had not experienced any material
difficulty in obtaining any utility services, construction services, or
supplies of raw materials or equipment for our business operations.
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10. Environmental Policies and Performance

We must observe the national and local environmental protection laws
and regulations in China, including the Environmental Protection Law
of the PRC ({7 #E A B H A1 B IR 3% (R # )%)), the Law of the PRC on
the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution ({(/F ZE A & 1 B /K55
7558 7%)), the Water Law of the PRC ({7 Z A & H F1 B /K %)), the
Regulations on Urban Drainage and Sewage Treatment ({3 & #F 7K £2
55 7K Bz ¥2 1§ %51)) and Yunnan Dianchi Lake Protection Regulations ((&
B B OE AR G O1D).

We have implemented the corresponding measures in the operation
of our business to ensure the compliance with the applicable
requirements under the PRC environmental protection laws and
regulations. As of 31 December 2021, we had not received any
material claims issued for failing to comply with the relevant licensing

and environmental requirements.

As of 31 December 2021, we obtained all the material environmental
licenses and certificates for each of our facilities, and we had complied
in all material respects with the relevant environmental laws and
regulations.

Our environmental compliance expenses were RMB10.6 million and
RMB8.7 million for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
respectively. To the best of our Directors’ knowledge, information and
belief, we do not expect our costs of compliance with environmental
laws and regulations to increase significantly in the near future.
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B. BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

The audited results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2021 are stated in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income on pages 176 to 177.
The financial positions of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2021 are stated in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position on pages 178 to 179. The consolidated cash flows
of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2021 are stated in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows on
pages 181 to 182.

The discussion and analysis on the Group’s business performance and
financial position for the current year are stated under “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 22 to 62 hereof.

C. SHARE CAPITAL

As of 31 December 2021, the Company had issued 1,029,111,000
shares (comprising 689,088,000 Domestic Shares and 340,023,000 H
Shares) with a nominal value of RMB1 each.

D. ISSUANCE OF CORPORATE BONDS

We issued corporate bonds with par value of RMB700.0 million
for a term of seven years, bearing interest at 4.35% per annum on
25 December 2015. At the end of the fifth year, the Company may
adjust the interest rates for the remaining two years. In the event that
investors disagree with the adjustment made to the interest rates,
they may choose to demand for an early redemption of corporate
bonds outstanding. The proceeds from the issuance of the bonds will
all be used in four projects, namely the second wastewater treatment
plant in Yiliang County and the supporting pipe network project, the
construction of Yunnan Water Quality Monitoring Center and the
supporting wastewater treatment plant management building, the
acquisition of Luolonghe and Laoyuhe Wastewater Treatment Plants
(including reclaimed water plant) and the acquisition of the tenth
wastewater treatment plant in Kunming City.

In 2020, the Company has repurchased the corporate bonds with a
nominal value of RMB660.0 million, and reduced the coupon rate of the
bonds to 4.15%, which will remain unchanged in the sixth and seventh
years of its lifetime (from 25 December 2020 to 24 December 2022).

During the Reporting Period, the Company did not repurchase or issue
any corporate bonds.
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E. PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had made any
purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed securities during
the Reporting Period.

F. PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT TO ACQUIRE

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, other applicable
laws and regulations and the provisions of the Articles of Association
of the Company, there are no provisions in relation to the Company’s
shareholders’ entitlement to the pre-emptive right to acquire.

G. RESERVE AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

The details in relation to the changes in the reserve of the Company
for the current year are stated in Note 41 to the Financial Statements.
Pursuant to the Company Law of the PRC, undistributed profit could
be distributed as dividend after allocation is made to the statutory
surplus reserve. According to the requirements of the Articles of
Association, when the Company is to distribute its profit after tax in the
relevant accounting year, the profit after tax shall be deemed to be the
lesser of the amounts stated in the financial statements prepared in
accordance with the China Accounting Standards and the International
Financial Reporting Standards. For the calculation in accordance with
the International Financial Reporting Standards, as at the end of 2021,
the undistributed profit of the Company amounted to RMB1,407.7
million. For the calculation in accordance with the China Accounting
Standards, as at the end of 2021, the undistributed profit of the
Company amounted to RMB1,405.0 million.

H. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The property, plant and equipment mainly include those property, plant
and equipment that we operate in our business and are located in
China, including such property leased during the operational lease for

our business operating under concession.
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I PROFIT DISTRIBUTION

The Board proposes to distribute a final cash dividend (the “2021
Final Dividend”) of RMB0.100 per share (tax inclusive), totalling
RMB102,911,100 (tax inclusive) to all Shareholders whose names
appear on the Company’s registers of shareholders of domestic
shares and H shares as at Monday, 11 July 2022, subject to the
approval by the Shareholders at the 2021 annual general meeting
(the “2021 Annual General Meeting”) intended to be held by the
Company on Wednesday, 29 June 2022. The dividend of domestic
Shareholders shall be declared and paid in RMB while the dividend
of H Shareholders shall be declared in RMB but paid in Hong Kong
dollars, with the exchange rate being subject to the average exchange
rate published by the People’s Bank of China within one week prior to
the 2021 Annual General Meeting. The expected 2021 Final Dividend
distribution date is Tuesday, 16 August 2022.

The proposal regarding the distribution of 2021 Final Dividend shall be
confirmed subject to the approval by Shareholders at the 2021 Annual
General Meeting.

According to the provisions of the “Circular on Questions Concerning
Withholding and Remitting Enterprise Income Tax for Dividends
Received by Overseas H-share Holders (Non-resident Enterprise
Shareholders) from Chinese Resident Enterprises ({B@ A # B FE R
rERMBEIIMHBREERECERREZERERARBEEMBN
B M E®E M) (Guo Shui Han [2008] No. 897) issued by the
State Administration of Taxation, an enterprise income tax at the rate
of 10% shall be levied on dividends paid in or after 2008 by Chinese
resident enterprises to overseas H shareholders that are non-resident
enterprises,

I. I 4 ik

BEZCEZMR2022F7TAMB(EH )RBNAEAR
AINEBREHERBRREZMAOMEREIRZERHAR
SR E(T2021EERXBB R EBHRAR0.100T
(B8) At ARB102,911,100 T (B /) - AR
B B 72202296 A29B8 (£ B =) 8 17 22021 F E
BREBFAS(2021EEREAEAEG ) L E-
REBRBRENREUNARBEIRMZ A - fHARK
EHRSANBAARBEIR UEBXL EXH
BERAQABNIEFERRBAFRE —EALH R
FREARBITAOMOFHERTE-2021F K H
BB M TERT R B H 52022468 A16 H(EH =) »

DIR021FERPRERFRGTRRN2021F E
BRRBFERG LHLE HAIEE-

BEEBREEKERTEE R EMEIIHRIE
ERGERRREREARNKBEEMSHEH
MERBEM) (B K[2008]18975R) W E R EHE
Re¥EmEINMHBRIERE R D 5 IR R IR %2008 F &
NEFERER K —EI10%0HERRADAREL
EREH-

2021 Annual Report Kunming Dianchi Water Treatment Co., Ltd.



CHAPTER EIGHT

Any shares registered in the name of the non-individual registered
Shareholders, including HKSCC Nominees Limited, other nominees,
trustees or other groups and organisations, will be treated as
being held by nonresident enterprise Shareholders and therefore
will be subject to the withholding of the enterprise income tax. If H
shareholders intend to change its Shareholder status, please enquire
about the relevant procedures with your agents or transferee agent.
The Company will strictly comply with the law or the requirements
of the relevant government authority to withhold and pay enterprise
income tax and individual income tax on behalf of the relevant
Shareholders based on the register of members for H Shares of the
Company as at the dividend registration date. The Company assumes
no responsibility and will not entertain any claims arising from any
failure to timely determine, or inaccurate determination of, the status of
the Shareholders or any dispute over the arrangement of withholding
and paying enterprise tax and individual income tax on behalf of
such Shareholders. Shareholders should consult their tax advisers
regarding the PRC, Hong Kong and other tax implications of owning
and disposing of the H Shares of the Company.

If the individual H shareholders who are Hong Kong or Macau residents
or residents of the countries which had an agreed tax rate of 10%
for dividend with China under the relevant tax treaties, the Company
should withhold and pay individual income tax on behalf of the relevant
H shareholders at a rate of 10%. Should the individual H shareholders
are residents of the countries which had an agreed tax rate of less
than 10% with China under the relevant tax treaties, the Company
shall withhold and pay individual income tax on behalf of the relevant H
shareholders at a rate of 10%. If the relevant individual H shareholders
wish to apply for a refund of the additional amount of tax withheld and
paid, the Company can assist the relevant H shareholders to handle
the application for the underlying preferential tax benefits pursuant to
tax treaties. If the individual H shareholders who are residents of the
countries which had an agreed tax rate of higher than 10% but lower
than 20% for dividend with China under the relevant tax treaties, the
Company should withhold and pay individual income tax on behalf of
the relevant H shareholders at the actual rate specified under relevant
tax treaties. In the case that the individual holders of H shares are
residents of the countries which had an agreed tax rate of 20% with
China under the tax treaties, or which has not entered into any tax
treaties with China, or otherwise, the Company shall withhold and pay
the individual income tax on behalf of the relevant H shareholders at a
rate of 20%.
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To determine the list of H Shareholders attending the 2021 Annual AT EBHF2021FERRTAF KRS ZHR K

General Meeting:

Deadline for submitting the share transfer documents:
BERBP XM &% R :

Date of closure of register of members:

TEMeERhereaay:

Date of Record:

EaE- =R

Date for convening 2021 Annual General Meeting:

221 FEMERBAF RS RITAE

REHE:

4:30 pm on Tuesday, 7 June 2022
20226 A7TAH(EH ) TF4R30D

From Wednesday, 8 June 2022 to and until Wednesday, 29 June
2022 (both days inclusive)

202266 ABH(E M=) E2022F6 A29B (EHM =) 1L (B #EF
BHEMX)

Wednesday, 29 June 2022
202296 A29B (E#H =)

Wednesday, 29 June 2022
20226 A29H (EH =)

If the proposal of distribution of 2021 Final Dividend is approved by the EAR2021EE KRR EN S EE2021IEERE
2021 Annual General Meeting, the Shareholders will be entitted tothe E& ke =% @3B AR TR T = 52021F E &

proposed 2021 Final Dividend:

Deadline for submitting the share transfer documents:
EXBPXH&REHR:

Date of closure of register of members:

EERERGBEERE S

Record date of 2021 Final Dividend:

021 FERBRBRE RS

Expected distribution date of 2021 Final Dividend:
A 2021 FE R MM SR B A

H B

4:30 pm on Tuesday, 5 July 2022
2022F7A5H(EH ) TF4R30D

From Wednesday, 6 July 2022 to and until Monday, 11 July 2022
(both days inclusive)

2022F7H6H(EH =) =2022F7A1MB(EH ) L(BIE
BREMX)

Monday, 11 July 2022
2022F7AMMB(EH—)

Tuesday, 16 August 2022
20228 A16 H (2 H )
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CHAPTER EIGHT

J. BANK BORROWINGS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

The details in relation to the bank borrowings and other borrowings of
the Company and its subsidiaries as of 31 December 2021 are stated
in Note 31 to the Financial Statements.

K. DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

During the Reporting Period, the Company’s board of directors
consisted of nine Directors, among whom, three are executive
Directors, three are non-executive Directors and three are independent
non-executive Directors. The Directors have been appointed by the
shareholders of the Company with a term of three years, after which
they may be re-elected.

The Board of Supervisors currently consists of three Supervisors,
among whom, two are employee representative Supervisors. The
remaining Supervisor has been appointed by our shareholders and the
current employee representative Supervisors have been appointed by
the representatives of our labor union. The Supervisors are appointed
for a term of three years, after which they may be re-elected.

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ENE EFEEHE
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During the year until the end of the Reporting Period, the information WRAEEANBEEREH A ARAEE EFEFNE
regarding the Company’s Directors and Supervisors are set out as & #01 T :
follows:
Relationship
with other
Directors,
Supervisors
Date of and senior
Name Age Position Roles and responsibilities Appointment date  joining our Group  management
HEMES
%A R B4 AEREE ZiXEH MAFZEBMBE ERENREG
Mr. Zeng Feng" 57 Chairperson; Executive Responsible for strategic 16 September 2021 August 2021 None
Director (Chairperson of the decision making
Strategy and Investment
Decision Committee, and
member of the Remuneration
and Appraisal Committee
and the Nomination
Committee)
ZEEEN 57 BEER UNEFERAR BAXARAMEBERAX 20214595168 2021583 &
BREZECIEZE ¥
WRERZEGRREE
BE%8)
Ms. Guo Yumei®@ 54 Chairperson; Executive Responsible for strategic Appointed as July 1990 Nil
Director (Chairperson of the decision making Executive Director
Strategy and Investment in January
Decision Committee, and 2011 and as
member of the Remuneration Chairperson on 23
and Appraisal Committee June 2016, and
and the Nomination ceased to serve
Committee) as Executive
Director and
Chairperson since
16 September
2021
BEB/RLO 54 EER HTEZ(BRA BERRAMERRE 01MF1ABRE  1990F7A it
RERAREZEGLIEERE RUTEERR
FHEERZEEGR 201656 A23H
REZEEZE) EZERESR:
7202169 H16 A
ErBEERT
Ex Bk
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Name

i

Mr. Chen
Changyong

Mr. Luo Yun

Ms. Song Hong

RAIZL

Age

F8

52

52

43

43

58

58

Position

i

Executive Director and General

Manager

ROEERAELE

Executive Director and Deputy

General Manager (member of

the Strategy and Investment
Decision Committee)

ATEERALLERE
(BHEREAREES
)

Non-executive Director

FHTES

Roles and responsibilities

BERRE

Participates in strategic
decision making of the
Company and responsible
for operation management
of the Company

Responsible for supervising
our Company’s investment
strategies, market
expansion and production
safety and environmental
protection

EEARAMNRERR .
mHEARRLEEER
REREIE

Participates in the
development of business
strategies of the Company

2HBEARAH
EBERER

RRAHEBKERMERLE 2021 FERE

Appointment date

ZEEH

Appointed as
General Manager
on 10 July 2019
and as Executive
Director on 19
June 2020

20196 7A10H %
ZHERBEER
7%202056 A 19
REZEART
%

Appointed as Deputy
General Manager
in January 2015
and as Executive
Director on 23
June 2016

2015F1AEZE
REIBEERR
20166 A 238
BZAERHTE
%

23 June 2016

201656 A23 A

Date of
joining our Group

MAXEEEEH

June 2019

201956 f

June 2013

201356 f

June 2016

20166 /1

CHAPTER EIGHT REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Relationship
with other
Directors,
Supervisors
and senior
management
HEMES:
EZREH
EEEBNERE

None

None

None
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Name Age
%A F®
Ms. Ren Na 41
izt 4

Ms. Yu Yanbo 51

REELL 51

Mr. Yin Xiaobing 48

FBIKEE 48

Position

i

Non-executive Director

FUTES

Non-executive Director

FHTES

Independent Non-executive
Director (Chairman of the
Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee, and
member of the Strategy
and Investment Decision
Committee and the
Remuneration and Appraisal
Committee)

BUFHTES(BHEE
e REZBETRAZEN
REMBEREAREZRS
FHWREZZEEZE)

Roles and responsibilities

BERKE

Participates in the
development of business
strategies of the Company

S2HEBEARAN
EBERER

Participates in the
development of business
strategies of the Company

S2HEBEARAN
EBERER

Participates in making
significant decisions and
advises on corporate
governance, connected
transactions, and various
matters concerning
Directors and senior
management

BEEHERRERRLE

Bh BERIREER

AREEENSEFHER

GfE

Appointment date

ZEHH

6 November 2020

2020511 A6 H

19 June 2020

2020 6 A19H

23 June 2016

201656 A23H
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Date of
joining our Group

MAREEK A H

November 2020

202011 A

June 2020

202056 f

June 2016

20166

Relationship
with other
Directors,
Supervisors
and senior
management
HEMES:
EZRE4
EEHEMERG

None

None

None



Name Age Position

i 8 Ru

Mr. He Xifeng® 59 Independent Non-executive
Director (Chairman of the
Remuneration and Appraisal
Committee, and member of
the Audit Committee and the

Nomination Committee)

fH#LLES 59 Bk

11
E2
%

i<t
T

B2 %
B EiRE
%8)

mo XBH
mo

g

o> XK
WROFR g

=
&

\

Ms. Zheng 65
Dongyu @

Independent Non-executive
Director (Member of the
Audit Committee)

BgLmrt® 65 BUNBTEZ(RHZEE
%8)

CHAPTER EIGHT REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Roles and responsibilities

BERRE

Participates in making
significant decisions and
advises on corporate
governance, connected
transactions, and various
matters concerning
Directors and senior
management

2EEHERRERBOE
BR BEXHREER
BREEENEREER
HEE

Participates in making
significant decisions and
advises on corporate
governance, connected
transactions, and various
matters concerning
Directors and senior
management

SEEHBERRERBOE
BR BEXHIREER
BREEENEREER
HRZ

Appointment date

ZEEH

23 June 2016, and
ceased to serve
as Independent
Non-executive
Director since 18
June 2021

2016567231
7202156 718
RETBELS
UEHOES

18 June 2021

2021566 A18H

Date of
joining our Group

MAXEEEEH

June 2016

20166 /4

June 2021

202156

Relationship
with other
Directors,
Supervisors
and senior
management
HEMES:
EZREH
EEEBNERE

None

None

RRAHEBKERMERLE 2021 FERE
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Name Age Position

% A F8 R
Mr. Johnson 43
Wan®

Independent Non-executive
Director (Chairman of the
Remuneration and Appraisal
Committee, and member of
the Audit Committee and the

Nomination Committee)

EREHEO 43 BUEHTEZFHFHNEEZR
ZEeIT28 ®iZ8

eRRLZEEZE)

Mr. Ong King 46
Keung ©

Independent Non-executive
Director (Chairman of the
Remuneration and Appraisal
Committee, and member of
the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee)

FRBELEO 46

Roles and responsibilities

BERKE

Participation in making
significant decisions and
advises on corporate
governance, connected
transactions and various
matters concerning
Directors and senior
management

2EEHERRERBOE
ER HEXHREER

RERENEREER
B3

EE ot

Participation in making
significant decisions and
advises on corporate
governance, connected
transactions and various
matters concerning
Directors and senior
management

BRENEXNRERAELE
ER WEXFIREER
BREEEMNEREER
e

Appointment date

ZEHH

6 November 2020,
and ceased
to serve as
Independent
Non-executive
Director since 12
November 2021

2020511 f6HE
R R20215F
MARZBRTE
EEBUINT
E

12 November 2021

2021511 A 12 A
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Date of
joining our Group

MAREEK A H

November 2020

202011 A

November 2021

2021114

Relationship
with other
Directors,
Supervisors
and senior
management
HEMES:
EZRE4
EEHEMERG

None

None



Name Age Position

i 8 Ru

Mr. Na Zhigiang 60 Chairman of the Board of

Supervisors, Employee
Representative Supervisor

MEERLE 60 EZ8IR BIRRES

Mr. Yao Jianhua 63 Employee Representative
Supervisor

gLt 63 BIRKRES

CHAPTER EIGHT REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ENE EFEEHE

Relationship
with other
Directors,

Supervisors

Date of and senior
Roles and responsibilities Appointment date  joining our Group management
HEMES:
EZREH
AERKE ZERH MAAEEHAYE EEENERAF
Responsible for leading the 19 January 2011 February 19907 None

daily work of the Board of
Supervisors, overseeing
the Directors, managers
and other management
personnel to ensure the
compliance with laws and
regulations, the Articles
of Association and the
resolutions of shareholders’
general meetings
BEIREEENHERT 2011518197 199052 A0
fEEEEF KBERA
EBAE BRETHE
BIRER ABFREAN
FEREENRER

)

Responsible for overseeing 19 January 2011 November 1995® None
the Directors, managers
and other management
personnel to ensure the
compliance with laws and
regulations, the Articles
of Association and the
resolutions of shareholders’
general meetings
BREEEES LERAM 2011E1819H 1995 £11 /@ E
EBAR BRETER
RER BHRERAINR

RREZNRER
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Relationship
with other
Directors,

Supervisors

Date of and senior

Name Age Position Roles and responsibilities Appointment date  joining our Group  management

HEMES:
EERES
%A F8 R AERKE ZERH MAAEEHAYE EEENERAF
Mr. Shao Wei 41 Supervisor Responsible for overseeing 7 May 2016 May 2016 None
the Directors, managers
and other management
personnel to ensure the
compliance with laws and
regulations, the Articles
of Association and the
resolutions of shareholders’
general meetings
WELE 41 EZ BEEBES LBRHEM 2016F5A7H 20165 A it
EBAE BRETER
RER BBERBIR
REGEHRER

Notes: R

(1) Mr. Zeng was appointed as an executive Director of the Company at the (1) Bk HEER2021F9A 168 B A A2021F & — X
2021 first extraordinary general meeting held on 16 September 2021 BREREAS([2021FEFE—XBERFBREEXRE]) L
(the “2021 First EGM”), and was appointed as the Chairperson of the BZERARABTES URABEZERE
Board, chairperson of the Strategy and Investment Decision Committee, EFR BRKERKRERAREZEGEEEZE FME
and member of the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee and the ERLEShIRTEECLTERE -

Nomination Committee on the same date.

(2) Ms. Guo ceased to serve as an executive Director, the Chairperson of  (2) 2 EN2021F9A16H BT B EEARAR NI
the Board, the chairperson of the Strategy and Investment Decision ER EER BBERERARZEGTEZE
Committee, and member of the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee TMEEXLZEeNIEEES T ERK-
and the Nomination Committee of the Company since 16 September
2021.

3) The resolution on removal of Mr. He from his positions was passed  (3) 7202146 518 H B 8 A 2 712020 F F ik = 18
at the 2020 annual general meeting of the Company held on 18 June FR2(202005EHRBEBAFAEG)LEBBET 2K
2021 (the “2020 AGM”), and Mr. He ceased to serve as an independent MEEBBENZERE EETBETARARARE Y
non-executive Director, the chairman of the Remuneration and Appraisal FHITHITES FHEERZESEREZE -
Committee, and member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination B ZESeRIRRZTESCTERK -

Committee of the Company.

(4) Ms. Zheng was appointed as an independent non-executive Director of ~ (4) BLLTER2020F ERRBFRAE LBEZERE
the Company at the 2020 AGM and as a member of the Audit Committee AABYFHTEZLTREEZERETZE
on the same date. %8~

(5) Due to working schedule and his desire to devote more time to  (5) EAERIFERETHEFERRNESZRREANEA

2021 Annual Report Kunming Dianchi Water Treatment Co., Ltd.

other businesses, Mr. Wan tendered his resignation to the Board on
28 September 2021, which has become effective on 12 November 2021.
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CHAPTER EIGHT

(6) Mr. Ong was appointed as an independent non-executive Director of
the Company at the 2021 second extraordinary general meeting held
on 12 November 2021 (the “2021 Second EGM”), and was appointed
as the chairman of the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee, and
member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee on the
same date.

(7) Mr. Na joined Kunming No. 1 Water Purification Plant in February 1990.

(8) Mr. Yao joined the management cashier office of Kunming City Drainage
Co., Ltd., a predecessor of the Group, in November 1995.

During the year until the end of the Reporting Period, the Company had
two senior management members. For details, please refer to “Chapter
Seven — Profiles of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management — E.
Senior Management” in the report.

The Company has received the confirmation of independence issued
by the independent non-executive Directors in accordance with Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and is of the opinion that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent of the Company.

Changes to the information of Directors

During the Reporting Period, the Company’s Directors, Supervisors
and senior management changed as follows:

1. Following the decision to arrest Mr. He Xifeng for his alleged
involvement in a bribery case, a resolution was passed at
the 2020 AGM of the Company to remove Mr. He from his
positions, and Mr. He ceased to serve as an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the Remuneration and
Appraisal Committee, and member of the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee of the Company.

2. Ms. Zheng Dongyu was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company at the 2020 AGM and
as a member of the Audit Committee on the same date.

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ENE EFEEHE
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Ms. Guo Yumei tendered her resignation to the Board on
10 August 2021. On 2 September 2021, the Company became
aware from public information that Ms. Guo was under
disciplinary inspection and supervisory investigation by the
Disciplinary Inspection Committee of the CPC of Kunming
City and the Kunming Municipal Supervisory Commission for
alleged serious violations of disciplines and laws. Following
the election of a new executive Director at the 2021 First EGM
of the Company, Ms. Guo ceased to serve as an executive
Director, the chairperson of the Strategy and Investment
Decision Committee, and member of the Remuneration and
Appraisal Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Zeng Feng was appointed as an executive Director of
the Company at the 2021 First EGM, and was appointed as
the Chairperson of the Board, chairperson of the Strategy
and Investment Decision Committee, and member of the
Remuneration and Appraisal Committee and the Nomination
Committee on the same date.

Mr. Johnson Wan was appointed as the chairman of the
Remuneration and Appraisal Committee, and member of
the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company on 18 June 2021. Due to working schedule and his
desire to devote more time to other businesses, Mr. Johnson
Wan tendered his resignation on 28 September 2021 to resign
as an independent non-executive Director the chairman of
the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee, and member
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of
the Company, and his resignation has become effective on
12 November 2021.

Mr. Ong King Keung was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director at the 2021 Second EGM, and was
appointed as the chairman of the Remuneration and Appraisal
Committee, and member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee on the same date.

Mr. Mei Yili ceased to serve as the deputy general manager of
the Company since 12 November 2021.

Due to work reallocation, Mr. Yang Yang has resigned his
position as the chief financial officer, Board secretary and joint
company secretary of the Company on 9 February 2021.
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Changes to the information of Directors and Supervisor during the
Reporting Period required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules are as follows:

1. Mr. Zeng Feng, an executive director of the Company, has
been serving as a director of Kunming Dianchi Investment
since December 2021.

2. Mr. Yin Xiaobing, an independent non-executive director of the
Company, ceased to serve as an independent non-executive
director of Yunnan Copper Co., Ltd. (£ & f 2 I 5 & R
2~ &l) from April 2021; ceased to serve as an associate
professor of the School of Business Administration and
Tourism Management and a tutor for master’s degree students
of Yunnan University (£ g X £) since July 2021; ceased to
serve as the director and chairman of the board of directors
of Kunming Zhongbei Financing Guarantee Company Limited
(EBF @& EREREMA A from December 2021;
ceased to serve as the director of Panlong State-owned
Assets Operation and Investment Management Company
Limted (EATRERBFEELLEREEERFERAQ
7)) from December 2021; has been serving as a director of
Kunming Dianchi National Tourism Resort State-owned Assets
Investment Management (Group) Co., Ltd. (& 8 JE b B X
REEREREEERELEERB(EB)AREML LA
since July 2021; and has been serving as a director of Kunming
Urban and Rural Industrial Development Co., Ltd. (& B 7 % 45
¥ M BMRE TR A)since December 2021.

38 Ms. Ren Na, a non-executive director of the Company, ceased
to serve as the deputy general manager of financial sharing
center of Yunnan Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd. (£ &
EBIREEKREEE R 2 A) from March 2022; and has been
serving as the financial controller of Yunnan Kunhua Hospital
Investment Management Co., Ltd. (ZB EEEBREEEE A
[& 2 &) since March 2022.
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4. Mr. Shao Wei, a supervisor of the Company, ceased to serve
as a director and the executive deputy general manager of
Kunming Petrochina Kunlun CNG Co., Ltd. (£ 8 & A Jf &
HHEHAKXARERR A from June 2021; has concurrently
served as the deputy general manager of Kunming Kangju
Industrial Development Co., Ltd. (EHFEEEXHE AR A
A]) since April 2021, and as the legal representative, executive
director and general manager of such company since October
2021; and concurrently served as an executive director and
deputy general manager of Kunming Yunzhong Recreation
Investment and Development Co., Ltd. (2R EFh FH K & 5
%% 5 R A 8]) since April 2021, and as the legal representative,
executive director and general manager of such company since
November 2021.

L. SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

None of the Directors or Supervisors of the Company has entered into
a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries that may
not be terminated by the employer within one year without the payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

M. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The details of the remuneration of the Company’s Directors,
Supervisors and senior management are stated in Note 12 to the
Financial Statements. The remuneration policies of the Directors of
the Company are set out in the section headed “Chapter 9 Corporate
Governance Report” of this report. The remuneration of senior
management comprises basic salary, performance-based bonuses and
other benefits. The basic salary is determined based on the position
of each senior management in the Company, performance-based
bonuses are determined based on the Company’s operating results
and other benefits include statutory pension, medical and housing
provident funds. The Board will conduct annual performance appraisal
for senior management and the amount of annual remuneration is
determined at the end of the year.

4, AAREENRELEENR2021F6AETH
EAERTABESEAXARABRAA
EE FHABKE: R2021F48BEMF
ERREEXERZEERAFAIRKLEL R
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HBIRIE - W R2021FE M B EBEZRFETE
REAHITES BEB-

L EEREERHSH

ARBFEEENEESHRERARAXENER
AAVEREIE - FRATEETTHECEER
BEIMNOBATRIENRE G L -

M. EE -BEERSHKEERERHH

ARRAEE EERSREEENFHEBERRN
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RESUSREEEEAFANBUET BREK
ERBARABLEEERE HABMAREZX
EMEZ BENIFEAEE EFTSeKHYSRE
BEEETFEARER FEFMSESEFE
HEE -
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The Company participates in a defined contribution social pension
scheme established by the PRC government and contributes a
certain percentage of the relevant employees’ salaries to the scheme.
Effective from 1 January 2014, the Group also operates an additional
employee pension plan (a corporate annuity system for purchase of
supplementary retirement insurance for our staff). Pursuant to such
additional scheme, the full-time employees of the Group in the PRC
are entitled to an additional pension aggregating to 8% of previous
year’s salaries. The Company calculates the interest so attributed
under the agreed percentage of annuity plan based on staff’'s service
years upon their retirement.

The Company’s employer contributions to the abovementioned
pension schemes vest fully and immediately with the employees when
contributed into the schemes. Accordingly, (i) for each of the two years
ended 31 December 2021, there was no forfeiture of contributions
under such pension schemes; and (ii) there were no forfeited
contributions available for the Company to reduce its existing level of
contributions to such pension schemes as at 31 December 2021.
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The scope of the remuneration of the senior management officers is as = A & 1 A 8 &) 3 B & B & 7 a0 T :

follows:
Range of remuneration (RMB’000) Number of Senior Management
HMEREAKETT) EREEABAY
0-500
500-1,000 2
Notes: 7
1. The remuneration in the above table is pre-tax remuneration. The 1. FREMABAFH FTHEEEE: TE(IE -
remuneration range includes salary (wages, bonuses and allowances, HeMER BIEAMN BAFEAEEXIAN
employee benefits), benefit plans (basic pension insurance and EAXABZRBICEFS) HM(EZIMAHE
enterprise annuity paid by the employer) and others (housing provident EAE: BERBMHEMESRE)
fund, medical insurance and other social insurance paid by the
employer).

N. INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS . #%-B (5 H LA MENE®E)
(AND SUCH ENTITIES CONNECTED REST S - RHS S HME %
THEREWITH) IN MAJOR TRANSACTIONS,

ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

At the end of 2021 or at any time during 2021, none of the Company’s 20214 fE 45 &= I 52021 F E N & T (A B 5 - A
Directors, Supervisors (and such entities connected therewith) had QN FffaE E £=5(vEEFEEN TR ) B ER
any individual interests, directly or indirectly, in the major transactions, ARG EXAMMBARNMRYNEENXS -
arrangements or contracts as established by the Company or any of its % ai A ¥ HiE kR IEHE A (T A A F| 25
subsidiaries.

O. INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND o EE BRENSEIHLHEMNRES
SUPERVISORS IN COMPETITIVE BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors, Supervisors nor K4 R HEE = EZNFEHHBHE A(E

their associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any competitive  z 8 | 7748 BI|) B2 (T (] /A & B 2 7% 5 12 = B 2 1B ik
interests in such business that is in direct or indirect competition with S w2 hiE AT MBI L5 -
any of the Group’s business.
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P. INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As of 31 December 2021, none of the Directors, Supervisors and
senior management had any interest or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which will have to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interest or short positions which they are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which will be required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
referred to therein or which will be required to be notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

As of 31 December 2021, none of the Directors or Supervisors or
their respective spouses or children below 18 was granted any right
to subscribe for the shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations or to have exercised any such rights.
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Q. INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL Q FERENEHZEZ
SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2021 and to the best knowledge of the Company’s  # £2021F12A31H - ARl EF A - 7
Directors, the following persons (except for the Company’s Directors, AT(ARAREZF HSTHRABHEZTHRINA K
the chief executives or Supervisors) had some interest or short 2 A BRHHERD T IEERBGES LB EEH)
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which ~ EXVE £2 %38 5 A A A 2 & # 57 o 1R B8(&E 5
had to be disclosed to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of K HI G FI)E36IEEARARTAFERNE LM P
Part XV of the SFO or to be recorded in the register maintained by the 28k 2 #EzF X & ¢

Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Approximate Approximate

percentage of percentage of

the total issued the relevant class

Number of shares share capital of of shares of

Name of shareholder Identity/Nature of interest ~ Class of shares (share) the Company (%) the Company (%)

X A EARNAHEE

BRTRALEN BERIR B

LEEe ] St/ R#ENE B &R Rp#E (R B4E 2 b (%) BaE D (%)

Kunming Dianchi Investment Co., Ltd. Beneficial Owner Domestic Shares 660,266,893 64.16% 95.82%
BRENREAEREERA) (long position)

ERERRABRAELARA E&BRA nE&ER 660,266,893 64.16% 95.82%
(#8)

Kunming Industrial Development & Interest of Controlled H Shares 59,000,000 5.73% 17.35%
Investment Co., Ltd. Corporation (long position)

EREXREREBRAELCLARA)

EREXRERABREALT RBEERER HER 59,000,000 5.73% 17.35%
(#8)

Kunming State-owned Assets Management  Beneficial Owner H Shares 39,790,000 3.87% 11.70%
and Operations Co. Ltd. (long position)

(BRATEEEEEREERRRMANT)

ERMEFAEEREEAREMALR ExBEA HIR 39,790,000 3.87% 11.70%
(#8)

Yunnan Provincial Investment Holdings Group  Beneficial Owner H Shares 64,770,000 6.29% 19.05%
Co,Ltd. (EMAREALREABRAR) (long position)

EHERERREEBRAA ExEAA Hik 64,770,000 6.29% 19.05%
(##)
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Approximate Approximate

percentage of percentage of

the total issued the relevant class

Number of shares share capital of of shares of

Name of shareholder Identity/Nature of interest ~ Class of shares (share) the Company (%) the Company (%)

N RN AEE

BETRALEY BRIR B

BREER St/ EERE B &R B #E (k) B4E 25t (%) B 4E 7 i(%)

Modern Orient Limited Interest of Controlled H Shares 47,754,000 4.64% 14.04%
Corporation (long position)
(Notes 2 and 3)

Modem Orient Limited REGERER HR& 47,754,000 4.64% 14.04%
(#2)
(Bi#2k3)

Beijing Enterprises Water Group Limited Beneficial Owner H Shares 47,754,000 4.64% 14.04%
(long position)
(Notes 2 and 3)

Beijing Enterprises Water Group Limited ExEAA H& 47,754,000 4.64% 14.04%
(#8)
(i#2k3)

Beijing Enterprises Investments Limited Interest of Controlled H & 47,754,000 4.64% 14.04%
Corporation (long position)
(Notes 2 and 3)

Beijing Enterprises Investments Limited RREEER H& 47,754,000 4.64% 14.04%
(#2)
(2R3

Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited Interest of Controlled H & 47,754,000 4.64% 14.04%
Corporation (long position)
(Notes 2 and 3)

Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited XEERER HiR 47,754,000 4.64% 14.04%
(#2)
(Wit2k3)

Beijing Enterprises Group Company Limited  Interest of Controlled H & 47,754,000 4.64% 14.04%
Corporation (long position)
(Notes 2 and 3)

Beijing Enterprises Group Company Limited 5 1 /% B i % HR& 47,754,000 4.64% 14.04%
(#8)
(W#2k3)

RRAHEBKBERMVPERLE 2021 FEHRE 115



CHAPTER EIGHT REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FNE EEEHS

Name of shareholder Identity/Nature of interest  Class of shares
BREE® Gh/EERE F 3 5 Bl
Beijing Enterprises Group (BVI) Interest of Controlled H i
Company Limited Corporation
Beijing Enterprises Group (BVI) REGERR HI&
Company Limited
Beijing Enterprises Environmental Interest of Controlled H &
Construction Limited Corporation
Beijing Enterprises Environmental REiEER HI&

Construction Limited

Notes:

Number of shares
(share)

B 8B ()

47,754,000
(long position)
(Notes 2 and 3)
47,754,000
(#8)
(Wi2k3)

47,754,000
(long position)
(Notes 2 and 3)
47,754,000
(#7)

(i #2k3)

Approximate
percentage of

the total issued
share capital of
the Company (%)
N
BRETRALEY
BAE 2 (%)

4.64%

4.64%

4.64%

4.64%

Approximate
percentage of

the relevant class
of shares of

the Company (%)
BANTHE
BRI R 4 8
B4E k(%)

14.04%

14.04%

14.04%

14.04%

The above information disclosed is primarily based on the information
provided by the website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the records of the register maintained by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

Pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, if certain conditions are fulfilled,
the shareholders of the Company are required to submit a form for
disclosure of interests. In the event of changes in the shareholding of
the shareholders of the Company, the shareholders will not be required
to notify the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange unless
certain conditions have been fulfilled, so that the latest shareholding of
the shareholders of the Company may be different from the shareholding
submitted to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

The 47,754,000 shares belong to the same batch of shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Company is not
aware of any other persons (other than the Directors, Supervisors and
chief executives of the Company) who have interest or short position in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company that are required to be
recorded in the register under the provisions of Section 336 of the SFO.
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CHAPTER EIGHT

R. MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not enter into any contracts
and there were no existing contracts in respect of the management and
administration of all or any significant portion of the business (except
for such service contracts entered into with the Group’s Directors,
Supervisors and all employees).

S. CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

We have entered into some transactions with the Controlling
Shareholder. In accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
such transactions have constituted the connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions of the Company.

1. Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions Subject
to the Reporting, Annual Review, Announcement, Circular

and Independent Shareholders’ Approval Requirements
Entrusted Operation and Management Framework Agreement

The Company disclosed in the Prospectus that the Company entered
into certain agreements with the Controlling Shareholder prior to the
Listing, pursuant to which the Company provided certain operation
and management services to the Controlling Shareholder in relation
to wastewater treatment plants, reclaimed water supply facilities and
running water facilities owned by the Controlling Shareholder. Such
operation and management service, depending on the development
stage of the project, typically includes operating, testing and adjusting
the equipment and facilities, arranging operating personnel and experts
to maintain the daily operation of such plants and ensure the effluent
quality meets the relevant discharge standard, setting up management
policies and operation guidelines, chemicals purchase, and sludge
transportation and disposal. The Company does not provide
construction service to the Controlling Shareholder. The transactions
continued during the Reporting Period.
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To regulate the terms and conditions under which the Company will
provide such operation and management services to the Controlling
Shareholder after the Listing, the Company entered into an entrusted
operation and management framework agreement with the Controlling
Shareholder on 25 April 2016 and 30 April 2019, respectively (the
“Entrusted Operation and Management Framework Agreement”)
with a term of three years each ending on 31 December 2021. The
Entrusted Operation and Management Framework Agreement may,
upon mutual written consent between the parties, be extended for
an additional term of three years, provided that such renewal is in
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations, and the Listing
Rules.

We provide our entrusted operation and management services in
relation to the wastewater treatment plants in two main stages, which
are prior to the wastewater treatment plant completing inspection and
acceptance formalities and entering commercial operations, being: (i)
the pre-trial operation stage; and (ii) the trial operation stage. If, after
the trial operation stage, the Company chooses not to acquire such
excluded business, the Company will continue to provide entrusted
operation and management services to the Controlling Shareholder.
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The Controlling Shareholder and the Company may enter into

separate independent service agreements and specify specific terms

of each transaction in accordance with the scope stipulated in the

Entrusted Operation and Management Framework Agreement to

regulate the transactions contemplated under the Entrusted Operation

and Management Framework Agreement. These individual service

agreements shall comply with the terms of the Entrusted Operation

and Management Framework Agreement and set out the specific

terms of each transaction. The price of operation and management

services under the Entrusted Operation and Management Framework

Agreement will be determined based on the following principles:

(1

2)

3)

the fees as prescribed by the PRC government, if any;

if there is a market price, it shall be executed at market price;
and

if there is no market price reference, the price is determined
based on reasonable costs + reasonable profit (not more
than 10%). Reasonable costs refer to the costs mutually
agreed through negotiation between the Company and
the Controlling Shareholder for actual expenses incurred
for provision of products or services under the Entrusted
Operation and Management Framework Agreement to the
Controlling Shareholder or the costs mutually agreed through
negotiation between both parties (including taxes and fees).
The reasonable profit was fixed at no more than 10%. On
the one hand, the Company considers that it is commercially
reasonable to adopt an overall margin for different types
of projects to be transacted under the Entrusted Operation
and Management Framework Agreement, which will allow
the Company to have more flexibility to negotiate with the
Controlling Shareholder regarding the pricing for individual
projects. On the other hand, the Company will ensure that the
overall profit margin for the transactions under the Entrusted
Operation and Management Framework Agreement will not be
lower than 8%. When determining the price and specific terms
of an individual agreement, the Company will strictly follow
relevant internal control measures to ensure that the price is
fair and reasonable, and the terms of individual agreement
conforms with the principles stipulated under the Entrusted
Operation and Management Framework Agreement.
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Under the Entrusted Operation and Management Framework
Agreement, we shall have the priority to be chosen as the provider of
operation and management services by the Controlling Shareholder,
provided that the terms of service and service fee offered by us are the
same as that offered by a third party or third parties. The Controlling
Shareholder may engage a third party or third parties for the provision
of operation and management services only if we fail to satisfy the
needs of the Controlling Shareholder, or if the terms of service and
service fee offered by such third-party service provider are more
favorable than those offered by us.

Individual Service Agreements

The Company and the Controlling Shareholder have entered into
individual service agreements in relation to the treatment plants
conducting the excluded business. Based on the water quality
standards, there are three individual service agreements, including
the Water Purification Plant Class | Category A Section Entrusted
Operation and Management Contract (/K E F{L i — RAZE LT

iE 1T E ¥ & [A)), which covers 7 plants with a designed capacity of
405,000 tonnes per day; the Entrusted Operation and Management
Contract for Water Purification Plant Ultra-Limit Phosphorus Removal
Upgrade and Transformation Project ({7K & /3 {t & B 1% [R 4 % 12 12
i B £ E1TE 4 [)), which covers 9 plants and 11 process
sections; and the Entrusted Operation and Management Contract for
Luolong River Wastewater Treatment Plant Water Quality Upgrade
Pilot Demonstration Project (()%& 88 )7 /5 /K f2 2 B K & 12 7 & B =
HHEEAETER
section. Such agreements are governed by the terms of the Entrusted

4 [A)), which covers 1 plant and 1 process

Operation and Management Framework Agreement. The management
fees under individual service agreements are calculated based on the
actual wastewater treatment volume multiplied by the price per cubic
meter. The price per cubic meter is based on the pricing principles
determined in the Entrusted Operation and Management Framework
Agreement. If there is a market price, it shall be executed at market
price. If there is no market price reference, the price is calculated
based on reasonable costs + reasonable profit (not more than 10%).
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Annual caps and actual transaction amount

During the Reporting Period, the annual cap for the transactions under
the Entrusted Operation and Management Framework Agreement for
2021 was RMB252,800,000, with the actual transaction value being
RMB213,172,000.

New Framework Agreement

As the Entrusted Operation and Management Framework Agreement
entered into between the Company and the Controlling Shareholder
shall expire on 31 December 2021, the Company and the Controlling
Shareholder entered into the new framework agreement (“New
Framework Agreement”) on 29 September 2021, pursuant to which
the Group will continue to provide operation and management services
to the Controlling Shareholder for three years from 1 January 2022
to 31 December 2024. The New Framework Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder have been approved by the
shareholders at the 2021 Second EGM convened on 12 November
2021.

The operation and management services provided by the Group to
the Controlling Shareholder and its subsidiaries include operation and
management services for wastewater treatment facilities, reclaimed
water supply facilities, and running water supply facilities. For all
service transactions under the New Framework Agreement, parties to
the transactions will enter into individual agreements in accordance
with the scope and principles specified in the New Framework
Agreement. Such individual agreements shall not violate the agreed
provisions under the New Framework Agreement. The price of the
operation and management services under the New Framework
Agreement shall be determined according to the standard prices
promulgated by the relevant government authorities for such services.
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2. Continuing Connected Transactions Subject to
the Reporting, Annual Review and Announcement
Requirements but Exempt from Circular and Independent

Shareholders’ Approval Requirements
Sludge Treatment and Disposal Agreement

On 17 November 2020, Kunming Dianchi Logistics, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company and Kunming Dianchi Investment entered
into the Sludge Treatment and Disposal Agreement pursuant to
which Kunming Dianchi Investment shall provide sludge treatment
and disposal services to Dianchi Logistics for three years ending
31 December 2022, for some of the sludge generated from wastewater
treatment plants of the Group in Kunming.

The service provided by Kunming Dianchi Investment to Kunming
Dianchi Logistics includes the treatment and disposal of sludge
collected by Dianchi Logistics and transported to Kunming Dianchi
Investment in respect of some of the sludge generated from various
wastewater treatment plants facilities of the Group in Kunming. The
costs of transporting the sludge shall be borne by Kunming Dianchi
Logistics.

The consideration of the services contemplated under the Sludge
Treatment and Disposal Agreement is the equivalent of the unit price
of sludge treatment and disposal per tonne (“Unit Price”) multiplied
by the quantity of sludge received by Kunming Dianchi Investment. As
of the date of this report, the Unit Price is determined with reference
to the market price which is at RMB120 per tonne (excluding tax).
The market price is determined with reference to prices charged in
contracts entered into by the Group and independent third parties
who provide similar services of the sludge treatment and disposal on
normal commercial terms to the Group. Kunming Dianchi Logistics took
reference from such relevant contracts entered into in the past year
and took the average of the relevant contractual prices in arriving at
the market price.

We expected that the local government will determine a
government-guided price in respect of the Unit Price of sludge
treatment and disposal. In the absence of a clear rollout timetable of
such government-guided price, the parties under the Sludge Treatment
and Disposal Agreement shall adhere to the market price for the time
being. Should the government-guided price become available, the
parties shall enter into a separate agreement in writing to adjust the
Unit Price.
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CHAPTER EIGHT

Annual caps and actual transaction amount

During the Reporting Period, the annual cap for the transactions
under the Sludge Treatment and Disposal Agreement for 2021
was RMB19,800,000, with the actual transaction value being
RMB14,466,000.

The Company has formulated the Regulations on Management of
Connected Transactions, and our relevant operation and management
departments regularly review whether the amount of connected
transactions incurred has exceeded the annual caps. In addition,
for individual service agreements under continuing connected
transactions, the Company has formulated the Contract Management
Regulations and takes various measures to ensure that the signing
of such individual service agreements comply with the terms of the
framework agreement, thereby ensuring that the Company’s connected

transactions are under proper control and supervision.

All the above connected transactions have complied with the relevant
requirements of the Listing Rules in respect of connected transactions.
Save as disclosed above, none of the related party transactions
disclosed in the Group’s financial statements are connected
transactions within the meaning of the Listing Rules.

3. Confirmation by the independent non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed each of the
aforementioned disclosed continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that the transactions have been conducted:

a. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

b. either on normal commercial terms or, if there are no sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favorable to the Group
than terms available to or from (as case may be) independent
third parties; and

(o} in accordance with the agreement governing the relevant
transactions, on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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4. Confirmation of Auditor

The Board has received a confirmation letter in relation to above
continuing connected transactions from Mazars CPA Limited
(“Mazars”), confirming with respect to the above continuing connected
transactions as at 31 December 2021 that:

a. nothing has come to the auditors’ attention that causes the
auditors to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Board;

b. for the transactions involving the provision of goods or service
by the Group, nothing has come to the auditors’ attention that
causes the auditors to believe that the transactions were not, in
all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group;

(o nothing has come to the auditors’ attention that causes the
auditors to believe that the transactions were not entered
into, in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing such transactions; and

d. nothing has come to the auditors’ attention that causes the
auditors to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have exceeded the annual cap.

Please refer to Note 38 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
prepared under the IAS for details of the significant related party
transactions. The information disclosure on connected transactions
and continuing connected transactions required by the Listing Rules
is set out in this chapter. Saved as disclosed above, it does not
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
of the Company or connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions not exempted from disclosure, and the Directors confirm
that during the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with the
disclosure rules under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in relation to
the above connected transactions and the related party transactions
set out in Note 38 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CHAPTER EIGHT

T. COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION
AGREEMENT

On 25 April 2016, the Company and Kunming Dianchi Investment, the
Controlling Shareholder, entered into the Non-competition Agreement,
whereby Kunming Dianchi Investment will not and will procure its
associated enterprises not to compete against the Group in respect
of the relevant business. Kunming Dianchi Investment will also grant
the Company the option to choose the new business opportunities,
the option regarding the acquisition of the retained business and new
business and the preemptive right to buy.

The independent non-executive Directors will be responsible for
examining, reviewing, considering and determining whether to adopt
and accept the new business opportunities referred to the Company by
Kunming Dianchi Investment or its subsidiaries, to exercise the option
for acquisition and the preemptive right to buy.

Kunming Dianchi Investment has committed that for the year
2021,
independent non-executive Directors have examined and reviewed

it has complied with the Non-competition Agreement. The

the implementation of the Non-competition Agreement during the year
of 2021 and have confirmed that Kunming Dianchi Investment was
fully complied with the agreement and there were no violations of
agreement.

U. RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFIT
PLANS

Details of the retirement and employee benefits plans of the Group are
set out in Note 10 to the Financial Statements.

V. COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Being a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, the
Company is always dedicated to maintaining the corporate governance
practices at a high standard. The Company has adopted the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the “CG Code”) and those set out
in the Corporate Governance Report as its own corporate governance
code. During the Reporting Period, the Company had established
various committees under the Board and formulated the relevant
corporate governance system in accordance with the provisions
contained in the CG Code.
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During the Reporting Period, the Company has been observing all
mandatory code provisions as stipulated in the CG Code (the version
as of 31 December 2021) except for provision A.4.2 (which was
renumbered as B.2.2 on 1 January 2022) (details of which are stated
in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 128 to 129 hereof).

W. PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on publicly available information and to the knowledge of
the Directors, there is sufficient public float of at least 25% of the
Company’s issued H Shares as at the Latest Practicable Date, which
is in compliance with the requirements of minimum public float of the
Listing Rules.

X. DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Company had made donations for
charity of RMB79,000 in an aggregate.

Y. PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Company had purchased and
maintained a group liability insurance for the Directors of (including
but not limited to) the Company and its “Associated Companies” (as
defined for such term under the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong)).

Z. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed the Financial
Statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards in 2021.
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CHAPTER EIGHT

AA. AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP (Special General
Partnership) and PricewaterhouseCoopers Certified Public
Accountants, being the Company’s domestic and international auditors
for the year 2018 respectively, retired at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 21 June 2019. On the same date, the Board has

been authorised to approve the appointment of Zhongshen Zhonghuan
Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership) and
Mazars CPA Limited as the domestic and international auditors of the
Company respectively.

At the 2020 AGM of the Company held on 18 June 2021, the Board
of Directors has been authorised to determine the domestic and
international auditors of the Company for the year 2021 and their
remunerations. After such annual general meeting, based on the
tender result of the Company, the Board of Directors approved the
appointment of Zhongshen Zhonghuan Certified Public Accountants
(Special General Partnership) and Mazars CPA Limited as the
domestic and international auditors of the Company respectively. The
domestic and international auditors of the Company remained the
same as those of the year 2020 without any changes.

Mazars CPA Limited is appointed as the auditor for the Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 prepared in
accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards. Such
Financial Statements prepared in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards as stated herein have been audited by
Mazars CPA Limited and a standard unqualified audit report has been
issued.

By order of the Board
Zeng Feng
Chairperson

Kunming, the PRC
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The Board of Directors of the Company has hereby submitted its
Corporate Governance Report for 2021 to the shareholders.

A. COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is mainly engaged in sewage treatment, reclaimed
water and running water supply and environmental protection related
industries and positions itself as a comprehensive service provider
of ecological and environmental protection and management with
international operation under the strategic guideline of “unitary
domination with diversified development”. The Company focuses on its
main business and intensively cultivates its existing businesses and
continuously optimise the extended development along the industrial
chain. At the same time, the Company attaches great importance to
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance. The Board is
responsible for leading and monitoring the Company’s strategic and
business development, compliance governance and cultural promotion
to ensure that the relevant strategies and culture are in line with the
Company’s development direction and that corporate governance
continues to be effective, so as to enhance shareholders’ value
and protect shareholders’ rights and interests and provide effective
guarantees for the Company’s business expansion, competitiveness
enhancement and sustainable development.

The Company has adopted the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and those set out in this
Corporate Governance Report as its own corporate governance code.
The Company has established and enhanced the corporate governance
structure in accordance with the Listing Rules and the CG Code and
has set up a series of corporate governance policies. The directors of
the Company believe that during the Reporting Period, the Company
has been observing all mandatory code provisions as stipulated in the
CG Code (the version as of 31 December 2021) except for provision
A.4.2 (which was renumbered as B.2.2 on 1 January 2022).
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Under code provision A.4.2, every director, including those appointed
for a specific term, should be subjected to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. As of the end of the Reporting Period,
the terms of office of the first Board and the board of Supervisors of
the Company have expired for 3 years, but the relevant nomination
work of relevant candidates has not yet ended. At the same time,
the Board considers the continuity of the Board and the board of
Supervisors of the Company. Under the relevant provisions of the
articles of association of the Company, if, upon the expiry of a
director’s term of office, a new director cannot be elected on a timely
basis, before the re-elected director commences his/her term of office,
such director shall continue to perform his/her duties in accordance
with the laws, administrative regulations, departmental rules and the
articles of association of the Company. Therefore, the Board considers
that deviations from provision A.4.2 of the CG Code will not have
a significant impact on the Group’s operation as a whole and the
Company will complete the relevant work as soon as possible.

The Board will examine and review, from time to time, the Company’s
corporate governance practices and operation in order to comply
with the relevant provisions under the Listing Rules and to protect
shareholders’ interests.

B. COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES DEALINGS BY THE DIRECTORS
AND SUPERVISORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own code of conduct for its directors,
supervisors and relevant employees (has the same meaning ascribed
to it under the CG Code) in respect of their dealings in the Company’s
securities. After making specific enquiries to all of the directors and
supervisors of the Company, the directors and supervisors of the
Company confirmed that they had strictly complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code during the Reporting Period.
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C. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
1. Board of Directors
a. Composition of the Board of Directors

During the Reporting Period, the Board comprises nine Directors,
including three executive Directors, three non-executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors.

During the Reporting Period, pursuant to Rules 19A.54 of the Listing
Rules, we have entered into a contract with each of our Directors in
respect of, among other things, compliance with relevant laws and
regulations, observance of the Articles of Association and provisions
on arbitration. Save as disclosed above, we have not entered into,
and do not propose to enter into, any service contracts with any of the
Directors or Supervisors in their respective capacities as Directors/
Supervisors (other than contracts expiring or determinable by the
employer within one year without the payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation)).

The Company complies with the requirement under the Listing
Rules that it has at least three independent non-executive Directors
(representing at least one-third of the Board), among whom, at least
one independent non-executive Director must have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. Moreover, after taking into consideration the
factors regarding the evaluation of the independence of independent
non-executive Directors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
the written confirmation of all independent non-executive Directors,
the Board of Directors believe that all of its independent non-executive
Directors are independent individuals. At the end of the Reporting
Period, none of the three independent non-executive Directors of the
Company had served the Company for more than nine years.
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As of the end of the Reporting Period, the composition of the Board is

as follows:

Name

e

Mr. Zeng Feng
ok 3

Mr. Chen

Changyong

REEXE

Mr. Luo Yun

BERE

Ms. Song Hong

RELHT

Ms. Ren Na
Efxt

Ms. Yu Yanbo
RERTT

Mr. Yin Xiaobing
FEALE
Ms. Zheng
Dongyu
Braxnt
Mr. Ong King

Keung
IRBEL

The biographies of the Directors and the relationships with each other
are set out in the section headed “Profiles of Directors, Supervisors

Age
ER

57
57

52

52

43

43

58

58

4
4

51
51

48

65

65

46

46

Sex

5

Male

Male

i)

Male

i)

Female

'

Female

L'

Female

'

Male

il

Female

Male
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Position

B fi

Chairperson; Executive Director

EZR UNESR

Executive Director and General
Manager

BOESRALE

Executive Director and Deputy
General Manager
BrEERE AR

Non-executive Director

EHTES

Non-executive Director

FHTER

Non-executive Director

EHTES

Independent Non-executive
Director

BIFHTES

Independent Non-executive
Director
BUFATES

Independent Non-executive
Director

BIFHTES

and Senior Management” of this annual report.

BEAREHAR EFSEXNT

Appointment date

ZEEH

16 September 2021
20214697168

Appointed as General Manager on 10 July 2019 and as
Executive Director on 19 June 2020

0195710 BZERREERN200F6A198EZ
ERUTES

Appointed as Deputy General Manager in January 2015 and
as Executive Director on 23 June 2016

WE5F1REZARBIBEERR2016F6ALBREEA
RUTES

23 June 2016
201667237

6 November 2020
2020511864

19 June 2020
202067197

23 June 2016

2016567237

18 June 2021

20214674180

12 November 2021

2021511 128
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Term

i

3 years

3%

3 years

3 years
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3 years

3%

3 years

3%

3 years

3%

3 years

3%

3 years
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3 years
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b. Job Duties and Authority of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors shall be accountable to the general meeting
and have the duty to report to the general meeting. The Board of
Directors shall be responsible for implementing the resolutions of the
general meeting, the formulation and review of corporate governance
policies and practices, the review and monitoring of the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the review and monitoring of the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the review of compliance with the Corporate Governance Code, etc.
The authority of the Board of Directors are expressly stated in the
Articles of Association of the Company and the major responsibilities
of the Board of Directors include: being responsible for convening
the general meeting, implementing the resolutions of the general
meeting, determining the operating plan and investment proposals of
the Company, setting up the annual financial budget proposal, final
accounts, profit distribution proposal, proposal for increase or decrease
of capital and others, deciding on the establishment of the Company’s
management authority, determining the appointment or dismissal
of general manager, deputy general manager and other senior
management officers, formulating the basic management system of the
Company and determining the establishment of the special committees
of the Board of Directors.

c. Job Duties and Authority of the Management

The management is responsible for the specific implementation
of the resolutions of the Board of Directors and the daily business
management of the Company. In accordance with the Articles
of Association of the Company, the major responsibilities of the
management include: to propose the Company’s operating plan and
investment proposal, to propose the plan of establishing the internal
management authority, to propose the basic management system of

the Company and to formulate the Company’s specific regulations.
2. Meetings of Board of Directors and General Meeting

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association of
the Company, meetings of the Board of Directors shall be convened
at least four times a year. The Chairperson is responsible for the
convening of the Board meeting and is responsible for preparing the
Board meeting agenda. A notice of regular Board meeting shall be
given to all Directors at least 14 days before the meeting is convened
pursuant to the requirements of the Code, and such notice shall state
the date, time and venue of the meeting to be convened and the format
to be adopted for such meeting. For other interim Board meetings,
reasonable notices shall be delivered to all Directors.
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In accordance with the provisions of the Listing Rules, in the event
that the Company decides to declare, propose or pay dividends, or it
shall pass at the meeting of the Board of Directors such resolutions
in respect of profits or loss for any year, half-year or other periods,
the Company must give a notice to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange at
least seven working days before the convening of such meeting and
must issue an announcement thereof.

Save for the circumstances where connected transactions are
reviewed and considered at a meeting of the Board of Directors as
required by the Articles of Association of the Company, meetings of the
Board of Directors shall be held only if half or more of the Directors are
present. Directors shall attend Board meetings in person. If a Director
is unable to attend a Board meeting for some reasons, he or she may
entrust another Director to attend the meeting on his or her behalf and
shall specify the scope of the authorisation in a power of attorney.
The secretary of the Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for
preparing and safekeeping the minutes of the Board meetings and
ensuring that the Directors can enquire about such minutes. During
the Reporting Period, the secretary to the Board of Directors of the
Company ceased to hold office and Mr. Chiu Ming King now acts as
the company secretary who provides relevant services to the Directors.

The Directors confirm that during the Reporting Period, the Company
has strictly complied with the provisions in relation to the meetings
of the Board of Directors. The Chairperson held a meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without presence of other
Directors during the year. During the Reporting Period, the Board
of Directors convened a total of 32 meetings. The attendance of the
meetings by the Directors was as follows:

FAE XERHRSE

ﬁfiﬁﬁ%ﬁi’&%*fﬁ*%%iiﬁ%

AR LBRBEMNFE FFEREMEMH
EWEMW%HW%KWE$@@%'Qﬂ%ﬁ
Eﬁﬂmi?%x¢ﬂt@1¢52%@ﬂ§%

BT IT A o

BRARERAENESEERWERSERNE
NI EEZESHEEABYBRESHEIAR
E=ZSRRREAEZTAALE WEK T8
B -AZEmEEKAR/HE Eﬁaﬁéﬁa$
HEREBE - 2PN EEGNERERENRE
EXFegai IMREFENEANZXSTCH -
BEHARAEFTSWERT BABEAREE
FERARAMWE AERESRHEABERE -

ﬁo

EEHR REPRN ARAERETEHRESS
EENAE EERENRFRNEBIYFRTES

ROTREHEMEFTESHNEZ -BEHR EF
SHARTRASH EFHREENBEROT

Number of meetings
attended/should

Name Position attend Attendance Rate
B/ rESm

2 B 4L = HE =

Mr. Zeng Feng Chairperson; Executive Director 13/13 100%

BEEEO EER WTESE

Mr. Chen Executive Director and General Manager 32/32 100%

Changyong

REBLE BITESFHREKE

Mr. Luo Yun Executive Director and Deputy General Manager 32/32 100%

BEXE BMITEERBI AR
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Number of meetings
attended/should

Name Position attend Attendance Rate
HEES

2 B 6L EE DS HEE

Ms. Guo Yumei® Chairperson; Executive Director 17/19 89.47%

FEHLL@ EER WITESE

Ms. Song Hong Non-executive Director 30/32 93.75%

RE X+ FMITES

Ms. Ren Na Non-executive Director 32/32 100%

EM L+ FHMITES

Ms. Yu Yanbo Non-executive Director 32/32 100%

REOR &+ FMITES

Mr. Yin Xiaobing Independent Non-executive Director 32/32 100%

FEKEE BUFRTESR

Mr. He Xifeng® Independent Non-executive Director 0/13 0%

8588 K E® BUFWITES

Mr. Johnson Wan®  Independent Non-executive Director 26/26 100%

EERZFHRE® BYEHITES

Ms.Zheng Dongyu® Independent Non-executive Director 19/19 100%

BRHLLO BUWITES

Mr. Ong King Independent Non-executive Director 6/6 100%
Keung®

THBEE® BYEHITES
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Notes:

(1M

(2

®)

4)

(5)

(6)

CHAPTER NINE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Upon approval at the 2021 First EGM, Mr. Zeng Feng was appointed
as an executive Director, the Chairperson of the Board, chairperson of
the Strategy and Investment Decision Committee, and member of the
Remuneration and Appraisal Committee and the Nomination Committee,
and participated in all Board meetings held after his appointment.

The resignation of Ms. Guo Yumei from her positions as an executive
Director, the Chairperson of the Board, the chairperson of the Strategy
and Investment Decision Committee, and member of the Remuneration
and Appraisal Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company took effect after the 2021 First EGM in which a new executive
Director was elected, and she was not required to participate in any
Board meetings held after the effective date of her resignation.

Based on publicly available information, Mr. He Xifeng was arrested
for alleged involvement in a bribery case, and the Company could not
get in touch with Mr. He and he could not perform his duties normally.
A resolution was passed at the 2020 AGM of the Company to remove
Mr. He from his positions as an independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee, and member
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company
with effect from the 2020 AGM, and he was not required to participate in
any Board meetings held after the effective date of his removal.

The resignation of Mr. Johnson Wan from his positions as an
independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the Remuneration
and Appraisal Committee, and member of the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee of the Company took effect after the 2021
Second EGM in which a new independent non-executive Director was
elected, and he was not required to participate in any Board meetings
held after the effective date of his resignation.

Ms. Zheng Dongyu was an independent non-executive Director newly
appointed after an approval had been given by shareholders of the
Company at the 2020 AGM, and she participated in all Board meetings
held after her appointment.

Mr. Ong King Keung was an independent non-executive Director newly
appointed after an approval had been given by shareholders of the
Company at the 2021 Second EGM, and he participated in all Board
meetings held after his appointment.

(2)

(3)

4)

(5)

(6)
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During the Reporting Period, one annual general meeting and two
extraordinary general meetings were held. Prior to the general meeting,
reasonable notice was given in strict accordance with the relevant
requirements of the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association, and
the chairpersons and members of the special committees were invited
to attend the meetings and individual resolutions were proposed on the

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERERRE

actual separate issues to be considered at the general meetings. The

attendance of the Directors was as follows:

Name

3

Mr. Zeng Feng”
L

Mr. Chen Changyong
BREBEX&E

Mr. Luo Yun
BELE

Ms. Guo Yumei®

BEHwELL®

Ms. Song Hong
R L+

Ms. Ren Na
FB &zt

Ms. Yu Yanbo
R 2+

Mr. Yin Xiaobing
FREIKEE

Mr. He Xifeng®
a1 45 88 % £ ©

Mr. Johnson Wan®

TRFRED

Ms.Zheng Dongyu®
B 25 22 + O

Mr. Ong King
Keung®
ITHBELEO
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Position

B A

Chairperson; Executive Director

EER HTESF

Executive Director and General Manager

HITESHRELHE

Executive Director and Deputy General Manager

HITEZEREIBEE

Chairperson; Executive Director

EER HTESF

Non-executive Director

FMITESE

Non-executive Director

FMITESE

Non-executive Director

FRITESE

Independent non-executive Director

BIUFHTES

Independent non-executive Director

BYFHTES

Independent non-executive Director

BYFHTES

Independent Non-executive Director

BUIFHTES

Independent Non-executive Director

BYIFHITES

p s o

AR <7

HEHAN ARAH
RERBRRARSE
REMBARER
R

P& B

Number of meetings

attended/should

attend

HEES

ERRY

2/2

3/3

3/3

1/2

1/3

3/3

3/3

3/3

0/1

2/3

2/3

1M

BRTIRBRRBFEFRE 2
cHIRERARE BRHA
g@@ﬁi%ﬁAﬁﬁﬂW/
EXERZEHE
%?%Wa%%im%%ﬂm%kﬁﬁﬁﬁf
EHFEEHENBERDT

TR RBRR R

RERRE L

Attendance rate

HE =

100%

100%

100%

50%

33.33%

100%

100%

100%

0%

66.67%

66.67%

100%
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Notes:

(1) Upon approval at the 2021 First EGM, Mr. Zeng Feng was appointed as
an executive Director, and attended the 2021 First EGM as a director
candidate and participated in the extraordinary general meeting held
after his appointment.

(2) Ms. Guo Yumei tendered her resignation to the Board on 10 August
2021. Her resignation took effect after the 2021 First EGM in which a
new executive Director was elected.

(3) Mr. He Xifeng was arrested for alleged involvement in a bribery case,
and the Company could not get in touch with Mr. He and he could not
perform his duties normally. A resolution was passed at the 2020 AGM
of the Company to remove Mr. He from his positions with effect from the
2020 AGM.

(4) Mr. Johnson Wan tendered his resignation to the Board on 28
September 2021. His resignation took effect after the 2021 Second EGM
in which a new independent non-executive Director was elected.

(5) Ms. Zheng Dongyu was an independent non-executive Director newly
appointed after an approval had been given by shareholders of the
Company at the 2020 AGM, and she participated in the 2020 AGM as a
candidate of Director and participated in the 2021 First EGM held after
her appointment.

(6) Mr. Ong King Keung was an independent non-executive Director newly
appointed after an approval had been given by shareholders of the
Company at the 2021 Second EGM, and he participated in the 2021
Second EGM as a candidate of Director.

3. Chairperson and President

During the Reporting Period, Company fully complied with the relevant
requirements that the roles of chairperson and chief executive officer
should be separated and should not be held by the same person under
the provision A.2.1 (which was renumbered as C.2.1 on 1 January
2022) of the CG Code. Currently, Mr. Zeng Feng is the Chairperson
of the Company and Mr. Chen Changyong is the general manager
(President) of the Company. The role of the Chairman was separate
from that of the general manager (President), and they performed
corresponding duties respectively in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations and provision of the Company’s Articles of Association.
The Chairperson will ensure that all the Directors are provided with
sufficient and reliable information in a timely manner required for

necessary analysis based on their expertise.

(2)

(3)

4)

(5)

(6)
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4. Appointment of Directors

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association of the
Company, the Directors shall be elected and appointed at the general
meeting for a term of three years, after which they may be re-elected.
The Company has formulated the procedures of such appointment. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying and nominating
new Directors after taking into account a number of factors including
the Board’s structure, diversity policy and facilitation of the Board’s
operations, before submitting them to the Board for consideration
and all newly nominated Directors must be elected and approved at a
general meeting. In nominating independent non-executive Directors,
in addition to the above factors, the Nomination Committee also places
emphasis on assessing the independence of the candidates to ensure
that the relevant independent non-executive Directors can make an
independent and professional contribution to the operation of the
Board. It also considers information on candidates’ directorships and
senior management positions in other companies, particularly other
public companies and listed companies, in order to assess whether
they have sufficient time to devote to the Company’s business.

Under code provision A.4.2 (which was renumbered as B.2.2 on 1
January 2022), every director, including those appointed for a specific
term, should be subjected to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. As of the end of the Reporting Period, the terms of office
of the first Board and the board of supervisors of the Company have
expired for 3 years, but new directors and supervisors have not been
elected, and the original directors and supervisors, before their posts
are taken up by the re-elected directors and supervisors, continued to
perform their duties. Therefore, the Board considers that deviations
from provision A.4.2 (which was renumbered as B.2.2 on 1 January
2022) of the Corporate Governance Code will not have a significant
impact on the Group’s operation as a whole.

4. ERE=E

BREARAEERTE EFANKRERG LEF
EFHA=F FERBT AFRNETEENEZMAE
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5. Remuneration of Directors

The Directors of the Company may receive basic salary, non-monetary
advantage, right to pension, bonuses, and compensations (including
such compensation provided due to the loss or termination of their job
duties or appointment). The remuneration standards of the Directors
are set by the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee based on the
principle of balancing the rights, responsibilities and benefits, taking
into account relevant laws and regulations, the industry standards, the
development stage of the Company and the duties and contributions of
the Directors. The Remuneration and Appraisal Committee will revise
the relevant standards in a timely manner in the event of significant
changes in industry standards and the development status of the
Company. When recommending the appointment of Directors and
senior management, the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee will
advise the Board on the remuneration packages of the candidates,
taking into account the candidates’ qualifications and expected
contribution to the Board based on the Company’s remuneration
standards.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company receive
their remuneration from the Company, whereby the Company shall
pay Mr. Yin Xiaobing and Ms. Zheng Dongyu an amount of pre-tax
remuneration of RMB150,000, respectively on a yearly basis, and
Mr. Ong King Keung (an independent non-executive Director in
Hong Kong) an amount of pre-tax remuneration of RMB220,000 on
a yearly basis. The remuneration is paid to each of the independent
non-executive Directors after deducting the relevant taxes and fees
during their respective terms of office in the year. The Company do not
provide performance-based equity remuneration to the independent
non-executive Directors. Travel and accommodation expenses
incurred for the Company’s Board meetings, general meetings and
the relevant activities organised by the Board of Directors attended
by the independent non-executive Directors shall be borne by the
Company. As for those non-executive Directors who do not take
any management job duties in the Company, they do not receive
their remuneration from the Company. The executive Directors who
undertake management job duties in the Company shall receive their
remuneration from the Company. The remuneration of all executive
Directors shall be determined pursuant to the standards as provided
in the “Measures Regarding Remuneration Management” of the
Company, and in particular, such remuneration shall include the basic
salary, performance bonus and other benefits. The basic salary is
determined based on the position held by an executive Director in the
Company and the performance bonus is determined subject to the
Company'’s operating results. Other benefits shall include the statutory
pension, medical and housing provident funds. Details in relation to
the remuneration of Directors are provided in Note 12 to the Financial
Statements.
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6. Training of Directors

The newly appointed Directors have all received comprehensive,
official and customised induction training upon their first appointments,
so that they can have adequate understanding of the Company’s
business and operation and be fully aware of their responsibilities and
duties under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Directors have participated
in the following training:

Director £=E

Mr. Zeng Feng (Chairperson) BEEEFR)

Mr. Chen Changyong (General Manager) PR & B k(4

Mr. Luo Yun BEXE

Ms. Song Hong Re L+

Ms. Ren Na EPM 2zt

Ms. Yu Yanbo R+

Mr. Yin Xiaobing FHE K R A

Ms. Zheng Dongyu B2 8 2+

Mr. Ong King Keung TR kL

A: Reading materials related to continuous compliance responsibilities,
corporate governance and other relevant topics

B: Reading newspapers, periodicals, newsletters of the Company and

updates on economy, general business and water industry, or materials
about Directors’ responsibilities and duties

7. Company Secretary and his training

%) and Mr. Chiu
Ming King (it8 B9 1) act as the company secretaries of the Company

During the Reporting Period, Mr. Yang Yang (15

and are responsible for facilitating the procedures of the Board of
Directors and facilitating the communication between the Directors and
between the Directors and shareholders and the management level.
In February 2021, Mr. Yang Yang resigned from all his positions with
the Company and Mr. Chiu Ming King continued to act as the company
secretary of the Company. The profiles of the company secretary are
stated in the section headed “Profiles of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management” in this report. During the Reporting Period, as the
company secretary, Mr. Chiu received professional training for no less
than 15 hours to update his technique and knowledge. Mr. Chiu’s main
contact with the Company is Mr. Zeng Feng, our Chairperson.

I 4% T2 )

6. EEEA

BUFZAESHERERERZARES 2@
TAREMAERFZABBI UERZES
BARRZEBREFDEEEZER YRS
ABERLELTRAAREREEREZITEERS
& o

HE2021F12A3MBLEFE - EFZ28 T HE

Duration of

Type of training training days

EAlER 1% A 3R B

A B 16

A B 20

A, B 20

A, B 20

A B 20

A B 20

A B 20
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A, B 15
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D. COMMITTEES UNDER THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Our Board of Directors delegates certain responsibilities to various

committees. In accordance with relevant PRC laws, regulations,
the Articles of Association of the Company and certain rules and
regulations, we have formed four committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee, the
Nomination Committee, and the Strategy and Investment Decision
Committee, and have expressly stated its terms of reference for the

committees in writing.

1. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company consists of three members, all of
which are independent non-executive Directors. During the Reporting
B k) (acting as
the chairman of the Audit Committee since 16 November 2018), Mr. He

Period, such members include Mr. Yin Xiaobing (F

Xifeng ({7 #5 %) (ceased to be an independent non-executive Director
and a member of the Audit Committee since 18 June 2021), Mr.
Johnson Wan (% %)% ) (ceased to be an independent non-executive
Director and a member of the Audit Committee since 12 November
2021), Ms. Zheng Dongyu (%5 % J&1) (acting as a member of the Audit
Committee since 18 June 2021) and Mr. Ong King Keung (£ %t 38)
(acting as a member of the Audit Committee since 12 November 2021).

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review
the financial information of the Company, review and supervise the
Company’s financial reporting process, financial control, internal
control and risk management systems, to supervise the Company’s
internal audit system and perform corporate governance duties, and
to oversee the audit process and to recommend the engagement
or replacement of external auditors. The Audit Committee is also
responsible for the communications between the internal and the
external auditors and performing other duties and responsibilities as
assigned by the Board.

As for the selection, appointment and dismissal of external auditors
or resignation of auditors, the Board and the Audit Committee have
reached a consensus.
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During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held 8 meetings, the
details of which are as follows:

On 3 February 2021, a meeting of the Audit Committee was held, at
which 2 proposals including the Communication with External Auditors
of the Company on the 2020 Annual Report were considered and
approved by the Audit Committee.

On 26 March 2021, a meeting of the Audit Committee was held, at
which 11 proposals including the Proposal on Report from the External
Auditors on the Audit of the Company’s 2020 Annual Results, the
Proposal on Audited Financial Statements in the Previous Year and
the Proposal on Profit Distribution Plan were considered and approved
by the Audit Committee.

On 16 April 2021, a meeting of the Audit Committee was held, at which
3 proposals including the 2020 Internal Audit and Improvement Works
of the Company and the 2021 Internal Audit Plan of the Company were
considered and approved by the Audit Committee.

On 5 August 2021, a meeting of the Audit Committee was held, at
which 2 proposals including the Proposal on the Proposed Appointment
of the Company’s Auditors for the year of 2021 were considered and
approved by the Audit Committee.

On 20 August 2021, a meeting of the Audit Committee was held, at
which 8 proposals including the Proposal on Report from the External
Auditors on the Review of the Company’s 2021 Interim Results,
the Proposal on 2021 Interim Results Report were considered and
approved by the Audit Committee.

On 16 September 2021, a meeting of the Audit Committee was held, at
which 3 proposals including the Proposal on Improvement Plan of Key
Tasks Audit, Assessment and Management for the year of 2020 were
considered and approved by the Audit Committee.

On 24 December 2021, a meeting of the Audit Committee was held,
at which 2 proposals including the Improvement of Audit Projects for
the year of 2020 and 2021 were considered and approved by the Audit
Committee.

On 31 December 2021, a meeting of the Audit Committee was held, at
which 2 proposals including the Proposal on Report from the External
Auditors on the Pre-Audit of the Company for the year of 2021 were
considered and approved by the Audit Committee.
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During the Reporting Period, the attendance of the meetings by the
committee members was as follows:

attend

R 2 0
Name A EE DS
Mr. Yin Xiaobing (Chairman) EKEE(FFZEF) 8/8
Mr. He Xifeng @ ﬁ% #BEE 0/3
Mr. Johnson Wan ERERE 6/6
Ms. Zheng Dongyu B 2 2+ 5/5
Mr. Ong King Keung T 5o A& 2/2
2. Remuneration and Appraisal Committee 2. HFMEEZEZEE S
During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration and Appraisal #
Committee of the Company consists of three members, including two & * H
independent non-executive Directors and one executive Director, TZEBBEZIFRNITERET-
and the committee shall be chaired by an independent non-executive T£E8-

NN

Director. The members include Mr. He Xifeng ({i] #% $) (chairperson,
ceased to serve as relevant position since 18 June 2021), Mr. Johnson
Wan (= % )2 ) (appointed as chairperson on 18 June 2021 and ceased
to serve as relevant position since 12 November 2021), Mr. Ong King
Keung (£ # 3%) (appointed as chairperson on 12 November 2021),
Ms. Guo Yumei (28 £ ) (ceased to serve as relevant position since
16 September 2021), Mr. Zeng Feng (& %% st ) (appointed on 16
September 2021) and Mr. Yin Xiaobing (F Bk %t 4 ).

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration and Appraisal
Committee are to formulate and review the policy and structure of the
remuneration for the Directors and senior management and advise
on the same to the Board, to make corresponding recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of each executive
Director and senior management, to establish the performance
evaluation standards, procedures and system, to annually evaluate
the performance of the Directors and senior management and make
corresponding recommendations to the Board, and to perform other
duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.
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During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration and Appraisal
Committee held 4 meetings, the details of which are as follows:

On 26 May 2021, a meeting of the Remuneration and Appraisal
Committee was held in the Company. The meeting considered a
proposal of determining the salary of the director candidates which
were approved by the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee. The
candidate’s remuneration plan will not take effect until the appointment
of director of the candidates is considered and approved by the general
meeting.

On 10 August 2021, a meeting of the Remuneration and Appraisal
Committee was held in the Company. The meeting considered a
proposal of determining the salary of the director candidates which
were approved by the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee. The
candidate’s remuneration plan will not take effect until the appointment
of director of the candidates is considered and approved by the general
meeting.

On 28 September 2021, a meeting of the Remuneration and Appraisal
Committee was held in the Company. The meeting considered a
proposal of determining the salary of the director candidates which
were approved by the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee. The
candidate’s remuneration plan will not take effect until the appointment
of director of the candidates is considered and approved by the general
meeting.

On 24 December 2021, a meeting of the Remuneration and Appraisal
Committee was held in the Company. The meeting considered a
proposal of the appraisal and realisation of the remuneration of the
person in charge of the Company for the year of 2020 which was
approved by the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee.
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During the Reporting Period, the attendance of the meetings by the
committee members was as follows:

Name 4

Mr. Ong King Keung (Chairman) THRABFLEE(EF
Mr. He Xifeng fo] £5 3% % 4

Mr. Yin Xiaobing FREIKEE

Mr. Johnson Wan ERERE

Mr. Zeng Feng #k st

Ms. Guo Yumei FEW/ELT

3. Nomination Committee

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee of the
Company consists of three members, including two independent
non-executive Directors and one executive Director, and the committee
shall be chaired by an independent non-executive Director. The
members include Mr. Yin Xiaobing (F B /K) (as the chairperson),
Ms. Guo Yumei (2f £ 18) (ceased to serve as relevant position since
16 September 2021), Mr. He Xifeng (fa] # #£) (ceased to serve as
relevant position since 18 June 2021), Mr. Johnson Wan (= & /%)
(appointed on 18 June 2021 and ceased to serve as relevant position
since 12 November 2021), Mr. Ong King Keung (E %i58) (appointed
on 12 November 2021) and Mr. Zeng Feng (% £ 5t 4 ) (appointed on
16 September 2021).

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to
make recommendations to our Board on the scale, structure, and
composition of the Board and on the nomination of Directors, to
review the Director and senior management candidates, to review the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors and the
Board diversity policy, and to perform other duties and responsibilities
as assigned by the Board.
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CEREREE
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0/1
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3. REZEEE
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During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held 6
meetings, the details of which are as follows:

On 9 February 2021, a meeting of the Nomination Committee was
held in the Company, at which 2 proposals including removal of Mr.
He Xifeng from his position as an independent non-executive Director
and relevant positions in the special committees under the Board were
considered and approved by the Nomination Committee.

On 26 March 2021, a meeting of the Nomination Committee was held
in the Company, at which 3 proposals of reviewing the scale, structure,
size and composition of the Board of the Company, assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors of the
Company and reviewing the diversity policy of the Board of the
Company and the progress on achieving the objectives set for
implementing the said policy were considered and approved by the

Nomination Committee.

On 26 May 2021, a meeting of the Nomination Committee was held in
the Company, at which 2 proposals of the change of an independent
non-executive Director and adjustment to the composition of certain
special committees under the Board of the Company were considered
and approved by the Nomination Committee.

On 10 August 2021, a meeting of the Nomination Committee was held
in the Company, at which a proposal of the change of an executive
Director was considered and approved by the Nomination Committee.

On 16 September 2021, a meeting of the Nomination Committee was
held in the Company, at which a proposal of nominating Mr. Zeng Feng
as the Chairperson of the Company was considered and approved by
the Nomination Committee.

On 28 September 2021, a meeting of the Nomination Committee
was held in the Company, at which a proposal of the change of an
independent non-executive Director was considered and approved by
the Nomination Committee.
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During the Reporting Period, the attendance of the meetings by the
committee members was as follows:

Name 2

Mr. Yin Xiaobing (Chairman) BEKEE(FAFE
Mr. He Xifeng @ ﬁ% % 5E &

Mr. Johnson Wan ERERE

Mr. Zeng Feng B A

Ms. Guo Yumei EIE S R g

4. Strategy and Investment Decision Committee

During the Reporting Period, the Strategy and Investment Decision
Committee of the Company consists of three members, including two
executive Directors and one independent non-executive Director, and
the committee shall be chaired by an executive Director. The members
include Ms. Guo Yumei (3 X #§) (chairperson, and ceased to serve
as relevant position since 16 September 2021), Mr. Zeng Feng (&
#2) (chairman, appointed on 16 September 2021), Mr. Luo Yun (% &)
and Mr. Yin Xiaobing (3 & 7k ). Except for Mr. Yin Xiaobing, who is an
independent non-executive Director, all other members are executive
Directors.

The principal responsibilities of the Strategy and Investment Decision
Committee are to conduct studies and make recommendations to the
Board on the long-term development plan and strategies, the significant
investment or financing plans of the Company, and significant capital
investment for operation projects, to review the implementation of
those investment and financing plans, and to perform other duties and
responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

EAE EXERERE
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attend Attendance rate
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EHERH HEE
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During the Reporting Period, the Strategy and Investment Decision
Committee held 3 meetings. Details are as follows:

On 8 January 2021, a meeting of the Strategy and Investment Decision
Committee was held in the Company which discussed and reviewed
2 proposals concerning the investment plan of the Company for 2021
and the financing plan of the Company for 2021 and were approved by
the Strategy and Investment Decision Committee.

On 13 December 2021, a meeting of the Strategy and Investment
Decision Committee was held in the Company which discussed and
reviewed the proposals concerning the implementation of financing
plan of the Company for 2021 and the financing plan for 2022 and
were approved by the Strategy and Investment Decision Committee.

On 24 December 2021, a meeting of the Strategy and Investment
Decision Committee was held in the Company which discussed and
reviewed the proposal on the Company’s proposed acquisition of
assets.

During the Reporting Period, the attendance of the meetings by the
committee members was as follows:

Name A

Mr. Zeng Feng (Chairman) BEEEEFZE)
Mr. Luo Yun BELEAE

Mr. Yin Xiaobing FEAKEE

Ms. Guo Yumei FEB/L T
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E. NOMINATION POLICY OF DIRECTORS,
BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY AND DIVERSITY
ANALYSIS

According to the Company’s Articles of Association and the relevant
nomination system of directors, the Nomination Committee provides
consultation to the Board with respect to the nomination of Directors.
It will first consider and determine the candidates for nomination, then
make recommendations to the Board. The Board will decide whether
to propose such candidate to the general meeting for election. In
the course of selecting candidates of new directors, the Nomination
Committee and the Board will consider the cultural, educational
background, professional experience and gender of relevant parties
and existing composition of the Board, etc. in accordance with the
Diversity Policy of Members of The Board of Directors. They will also
consider the business operation models. The final decision will be
based on the nominated candidates who will bring about benefits
and contributions to the Board. When nominating independent
non-executive Directors, in addition to considering relevant elements
of the Board’s diversity policy, the independence of candidates
is checked and the independence of independent non-executive
directors is assessed annually. Details of the appointment of directors
are set out in the section headed “C. BOARD OF DIRECTORS - 4.
Appointment of Directors” above.

For purposes of reaching a sustainable balanced development, the
Company has regarded the increasing diversity of the members of
the Board of Directors as the key element that supports the Company
to achieve its strategic objective and to maintain the sustainable
development.

The Company has formulated the Diversity Policy of Members of The
Board of Directors, the contents of which include:

. When the Company is establishing the composition of the
members of the Board of Directors, it will take into consideration
from different aspects and achieve the diversity of the member
of the Board of Directors. Such aspects shall include but is not
limited to sex, age, cultural and educational background, races,
professional experience, technique, knowledge and term of
service. All the appointment for the members of the Board of
Directors are made on the principle of recruiting meritocratic
professional. Meanwhile, the candidates are selected based on
objective conditions, fully taking into consideration the benefits
brought by the diversity of members of the Board of Directors.
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. The Company’s selection of candidates will be subject to
a series of standards regarding diversity, including but not
limited to sex, age, cultural and educational background, races,
professional experience, technique, knowledge and term of
service. The final decision will be made based on the strength
of the candidates and such contribution they can make to the
Board of Directors.

The Nomination Committee has selected new Directors pursuant to
the requirements of the Diversity Policy of Members of the Board
of Directors, while a special meeting was held during the Reporting
Period to review the implementation and progress of the Diversity
Policy of Members of the Board of Directors, with a view to achieving
the objective of diversifying the members of the Board of Directors.

The composition of the Board of Directors, the background of its
members and procedures of selection of new Directors during the
Reporting Period are in line with the requirements of the Diversity
Policy of Members of the Board of Directors. At the end of the
Reporting Period, an analysis of diversification of the Board of
Directors is as follows:

Item Category

HH 1]

Gender Male

1t Bl Eog
Female
M

Age 40 to 50

F i 407% £ 50 5%
51 or above
515% A £

Post Executive Director

B 157 HITES
Non-executive Director
FEMITES
Independent non-executive Director
BUEMITES

el

ARBEBAEBU-—RIZLER AR
CEBEBRETERRER - FE - X RHE
R BR FELR HE ABRR
TH ZERBRABNRERATAES
gRENFEB M ERE -

I i

S Wb B Bt

.

TR

REZBECEBREZTEEZ L ELHENER |
BHESZS AEERSHANERATEMNEER
BEZEZTERROATREEBRR  UHZE
HEZEKEZTLAER

BHEMNEZTEgNEAXN KESSEBENES

WEFHAEZEZNILBRENER -BERSE
MR BELZEZTbkoBOT:

Percentage in the

members of the

Number Board of Directors

A8 HESEEHRE LA

5 56%

4 44%

4 44%

5 56%

3 33%

3 33%

3 33%
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Percentage in the
members of the

Item Category Number Board of Directors
T H A A# EESFERELH
Length of service as Board  Within 1 year 3 33%
members
TEAREEZENEFE 1R
1 to 3 years (including 3 years) 3 33%
1E3F(F3%)
3 to 6 years 3 33%
3FEE6F
Experience in water 1 to 5 years (including 5 years) (5) 56%
treatment industry
KIBITHER R 1E55(F5%)
5 to 10 years (including 10 years) 1 1%
5E10F (210%)
10 years or more 3 33%
10F M £
Major or expertise Engineering, project and operational management 3 33%
HEYREK T2 BEAREZLER
Finance and accounting (5) 56%
cmke
Law 1 11%
ER

In terms of employee diversity, as of 31 December 2021, the Company 7 & 2 Ztib A E » 8 £2021F 128318 & 7
had a total of 1,403 employees, of which 919 were male and 484 B T #1403 A HEFBHEETMOA L MHET
were female, accounting for 65.5% and 34.5% of the total number of 484 A » % Bl 15 48 A & #965.5% * 34.5% * B A A &
employees respectively. Due to the special nature of the Company’s fT¥HNE KT ERAILEEE TP —GEERE
industry, there is a greater proportion of male employees in front-line AR BHE THH B A 3 —EEERA -
production operations in the Company’s production units, while in  Hfi@ZE=Z8 2L MO FEME - Z ik

non-front-line production positions, we will attach importance to gender
balance and diversity.
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F. RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL

CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems of the Group. The Board
has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems of the Group in order to
protect the interests of shareholders and the Group as a whole and
to ensure strict compliance with relevant laws, rules and regulations.
The systems include a defined management structure with limits of
authority, and are designed for the Group to identify and manage the
significant risks to achieve its business objectives, safeguard its assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance
of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or for publication, and ensure compliance
with relevant laws and regulations. The systems are designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure in the Group’s operational systems and in the achievement of
the Group’s business objectives. Internal control and risk management
systems are reviewed annually and adjusted in a timely manner in line
with the Company’s business development and operations to ensure
their continued effectiveness
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We have established a set of consolidated risk management policies
and measures for purposes of identifying, evaluating and managing
the operating risk. Our Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring
the Group’s financial control, internal control procedures and risk
management system and reporting on the same to the Board. The
internal audit department formulates an annual internal audit plan
and establishes a regular internal audit mechanism, a dynamic
management mechanism for internal audit and rectification, and a
mechanism for the coordinated use of audit results. Regular reports
on audits and rectification are made to the Audit Committee and the
Board of Directors. We have appointed an external long-term legal
advisor to discuss and provide professional guidance on issues
that may arise in the Company. The Company has integrated its
compliance management and review responsibilities into the daily
compliance management work of all functional departments, and has
proactively carried out compliance risk identification and potential
hazard investigation. The Company has carried out coordinated,
organised and planned management activities, including system
formulation and implementation, risk identification, compliance review,
risk response, responsibility investigation, assessment and evaluation,
and compliance training, with comprehensive coverage and clear
responsibilities.

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems. The internal
audit department reviewed, followed up and reported to the Audit
Committee from time to time on the operational and financial reports,
compliance and risk management reports, budgets and business plans
provided by the management. The Audit Committee also regularly
reviews the Group’s performance, risk management and internal
control systems and discusses on the same with the Board. The Board
has stated that it has conducted an audit and review of the Company’s
risk management and internal control system for the year ended 31
December 2021 and no significant issues have been identified and the
Board considers that the risk management and internal control system
is effective and adequate to effectively prevent significant risks in
operations.
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The major characteristics of the risk management and internal control
systems are: the Company has consolidated the risk management and
internal control systems and has formulated the systematic framework
from the level of the Company and business. Under such framework,
a mutual mapping between key risk points and control points is
established by setting up risk control matrix in order to implement
the control measures in relation to risk identification, evaluation and
addressing in various business processes within the enterprise. As
a result, risk management and internal control can be merged in
organic manner, significantly enhancing the enterprise’s capability in
risk precaution and control and its control means. The Company shall
classify the internal control system into three layers, namely the basic
management system, specific regulations/management measures
and detailed rules for implementation according to the defined subject
matter, the level involved and the restriction scope. The effectiveness
of various rules and regulations shall be evaluated each year and
annual construction plan of the system shall be devised in accordance
with the evaluation results and the regulatory requirements and
based on the business need of the Company and such rules and
regulations that need to be established, amended and abolished shall
be expressly provided. Meanwhile, by referencing to the framework
requirements of the internal control elements and the logic relationship
between Company’s systems, the Company’s rules and regulations
shall be classified pursuant to the business types, for purposes of
establishing procedures for and standardising the management of the
Company’s rules and regulations. The Company highly values the
dynamic monitoring of risk management. Based on the changes of the
internal and external environments of the Company, risk information
so collected is to be analysed; the impact created on the Company’s
operating process by various risks and the possibility of the loss
caused by such various risks are to be quantified; such risks in relation
to achieving the goal for internal control during operating activities are
timely identified and analysed by systems; and the Company’s risk
tolerance and risk addressing strategies are reasonably confirmed.
The Company seriously concerns about the management and
control of major risks, focus on the major risks evaluated, refines the
solution thereof; analyses in depth the root cause for the generation
of the major risks, causes of risks, possible impacts and addressing
strategies to be adopted; and formulates practicable measures for risk
management and control.
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The procedures by which the Company examines the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal supervision system shall include:
to formulate an appraisal proposal, to establish appraisal team, to
implement on-site test, to identify and control defects, to summarise
and compile the appraisal results, and to prepare an appraisal
report. The Company shall authorise the internal audit department
to be responsible for the specific organisation and implementation
of the appraisal on internal control. The Company shall put forward
some confirmed opinions after conducting comprehensive analysis
on the defects in internal control. Then, the Company shall make a
final confirmation after it has carried out the review pursuant to the
stipulated authority and procedures and shall classify such defects
as material defects, important defects and general defects based
on the impact produced by such defects. Such confirmed opinions
shall be proposed in form of a written report to report to the Board of
Directors and the Operating Meeting. Material defects shall be finally
confirmed by the Board of Directors. The Company shall timely adopt
the corresponding strategies with respect to the material defects and
important defects, and practicably control risks within the range that
the Company can undertake. In addition, the Company shall pursue
the liabilities of the relevant department or personnel.

We have also appointed and reappointed external professional
advisors (including the auditor, legal or other advisors) for provision of
professional advice and continuous guidance on how we observe all
applicable related laws and regulations.

For purposes of such various risks we are exposed to during our
operation, we focus on the strengthening of the internal control and
risk management systems. We have implemented many policies
and measures in order to ensure that effective risk management is
conducted in respect of the operation, financial reports and records,
fund management and the compliance with applicable laws and
regulations of Hong Kong and China. We attach importance to various
environmental, social and governance risks and the Board and
management have overall responsibility for these risks. In addition, the
Company has a safety management department to regularly manage
and monitor the environmental and social risks faced by the Company
and has established a series of systems and contingency management
plans and is responsible for reporting to the Audit Committee and the
Board when there are significant changes to the relevant risks so that
timely effective measures can be taken to reduce the risks and mitigate
the damage in a timely manner.
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In addition, the Company places a great emphasis on inside
information management. For the purposes of strengthening the
confidentiality of inside information, maintaining the fairness of
information disclosure and protecting the legal interests and rights
of the general investors, the Company formulated the Information
Disclosure System of Kunming Dianchi Water Treatment Co., Ltd. ({(&
B A K 5 AR 19 B IR A 7] {5 B # B& %l £ )), the Internal Reporting
System of Material Information of Kunming Dianchi Water Treatment
Co., Ltd. KEBREMKBIRMNBRAFTNEANEREAMBHSE B E))
and other internal documents and formed the lawful and compliant
information disclosure mechanism in accordance with the requirements
of relevant laws and regulations, the Listing Rules and other regulatory
documents. During the Reporting Period, the Company carried out
information disclosure strictly pursuant to the regulatory requirements
and expressly stipulated that the Board of Directors shall manage in a
uniform manner and be responsible for the information disclosure. The
Chairperson is the first officer in charge of the information disclosure
and the Company Secretary is the main person in charge of the
Company’s information disclosure. Moreover, detailed provisions in
respect of the managerial responsibility of the Directors, Supervisors,
senior management and officers in charge of branches or subsidiaries
shall be made.

G. DIVIDEND POLICY

According to the Company Law in China and the Articles of Association
of the Company, the Company can only pay dividends from the
after-tax profits after making the following distribution:

. Compensation for accumulated losses (if any);

. Allocating the equivalent of 10% of after-tax profits to the
statutory reserve; and

. The amount (if any) approved by the shareholders at the
general meeting will be allocated to arbitrary provident fund.

After the statutory reserve fund has reached and maintained at 50%
or above the registered capital, no further transfer is required. The
Company’s distributable profit in relation to the above transfer and
the Company’s dividend distribution are expected to be paid by
after-tax profit determined in accordance with the Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles in China or IFRS, whichever is lower.
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All shareholders of the Company are entitled the same right to receive
dividends and distributions distributed by shares or cash.

The proposal of payment and the amounts of dividends will be made at
the discretion of the Board and will depend on the Company’s general
business condition and strategies, cash flows, financial results and
capital requirements, the interests of the Company’s shareholders,
taxation conditions, statutory and regulatory restrictions, and other
factors that our Board deems relevant. Any dividend distribution shall
also be subject to the approval of our shareholders in a shareholders’

general meeting.

H. THE DIRECTORS’ LIABILITY TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has not encountered any significant and uncertain
events and circumstances that might produce significant doubts on
the Company’s capability of its continuous operation of business. The
Board of Directors has confirmed to undertake the liabilities for the
preparation of the Group’s financial statements as of 31 December
2021.

l. REMUNERATION OF AUDITOR

Auditors engaged by the Company shall be openly selected and
nominated by the Board and approved by or with the authorisation of
the general meeting of shareholders. Their remuneration is determined
by the Board as authorised by the general meeting of shareholders.
To ensure better alignment between the Company’s audit works in the
PRC and overseas, the Company appointed Mazars CPA Limited as
its international auditor and engaged Zhongshen Zhonghuan Certified
Public Accountants (Special General Partnership) to handle its PRC
domestic audit work in 2021. During the year, the Group paid RMB3.6
million to auditors for their audit service for the Group, and paid nil for

their non-audit service.
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J. SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

1. Shareholders have the right to initiate and convene the

extraordinary general meeting

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association of the
Company, the shareholders shall be entitled to the following right: A
shareholder solely holding or shareholders aggregately holding more
than ten percent (inclusive) of shares having voting powers in the
Company may sign a written request to suggest the Board of Directors
for convening an extraordinary shareholders’ general meeting.

2. Shareholders have the right to submit an interim draft

resolution to the Company at the general meeting

It is also provided in the Articles of Association of the Company that
when the Company is to convene a general meeting, a shareholder
holding more than three percent (inclusive) of shares having voting
powers in the Company shall have the right to submit an interim draft
resolution in writing to the Company. Being located at the Company’s
registered office in China and the Company’s headquarters, the Office
of the Board of Directors shall be responsible for handling with such
draft resolution submitted by such shareholder. Should some items in
such interim draft resolution fall into the scope of the job duties of the
general meeting, the Company should have such items included in the
agenda of such meeting.

3. Shareholders are entitled to the inquiry right

As for the inquiry required to be concerned by the Board of Directors,
the shareholders may send an email to the email address at
dshbgs@kmdcwt.com for the Board of Directors or a letter to the
following address. The Company will timely process all the inquiries in
an appropriate manner:

No. 7 Water Purification Plant

Dianchi Tourist Resort

Kunming City, Yunnan Province, the PRC
(For the attention of the Board)
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K. COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company believes that effective communications with shareholders
is essential to enhancement of investors relation and enhancement of
investors’ understanding of the Company’s business and strategies.
The Company highly values shareholders’ opinions and suggestions,
encourage shareholders to attend general meetings to ensure a high
level of accountability and to keep them informed of the Company’s
strategy and objectives. It also carries out investor relations activities
through a combination of channels such as setting up an investor
hotline, emails and holding results presentations for shareholders
to express their views, in order to keep the communications with
shareholders, and to timely satisfy the reasonable demands of all
shareholders.

L. INVESTORS RELATION

The Company believes that good investors relation may help build
more stable and consolidated shareholder base. As a result, the
Company has been and will be dedicated to maintaining a higher
degree of transparency, observing the Listing Rules and timely
providing investors with comprehensive and accurate information,
and constantly performing the obligation of the listed company
on information disclosure. Investors can download and review
the Company’s regular reports, financial statements and trading
announcements on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

Currently, although the Company has reduced direct face-to-face
communication with investors due to the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic, it actively strengthens its communications with investors
via investor special line, conference calls, online roadshows, making
voluntary information disclosure and others so as to enable investors
to understand the corporate strategy and business operation of the
Company in a timely manner.

The Company will continue to maintain open-up and effective investors
communication policies for the purposes of timely providing investors
with the latest information on the Company’s business subject to the
compliance with the relevant regulatory provisions.
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M. ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

During the Reporting Period, due to the change of the company name
of one of the promoter shareholders of the Company, the name of such
promoter shareholder involved in the Articles of Association has been
amended in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations and the
relevant provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company. For
details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 28 April
2021. The proposed amendment to the Articles of Association was
approved by way of a special resolution at the 2020 AGM.

During the Reporting Period, save for the above amendments, there
were no other amendments to the Articles of Association.

N. ENVIRONMENTAL,
GOVERNANCE REPORT

SOCIAL AND

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with the
provisions of “Comply or Explain” (“7~ # =5} 5t fif #2”) stated in the
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Reporting Guide. The
Environmental, Social and Governance Report is set out in Chapter 13
of the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this annual
report.
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O. CORPORATE CULTURE

Corporate culture is the soul of an enterprise, one of the cornerstones
for the implementation of corporate strategies and a source of vitality,
health and sustainable development. The Company attaches great
importance to the creation and inheritance of corporate culture. The
Company upholds the business philosophy of “Consummation and
Sustainability”, positions itself as a comprehensive service provider
of ecological and environmental protection and management with
international operation, and adheres to the value of “Advocating
science, daring to be the first, pursuing excellence, serving
customers”, with the mission of unleashing its own potential,
actively expanding the domestic and international ecological and
environmental protection and management markets, providing basic
protection and professional services for environmental protection
and management, ecological civilization construction and economic
and social development, and creating wealth for shareholders and
value for society. As a state-owned listed enterprise, we adhere to the
principle of “developing an enterprise with integrity and creating our
culture with virtues”, and adopt integrity and self-discipline as the code
of conduct for all management and staff. The Company’s corporate
culture is communicated through a top-down approach to ensure that
it is in line with the Company’s development strategy and development
stage. The Company conducts annual training for its staff to enable
them to understand the corporate culture and their code of conduct
at work, so as to achieve unity and clarity of purpose and to ensure
that the Company’s business strategies and plans are successfully
implemented.
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I COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD OF —- EEg4mK
SUPERVISORS

As of 31 December 2021, the Board of Supervisors of the Company  # £2021F12A31H AR A& = R E3RE S
consists of three Supervisors, of whom one is a shareholder HEF  1ZBRERREE 28R IRREEZ -2 F
representative Supervisor and two are employee representative  {FHi3 4 - Al @ E@E AL o

Supervisors. The Supervisors are appointed for a term of three years

and may be re-elected.

The composition of the Board of Supervisors of the Company is as AR aWESZESMHAK W T :

follows:

Name Position Appointment date

2 B 2 ZITHH

Na Zhigiang Chairman of the Board of Supervisors; 19 January 2011
Employee Representative Supervisor

BB & 5 EFEgIFE BRIARRES 2011491 A19H

Yao Jianhua Employee Representative Supervisor 19 January 2011

o BIRKES 201141 A19H

Shao Wei Shareholder Representative Supervisor 7 May 2016

B & BRRRKES 20165 A7H

Il. MEETING OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS —*° EZggZBR

In 2021, the Board of Supervisors of the Company convened 30 2021 ARAREES AR TI0OREFEEH
meetings of the Board of Supervisors in total. All meetings were FTAEHBREFERTET REHAEEXR -
conducted in accordance with relevant procedures and regulations and SN EFHF &R BT ROT

all resolutions were legal and valid. The attendance of the supervisors

is as follows:
Number of meetings attended/
Name should attend Attendance rate
4 HE TESME#ERE HEE
Na Zhigiang 30/30 100%
BB 7 o
Yao Jianhua 30/30 100%
ok ==
Shao Wei 30/30 100%
B &
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In 2021, the Board of Supervisors of the Company, by attending
the Board meetings and general meetings, diligently performed its
supervisory duties to effectively safeguard the interest of the Company
and the minority shareholders. During the year, the Company managed
its operations in accordance with the Company Law, the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
the Articles of Association of the Company and the relevant regulations
of the higher state-owned assets regulatory authorities, with lawful
decision-making procedures and a relatively sound internal control
system. The resolutions of the Board of Directors and the general
meeting were in compliance with the relevant laws and regulations and

have been effectively implemented.

. MAJOR WORK IN 2021

(1) Monitoring the operation of the Company

The members of the Board of Supervisors of the Company review
the proposals submitted to the Board of Directors and the general
meetings for consideration and examined the operating activities
of the Company by attending all the Board meetings and general
meetings of the Company. The Board of Supervisors believes that
the operating activities of the Company are in compliance with the
provisions of the relevant laws and regulations of the state and the
Articles of Association, the decision-making procedures are legal,
and the Company has not engaged in any operating activities that are
in violation of laws and regulations or exceed the scope of business
operation as prescribed in laws and regulations.

(2) Monitoring the Directors and senior management of the

Company for their performance of duties

The members of the Board of Supervisors of the Company monitor the
Directors and senior management of the Company performing their
duties by attending the Board meetings, reviewing various proposals of
the Board and examining the daily operation and management of the
Company.
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During the Reporting Period, on 2 September 2021, Ms. Guo
Yumei, the resigned former Chairperson of the Company, was
under disciplinary inspection and supervisory investigation by the
Disciplinary Inspection Committee of the CPC of Kunming City and
the Kunming Municipal Supervisory Commission for alleged serious
violations of disciplines and laws. The Board of Supervisors believes
that the existing Directors and senior management of the Company
are in compliance with laws, carry out their duties responsibly, and
perform their work in a practicable, diligent and due manner. The
decision-making procedures are scientific and legal. None of the
Directors or senior management has been found to act illegally or in
violation of laws and regulations or to the detriment of the rights and
interests of the Company and shareholders when performing their
duties.

(3) Monitoring the financial position of the Company

As of 31 December 2021, the Board of Supervisors of the Company
carefully reviewed the relevant financial information and audit reports
of the Company. The Board of Supervisors believes that during
the Reporting Period, the Company has diligently implemented the
Accounting Law, the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises,
the International Accounting Standards and other relevant financial
standards, with compliant and effective accounting and financial
management in place. The financial accounting reports issued for each
of the periods in the year 2021 presented a fair and true view, in all
material respects, of the financial position and results of operations
of the Company and did not contain any false entries, misleading

statements or material omissions.
(4) Monitoring the connected transactions of the Company

The Board of Supervisors reviewed the connected transactions
that took place during the Reporting Period and examined the
decision-making process in relation to these transactions. The Board of
Supervisors believes that such connected transactions were conducted
on normal commercial terms, were fair, equitable and reasonable, and
there existed no damages to the interests of the Company and other
shareholders.
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(5) Monitoring the establishment and implementation of
internal controls of the Company

The Company has established a rather complete internal control
system, which was in compliance with the requirements of the relevant
laws and regulations of the state and meeting the actual needs of
production, operation and management of the Company. Such system
could be effectively implemented. The establishment of the internal
control system has produced effect on better risk prevention and
control on various sectors of production, operation and management of
the Company. During the Reporting Period, the supervisory activities
of the Board of Supervisors did not identify any material risk existing
in the Company and there was no objection to the supervision matters
during the Reporting Period.

(6) Monitoring the information disclosure by the Company

In strict compliance with the Company Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Securities Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited and other relevant laws and regulations, the Company,
the Board of Directors and the management fulfilled their obligations
to disclose information that may have a material impact on the share
price of the Company and information required to be disclosed by
the Stock Exchange within the prescribed time, on the prescribed
media and in the prescribed manner in a true, accurate and complete
manner, and reported to the regulatory authorities in accordance with
relevant requirements without any false entries, misleading statements

or material omissions.

(7) Conducting collective or special supervision and
inspection

In order to further improve the level of decision-making in a lawful,
democratic and scientific manner, and to diligently implement the
requirements of the “Three Important and One Large Matters”
decision-making system as stipulated by the higher regulatory
authorities, the Board of Supervisors participated in the special
inspection on the implementation of the “Three Important and
One Large Matters” decision-making system of the Company, and
carried out inspections on matters requiring rectification. The Board
of Supervisors is of the view that during the Reporting Period, the
Company has improved the system construction, strengthened the
supervision of decision making, standardised the decision making
conducts and enabled risk prevention in the decision making of major
issues, which facilitated the healthy development of the Company.
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£+E BERHS

IV. 2022 ANNUAL WORK PLAN m -

In 2022, the Supervisory Committee will continue to strictly comply with 2022 &
the laws, regulations and the Articles of Association of the Company, AlER
faithfully and diligently perform its duties and obligations to effectively % # 2

2022 E T 1=t &)

CEFEEREBERETER FRNRQ
MRE LEYDHETRENEL TR
ARBERAEROMNEG BRIAFAFBERE

safeguard the interests of the Company and its shareholders, and EfF-FMH—F EEZSBHUATLEF@ETE
ensure the standardized and healthy operation of the Company. In & B 4 :

the coming year, the Board of Supervisors will perform its supervisory
functions in the following aspects:

(1) Diligently performing duties according to relevant laws and (—)
regulations. In 2022, the Board of Supervisors will continue
to implement and improve the working mechanism and
operational mechanism of the Board of Supervisors, diligently
implement the requirements of relevant laws and regulations,
improve the supervision and management of the Company’s
lawful operation, strengthen the communication with the Board
of Directors and the management, and supervise the Board of
Directors and senior management in accordance with the law,
so as to further rationalise and regulate their decision-making
and operation activities.

(2) Strengthening supervision to prevent risks. The Board of (=)
Supervisors will focus on financial supervision and conduct
supervision and inspection of the Company’s financial position
in accordance with the law. It will further strengthen the internal
control system, regularly obtain information from the Company
and understand the operating conditions of the Company, and
make timely recommendations to stop and rectify any problems
identified. It will also maintain regular communication and
liaison with the internal audit department and the accounting
firm engaged by the Company, and make full use of internal
and external audit information to understand and grasp the
situation in a timely manner.

(3) Strengthening training to enhance the ability to perform (=)
duties. In 2022, the Board of Supervisors will actively
organise financial, legal and business-related training and
learning sessions to enhance its ability of supervision and
inspection, broaden its professional knowledge and improve
its professional competence, so as to better perform the
supervisory functions of the Board of Supervisors.
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CHAPTER ELEVEN

To the members of Kunming Dianchi Water Treatment Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kunming
Dianchi Water Treatment Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 176 to 318,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2021, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2021, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(the “IASB”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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CHAPTER ELEVEN
F+—F BILZHWEHEFGE)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

HEEFER

HRESTEERBERMOZTEHNE RAYEE
Z2021F12ANBIEFEMNGEE W BRROEF
BAEENEFHEH SLEHEERMETBELR
AUBREARHEERABETEEN -RMAT S
HELEZERHEBHER -

Recoverability of trade receivables, receivables under
service concession arrangements, contract assets and
construction contracts

Refer to Note 27 “Trade and other receivables”, Note 18
“Receivables under service concession arrangements”, Note
19 “Amounts due from customers for construction contracts”,
Note 20 “Contract assets” and Note 2 “Significant accounting
policies — Critical accounting estimates and judgements” to
the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021, the net carrying amounts of
trade receivables, receivables under service concession
arrangements, contract assets and construction contracts
were approximately RMB1,709,969,000, RMB2,737,814,000,
RMB249,825,000 and RMB582,499,000, respectively, and
loss allowance provisions for trade receivables, receivables
under service concession arrangements, contract assets and
construction contracts were approximately RMB56,898,000,
RMB29,034,000, RMB Nil and RMB21,337,000, respectively.
To a large extent of receivables under service concession
arrangements, contract assets and construction contracts
and approximately RMB1,452,265,000 out of the trade
receivables were due from local government authorities.

Management assesses the recoverability of trade
receivables, receivables under service concession
arrangements, contract assets and construction contracts
based on the risk portfolio, customers’ liquidity, historical
credit losses, past collection history, subsequent settlement
and other current and forward-looking information on macro
economy.

We identified the above matter as a key audit matter area
because of the significant judgement involved in determining
the recoverability of trade receivables, receivables under
service concession arrangements, contract assets and

construction contracts and their significant amounts.

Our audit procedures, among others, included:

- evaluated the internal controls over the Group’s
assessment process in relation to the recoverability
of trade receivables, receivables under service
concession arrangements, contract assets and
construction contracts respectively;

- tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
completeness of the ageing report and historical
credit losses for trade receivables, receivables under
service concession arrangements, contract assets
and construction contracts respectively;

- obtained management’s assessment of future
expected credit losses and the change of credit risk
of individually significant balances and evaluated
management 's assessment against available
evidence including but not limited to obtaining market
data for our analysis; and

- examined subsequent settlements of trade
receivables, receivables under service concession
arrangements, contract assets and construction
contracts respectively.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

MBEESAETR(E)

Receivables and revenue recognised for service
concession arrangements under financial asset model

Refer to Note 2 for the accounting policy of service
concession arrangements under financial asset model,
Note 2 “Significant accounting policies — Critical accounting
estimates and judgements”, and Note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements for the receivables under service
concession arrangements.

The Group has entered into a number of service concession
arrangements with certain governmental authorities or their
designators (the “Grantors”) under Build-Operate-Transfer
arrangements and Transfer-Operate-Transfer arrangements
in respect of its wastewater treatment, reclaimed water
supply and running water supply. Certain of these service
concession arrangements are accounted for using
“financial asset” model while others are accounted for
using “intangible asset” model. For the Group’s service
concession arrangements under financial asset model, the
fair value of receivables and revenue recognised are derived
from valuation in which a number of critical assumptions
were used. As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount
of receivables under service concession arrangements
amounted to approximately RMB2,737,814,000, which
accounted for 23% of the Group’s total assets.

Management conducted the valuation for those service
concession arrangements under financial asset model at
initial recognition, and performed revaluation when there
were indicators that the critical assumptions in the initial
valuation have been significantly affected and deviated
subsequent to initial recognition. Such valuation and
revaluation were determined based on the forecasted cash
flows to be derived from the related projects which involved
critical judgements and assumptions including but not limited
to the effective interest rate, forecasted unit price of service
fee, operating costs and profit margins of the operating
services. With reference to the valuation and revaluation
performed by the management, management determined
the amount of receivables and revenue to be recognised
for service concession arrangements under financial asset
model during the year, and the subsequent measurement of
receivables and revenue.

We identified the above matter as a key audit matter area
because of the significant judgement involved in determining
the receivables and revenue recognised for service
concession arrangements under financial asset model and
their significant amounts.

With respect to valuation and revaluation for the service
concession arrangements under financial asset model
undertaken during the year, we assessed the methodologies
used by the management, the valuation processes and
significant assumptions adopted. We also evaluated the
reasonableness of the methodologies and assumptions used
in the valuation and revaluation.

We selected samples of service concession arrangements
under financial asset model for testing. The key procedures
included:

1. Examining the agreements between the Group and
the Grantors.

2. Testing the reasonableness and appropriateness
of critical assumptions adopted in the cash flow
forecasts, mainly in relation to:

- sending confirmations to the Grantors to
confirm the current unit price;

- assessing and analysing the reasonableness
of the operating costs by comparing to
the actual costs of other existing service
concession arrangements of the Group; and

- assessing and analysing the profit margins
of the operating services by comparing with
the average profit margin of the operating
services of the industry.

We also challenged management’s assessment of whether
the subsequent measurement of receivables and revenue
recognised for the service concession arrangements under
financial asset model should be subject to revaluation by
comparing the actual outcome, if available, with the critical
assumptions applied in the valuation in previous years
and assessing the potential impact of reasonably possible
changes in the critical assumptions.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
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CHAPTER ELEVEN
F+—F BIIzmBE®REE)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the
2021 annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB, and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
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CHAPTER ELEVEN

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (Continued)
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CHAPTER ELEVEN INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

F+—F BILZHWEHEFGE)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE #ZHMHEBEAGAUBTRRARENER

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (#&)
STATEMENTS (continued)

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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CHAPTER ELEVEN

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 25 March 2022

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

Fung Shiu Hang

Practising Certificate number: P04793

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (Continued)
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FT"F SaHMBHR AHEBEmZRHEMzERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 &/ Z202112A31 R L FE

Year ended 31 December
HE12RA3MALEE

2021 2020

2021 5§ 2020 F

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

Mt &F AR¥Tx ARBFT

Revenue N o 2,317,738 1,919,423
Cost of sales 8 & K AN 6 (1,592,956) (1,240,246)
Gross profit EF 724,782 679,177
Selling expenses HEEMA 6 (13,705) (13,703)
Administrative expenses THEA 6 (140,477) (151,365)
Research and development expenses mEEA 6 (7,299) (7,398)
Net impairment losses on financial assets CRIEERBEIBXLFE 10 (59,593) (26,671)
Other income/(expenses) — net Hi W (FAX)F5E 7 28,025 (42,845)
Other losses HmEE 8 (3,365) (7,671)
Operating profit P 528,368 429,524
Finance income B 75 U A 9 83,705 71,789
Finance costs B 75 K AN 9 (213,652) (85,520)
Finance costs — net B3 A AN —F 58 9 (129,947) (13,731)
Share of results of associates Bt N RIEER RN 22 (1,728) (312)
Profit before tax w0 A E 10 396,693 415,481
Income tax expenses FrEHiER 11 (57,142) (65,053)
Profit for the year EEMNE 339,551 350,428
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

5+-%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

EHMBHER

Notes
Mt &F
Other comprehensive income Hiniz el &=
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: & & % 77 4 = 18 25 &Y
EH:
Surplus on property revaluation upon transfer to  #E# F= 4 B E R Y %
investment properties (Note 15) B BB F15)
Item that may be reclassified subsequently HUEMEEN D EE
to profit or loss: BamZ2HE -
Exchange differences on consolidation EREZR
Total comprehensive income for the year EEFRGWREAR
Profit attributable to: FEES:

— Equity holders of the Company
— Non-controlling interests

—KRAFESEFAA
—FRE SR

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
— Equity holders of the Company
— Non-controlling interests

REWERARBN:
—ARFERFTAA
—JFIE G

Earnings per share for profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company
(expressed in RMB per share)

— Basic and diluted earnings per share

BERALAEERAA
B9 B B B B0 &
(LERAR® T
—EARRHEE RS 14

EHBREREH £ EIRERGE)

BHZE2021F12A31BILFE

Year ended 31 December
HE12A3MALFEE

2021 2020
2021 % 2020 FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Frx ARBFr
11,145

(1,219) 2,145
(1,219) 13,290
338,332 363,718
338,278 348,547
1,273 1,881
339,551 350,428
337,059 361,837
1,273 1,881
338,332 363,718
0.34
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FT+T2F SHHBHEET SHMBRIAR

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

12021512 A31 8

2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
kA AR Frx ARBFoT
Non-current assets EREBEE
Investment properties wEME 15 276,377 273,755
Right-of-use assets/land use rights EREEE/+ {5 P#g 16 424,945 437,025
Property, plant and equipment TEE ITBEEE 17 2,637,090 2,840,698
Receivables under service concession BHHEEREBETH
arrangements JFE W 3R 1B 18 2,732,351 2,420,630
Amounts due from customers for construction EREFEEARK
contracts 19 559,714 612,729
Contract assets EHEE 20 249,825 =
Intangible assets mEEE 21 313,494 329,289
Investments in associates ERE 22 12,793 14,521
Deferred tax assets BREFFEBMREE 23 84,490 73,606
7,291,079 7,002,253
Current assets REEE
Receivables under service concession B EERBETH
arrangements fE Uk k18 18 5,463 6,562
Inventories TE 24 16,595 11,759
Amounts due from customers for construction EREFEEARK
contracts 19 22,785 26,954
Financial assets at amortised cost LA SEK AT 20 SRt
& E 26 294,000 300,000
Trade and other receivables FE U BR 3 % H th B IR 27 2,884,020 2,391,034
Cash and bank balances e RRITEH 28 1,504,346 749,940
Restricted funds XREE S 28 49,650 7,990
4,776,859 3,494,239
Current liabilities nEBaR
Trade and other payables JE < BR 3Rk B2 E b FE 5P 3R 29 678,982 699,096
Tax payables FE 1 FL 1R 97,494 96,091
Borrowings [EE:N 31 4,212,914 1,884,963
Lease liabilities HEAR 30 - 1,168
Contract liabilities cRARE 29 7,505 45,493
Financial liabilities at fair value BEAARBEFABE®N
through profit or loss SREEE 25 110,450 84,613
5,107,345 2,811,424
Net current (liabilities) assets nE(ABEEEE (330,486) 682,815
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBARK 6,960,593 7,685,068
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
F+2E cHUMBHERx SHMBRARGE

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

Notes
Mt i
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred revenue iR AE I 2= 32
Borrowings N 31
Deferred tax liabilities BEEMGHAR 23
NET ASSETS FEE
Capital and reserves BARRE
Share capital fi& 75 33
Other reserves % 34
Accumulated profits B1F W e 35
Equity attributable to equity holders AAREBZHAEA
of the Company FE 1L # &=
Non-controlling interests e H R
TOTAL EQUITY EEEHE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 176 to 318 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25
March 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Zeng Feng Chen Changyong
Director Director

FIT6EEFIBAZHEAVBRRILESTERN
2022463 H25 R ER K ETIE  AHUTEER

rEE:
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2021
2021 4
RMB’000

AE#FT

245,267
2,193,023
86,492

2,524,782

4,435,811

1,029,111

1,543,576
1,854,715

4,427,402
8,409

4,435,811

12021F12 A 31 H

2020
20204
RMB’000
AR TT

248,429
3,081,966
82,246

3,412,641

4,272,427

1,029,111

1,523,380
1,712,800

4,265,291
7,136

4,272,427
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FT+T"F SHUHBHEET SHEZEIR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 &/ Z202112A31 R L FE

Attributable to the equity holders of the Company

KDARESE AR Non-

Other  Accumulated controlling
Share capital reserves profits Total interests Total equity
B & ok fe BN mE EEFMER ER4E

RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB 000
AREFT  AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT ARKEFZ

(Note 33) (Note 34) (Note 35)

(Hiit33) (Wi 34) (Wi 35)

At 1 January 2020 #202051 818 1,029,111 1,489,179 1,569,375 4,087,665 6,756 4,094,421
Profit for the year FEMNA s = 348,547 348,547 1,881 350,428
Other comprehensive income: AEthimala:
Item that will not be reclassified TEENABZERY

to profit or loss EH
Surplus on property revaluation upon ERTREANMERNNE

transfer to investment properties BB H15)

(Note 15) - 11,145 - 11,145 - 11,145
Item that may be reclassified AGHRENAEZ

subsequently to profit or loss BxZEA
Exchange differences on consolidation ~ JE % % % - 2,145 - 2,145 - 2,145
Total comprehensive income for the year FE 2 EWHBE - 13,290 348,547 361,837 1,881 363,718
Transactions with owners: BREENRS:
Contributions and Distributions HERAE
Dividends (Note 13) ARRE W H13) - = (184,211) (184,211) (1,501) (185,712)
Transfer to statutory reserves (Note 34(a)) 17 BUE & f & (4 34(a) - 20,911 (20,911) S S =
At 31 December 2020 720205123318 1,029,111 1,523,380 1,712,800 4,265,291 7,136 4,272,427
At 1 January 2021 R2021F1 818 1,029,111 1,523,380 1,712,800 4,265,291 4,272,427
Profitfor the year EEHE - - 338,278 338,278 339,551
Other comprehensive income: EtGala:
Item that may be reclassified subsequently Z# F 5 Z# 74 2

to profit or loss Bunl%H
Exchange differences on consolidation ~ JE % = (1,219) (1,219) (1,219)
Total comprehensive income for the year S E 2 BN H 8% (1,219) 338,278 337,059 338,332
Transactions with owners: BRAENRS:
Contributions and Distributions HERAE
Dividends (Note 13) PEREH#13) = (174,948) (174,948) (174,948)
Transfer to statutory reserves (Note 34(a)) 12 BUA e & & (1 i 34(a)) 21,415 (21,415) = =
At 31 December 2021 #2021512 8318 1,029,111 1,543,576 1,854,715 4,427,402 4,435,811
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iy
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
EHUMHHRE SHEZRER

BHZE2021F12A31BILFE

2021 2020
2021 4§ 2020 F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M & AR¥Fx AR TFor
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEED
Cash used in operations KEFHANR S 36(a) (415,434) (339,349)
Interest paid B4 F & (239,146) (217,040)
Income tax paid ERAEH (62,377) (57,078)
Net cash used in operating activities REFHEANREEIH (716,957) (613,467)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEFH
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BETHE  ITHMEXE (57,677) (186,776)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEVAE (1,847) (5,089)
Concessions that will form an intangible asset EEHNEAETHEKRER
model under contract assets BEEANEHLLRE (141,764) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and PETESE ITHREZRE
equipment FT 18K 36(b) 422 573
Advances to related parties ENEBTES 38(b)(ii) (1,030,000) (1,000,000)
Repayments from related parties T B R 38(b)(iii) 1,380,000 1,000,000
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HENAAREEITER
at FVPL BB ABERD
LREENMIER 200,000
Interest received 2 W B 71,789
Government grants received relating to R mEETEE - LK
purchase of property, plant and equipment MR AE B 8 2 BT 8 B 32 3,001
Refund of government grants R Bl AT 44 BD 32 (10,000)
Net cash outflow for the acquisition of WETEBREBNT QA
subsidiaries which are not businesses EERFRE&TE (18,839) (64,231)
Purchase of financial assets at amortised cost BEUNBHEKATED
SRmEE (300,000)
Net cash from (used in) investing activities BEEHELEFRABN
R&EFH 230,908 (290,733)
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

F+TZE SHUEBE=R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(Increase)/Decrease of restricted funds

Dividends declared and paid to the Company’s
equity holders

Dividends declared and paid to non-controlling
interests of non-wholly owned subsidiaries

New borrowings raised

Repayments of borrowings

Repayments of lease liabilities

EHEeRERE)

BHE2021F12A31MB L FE

Al & S B

(Em) RORRHNE S
RARDREERFA A
Bk & 32 5 % F
MIF2EME R R M=
P 4 28 B R K S A B A

18 P 15 5K

BZ &R

BEHEAR

2021
2021 %

Notes RMB’000
M &F AR¥TFx

(41,660)

(174,948)

3,484,207
(2,023,065)
(410)

Net cash from financing activities

METHELENREEFR

36(c) 1,244,124

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

ReERREEEDE
1# (Rt )

758,075

Effect on exchange rate changes

ExEnye

(3,669)

749,940

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning BRERVHERS R
of the Reporting Period REEEY

Cash and cash equivalents at the end REHARHRER
of the Reporting Period Re%EY

1,504,346
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2020
2020 FF
RMB’000
ARBTFoT
59,976
(184,211)
(1,501)
2,211,000

(1,693,728)
(3,989)

387,547

(516,653)

(23,606)

1,290,199

749,940



CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=

1. GENERAL

Kunming Dianchi Water Treatment Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Yunnan Province of the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”) on 23 December 2010 as a joint stock company with limited
liabilities under the Company Law of the PRC and its shares are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The registered office of the Company is located at
Kunming Dianchi No. 7 Water Treatment Plant.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the development, design, construction, operation
and maintenance of water supply and wastewater treatment facilities
in the PRC. The activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
are set out in Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(the “IASB”), which collective term includes all applicable individual
IFRSs, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”). There is no significant difference between the data recognised
through the IASs and the data recognised in accordance with the
Chinese Accounting Standards.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is the same as the functional currency of the Company,
and rounded to the nearest thousands unless otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the 2020
consolidated financial statements except for the adoption of the new/
revised IFRSs that are relevant to the Group and effective from the
current year as set out below.

EHMBHRR SHEMBHRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

BHZE2021F12A3MBILFE

1. —REHR

ERAEMKBRMD AR AR A2 AR IZEB(F
EARLAME(THE]) QR ZEINR2010F12 423 H
EEP%AE EAMBE (T E])EmMA KA R
NERETAR  ERNDEEBHARIHEAR
Aﬂ(fﬂ?ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁi’f&tm°$’L\\aﬁ'\]ﬁ?ﬂﬁﬁl#%ﬁiﬁ
REBEMSE 5 KERRK -

ARAREFLAARBIZAERNDEPH 21
BEREHRAMFKEEREOME Rt BT E
EN@EE - ARARATEMBRAANEHHERNES
Bt R M FE39

2. FEEFHEHR

b

EREBMN

ZERAVBRACRRBRER ST ENESS([H
Wﬁ‘ﬁﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁmlﬁﬁﬁﬁ AE Al ([
ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%éwn~ﬁﬁ%%ﬁa%%ﬂﬂE%
MEmELEL BEReTE£A(EBRET£8) R
mE Jf/\&%ﬁi‘ﬂ &5 B9 3% 55 4R TE M 4R &L o A AR

AT HmA N E TR ATE %Lmﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬁ
ADMBEREERT BABABRK ST EERA
FEERBRPE ST RIERNBEBEIFEEX
EHo

RAMBREZANARBIARE]D (BARAZ
B Q“ HEDIE IMBERAAEZEIZ T
HEEABEHIMN) -

BREMB®RMERIDIRBHEAEEN2020F KRS W
BHREFMEASHBER BN ELERR KA
THEAEEEABERAFTFEERNT KB
B R BB BY TS RS ZE RIBR AN o
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FT2F EHUMBHRZX SHMBHRRMEGE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 &, Z20215612H31 8 L F &

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FTEEHBR(E)
(continued)

Adoption of new/revised IFRSs R BIETERM SR & EA

The Group has applied, for the first time, the following new/revised A%EBEEXERB T FHE/ KETBREGFERE

IFRSs: A
Amendments to IAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — BR& st R 3957 FREERE
IFRSs 4, 7,9 and 16 Phase 2 BRSBTS R4 - FZREB
FETH - FOH K FE 165
(BT A)
Amendments to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions BB B 7 R S A R 16 5% 20216 B30H 2 14
Beyond 30 June 2021 (BET ) #2019 M m F &

EEENESER

Amendments to IAS 39, IFRSs 4, 7, 9 and 16: Interest Rate [EIEEZ 2RI #3999  BEEMFEHE LR F45

Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 BT FIFREICHE (IEFTEK)  FIFEHEN 2~
EoEE

ZEBIBARRAABEN EELERE(HE] M MK
when a company replaces the old interest rate benchmark with an EZREEF TR EAMN A EF I T EH K
alternative benchmark rate as a result of the interest rate benchmark & 2 B & - 2 S5 5] $ X 2019F9 A B 2 5]
HEITHT EF LR

The amendments address issues that might affect financial reporting

reform (the “Reform”). The amendments complement those issued in
September 2019 and relate to:

. changes to contractual cash flows — a company will not have ERNBRER 2 EH AR BARKEMA
to derecognise or adjust the carrying amount of financial E28BRIBERIAZE SR IAEZER
instruments for changes required by the Reform, but will CHCOEEAFHERANXARBREAER
instead update the effective interest rate to reflect the change BT &

to the alternative benchmark rate;

. hedge accounting — a company will not have to discontinue its ~ « HHRgHEE-WARZH R HaERE
hedge accounting solely because it makes changes required by HRBCZEMEE AZAABEEANR
the Reform, if the hedge meets other hedge accounting criteria; EMBEZED MR LEES RS ER:
and P54

. disclosures — a company will be required to disclose information ~ « BEEHN-QAAEEBEEEREMEL
about new risks arising from the reform and how it manages R AR AREWAMERRZREE
the transition to alternative benchmark rates. P& @

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant impact HMWZSET T EHESTERREXTME X
on the consolidated financial statements. T
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

£+

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Adoption of new/revised IFRSs (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 16: Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
Beyond 30 June 2021

The amendments exempt lessees from having to consider individual
lease contracts to determine whether rent concessions occurring as a
direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic are lease modifications
and allow lessees to account for such rent concessions as if they were
not lease modifications. It applies to covid-19-related rent concessions
that reduce lease payments due on or before 30 June 2022. The
amendments do not affect lessors.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted by the Group
is set out below.

Going concern
The Group had net current liabilities of approximately RMB330,486,000

at 31 December 2021.
consider the going concern basis of preparation of the consolidated

Notwithstanding the above, the Directors

financial statements is appropriate after taking into consideration the
following:

(a) the Group is able to generate operating profits and cash inflows
from current and future operating activities; and

(b) at 31 December 2021, the Group has undrawn banking facilities
of approximately RMB1,746,550,000 granted by the financial

institutions.

Having regard to the cash flow projection of the Group, which are
prepared assuming that the above measures are successful, the
Directors are of the opinion that, in light of the measures taken to-date,
together with the expected results of the other measures in progress,
the Group will have sufficient funding resources to satisfy its future
working capital and other financing requirements. The Directors
believe that the aforementioned measures will be successful, based on
the continuous efforts by the management of the Group.

EHMBHRE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

& O B 75 R 5 B & ()
BE2021F12A31BILEE

2. FTEEHHRE)

R RS IE T B BR B A 4R R ()

B BE BT 7 R & E R 16 5F (15 T &) © 202146 A 30
AZEH2019BR FEREFHHHEER

ZEEITREABAZERBENBESHNUER
2019 MR mERBEEERNHEERESEMA
EEF VY A#ABABEHEASEER AL I
HEZEmMAR - HEHRMRBAE2022%46 A30H
S AP BN EENROE20M19BRFEEREE
BEHNHSEE ZSBITUITFELAA-

KMz F

=
= e

=
=

BRILTEHGZ M BEHRERREKNEMEK

AEERANIZSHARERENT -

HERE

REBR2021F12A3MBEBNAHEBEFEOAA
R #330,486,000c - BE A LMBER  EFRER
LNTERERAGEGEVBEREOIFTELEHE
EBBEE

(a) REBEBRAANRRKNHE S
ERERFMERERAA R

EE R E

(b)  M2021F128318 K %
%%%?W*kﬁﬁfﬁ”ﬁﬁAE%
1,746,550,000 7T ©

KERAESEReRBACGRBR L E A M
RE) EERR ERESHEDRER ERE
hERPREELERER AEEBERZEES
5Jﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁiMEﬁ%&H\ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂb%%
Re BAXEEEBRENESE ) LG E
EXUJELE’@"
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

ET+ZF SHUEBERZR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Going concern (continued)

However, should the above measures not be able to implement
successfully, the Group may not have sufficient funds to operate as a
going concern, in which case adjustments might have to be made to
reduce the carrying values of the Group’s assets to their recoverable
amounts, to reclassify the non-current assets and non-current liabilities
as current assets and current liabilities, respectively and to provide for
any further liabilities which might arise.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements is historical cost basis, except for investment
properties, and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL”) which is measured at fair value as explained in the
accounting policy set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
year as that of the Company using consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses and
profits and losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases.

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from equity holders
of the Company, in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets in the event of
liquidation, are measured initially either at fair value or at the present
ownership instrument’s proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. This choice of measurement
basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Other types of
non-controlling interests are initially measured at fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by IFRSs.
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

£+

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)
Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the equity holders of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income is attributed to
the equity holders of the Company and the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Changes in ownership interests

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to the equity holders of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on
disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest determined at the date when control is lost and (ii) the
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests at the date when control
is lost. The amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted for on the
same basis as would be required if the holding company had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Any investment retained
in the former subsidiary and any amounts owed by or to the former
subsidiary are accounted for as a financial asset, associate, joint
venture or others as appropriate from the date when control is lost.
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

ET+ZF SHUEBERZR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 £

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. The Group reassesses
whether it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position as set out in Note 41
to the consolidated financial statements, investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. The
carrying amount of the investments is reduced to its recoverable
amount on an individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable
amount. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control of those policies.

The Group’s investment in associate is accounted for under the
equity method of accounting, except when the investment or a portion
thereof is classified as held for sale. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for the
post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the investee’s net
assets and any impairment loss relating to the investment. Except to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the investee, the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses when the Group’s share of
losses of the investee equals or exceeds the carrying amount of its
interest in the investee, which includes any long term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the investee.
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

£+

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Associates (continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the investees, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position which is presented
within these notes, investments in associates is stated at cost less
impairment loss. The carrying amount of the investment is reduced to
its recoverable amount on an individual basis, if it is higher than the
recoverable amount. The results of associates and joint ventures are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable using the equity method.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the year in which they are incurred.
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

ET+ZF SHUEBERZR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 £

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

As described in Note 33(a) to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group received certain completed water supply or wastewater
treatment facilities as capital injection from its controlling shareholder
and undertakes the operation and maintenance of such facilities owned
by the Group in the concession period, during which the Group can
charge service fees based on the supplied water or treated wastewater
to recover its costs of investment, operations and maintenance and
obtain reasonable return, according to the concession agreement
entered into by the Group and the governmental authority
(“Transfer-Own-Operate” Model or “TOO Model”). Since the Group
directed the use of the assets and controlled the significant residual
interest in the assets under the TOO Model during the concession
period and the Group has the exclusive priority right to extend its
operation period and is not required to return these assets to the
governmental authority at the end of the concession period, the fixed
assets under the TOO Model are accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less accumulated
impairment losses of property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress, over their estimated useful lives from the
date on which they are available for use and after taking into account
their estimated residual value, using the straight-line method at the
following rates per annum. Where parts of an item of property, plant
and equipment have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis and depreciated separately.

Buildings and facilities 20 to 50 years
Machinery and equipment 8 to 18 years
Office and electronic equipment 3 to 10 years

Motor vehicles 8 to 10 years
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

£+

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in profit or loss in the year in which the item is derecognised.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
under construction or pending installation and is stated at cost less
provision for impairment loss, if any. Cost includes the costs of
construction and acquisition as well as interest expenses during the
periods of construction and installation. When the assets concerned
are available for use, the costs are transferred to property, plant and
equipment and depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated
above.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each Reporting Period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within “other
losses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FT2F EHUMBHRZX SHMBHRRMEGE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 &, Z20215612H31 8 L F &

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEEHHRE)
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued) FEE - IBBRHREE)

The Group transfers a property to, or from, investment property when, E BEEZHBE A2 EZ HE A L@ S EVEES
and only when, there is a change in use. A change in use occurs when S EHBEENE - EWER AL TIBTAREY
the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment X TERGEAREH BB SEXEARE
property and there is evidence of the change in use. In isolation,a #F - BUmME BEEEENVEAZNERZ2FET
change in management’s intentions for the use of a property does not EX G EE 2 FEFE - 2

provide evidence of a change in use, include:

(a) commencement of owner-occupation, or of development with  (a) HBETBRAK RETHEUNEER B
a view to owner-occupation, for a transfer from investment REMEEBRZERAME:
property to owner-occupied property;

THEBMHER SREVEBERES

12 .
=]

(b) commencement of development with a view to sale, for a (b)

e

transfer from investment property to inventories;

(c) end of owner-occupation, for a transfer from owner-occupied  (c) KIEETERAR BEAVEERERE
property to investment property; and WM&k

(d) inception of an operating lease to another party, for a transfer  (d) RigmME—HETKEHER  BFEH
from inventories to investment property. BREREWE-

The Group uses the fair value model for investment property. AEBHEEMERAAABEER -

If an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property that MR —BHEXTFTERVEXRABUARIABETERD
will be carried at fair value, the Group applies IAS 16 up to the date of B W% AEBFRBRE € E 8 F165% 0 &
change in use. The Group treats any difference at that date between Z=R @ EH 2 H A E BB Z B R EEE & 1%
the carrying amount of the property in accordance with IAS 16 andits fIF 165 B FHN WX EE L ERE DXL BEZH
fair value in the same way as a revaluation in accordance with IAS 16. WAEMEE UEREBRE ST EAF165# 1T
EFHEMERANTXER-
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

£+

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are buildings that are held by owner or lessee
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These include
properties held for a currently undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated at fair value at the end of the
Reporting Period. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value
is recognised in profit or loss. The fair value of investment properties
is based on valuations by independent valuer who hold recognised
professional qualification and have recent experience in the location
and category of property being valued. The fair value reflects, among
other things, rental income from current leases and other assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing investment properties
under current market conditions, and is adjusted based on separately
recognised assets or liabilities to avoid double counting assets or
liabilities.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Intangible assets
(i) Operating concession

The Group engages with government authorities in the development,
financing, operating and maintenance of wastewater treatment
services (the “Concession Services”) over a specified period of time
(the “Service Concession Period”). The Group has access to operate
the wastewater treatment facilities to provide the concession services
in accordance with the terms specified in the arrangement.
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

ET+ZF SHUEBERZR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 £

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Intangible assets (continued)
(i) Operating concession (continued)

The Group recognises the related rights in the service concession
arrangements as intangible assets or financial assets. The operator
shall recognise an intangible asset to the extent that it receives a right
(license) to charge users of the concession service and shall recognise
a financial asset to the extent that it has an unconditional contractual
right to receive a guaranteed minimum volume from the grantor.
Therefore, intangible assets — concession rights are recognised
for the rights under these service concession arrangements by the
Group, which are amortised on a straight-line basis over the Service
Concession Period ranging from 20 to 30 years.

(ii) Computer software

Purchased computer software license are capitalised on the basis of
the costs incurred to acquire the specific software. These costs are
amortised over periods ranging from 5 to 10 years.

(iii) Development cost

Development costs relate to the cost incurred for improving technology
and techniques to improve the wastewater treatment plants. Capitalised
development costs are amortised from the point at which the assets
are ready for use on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives.

Right-of-use assets

As described in note 16 to the consolidated financial statement, all
land in the PRC is state-owned or collectively-owned and no individual
land ownership exists. The land use rights of certain land of the Group
were contributed by Kunming Dianchi Investment Co., Ltd. (& B &
& & H R A A, “KDI”). The land use rights are stated at cost less
accumulative amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Land use rights are amortised over the lease period of 48 to 50 years
using straight-line method.

If an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property that
will be carried at fair value, the Group applies IFRS 16 for property
held by a lessee as a right-of-use asset up to the date of change in
use. The Group treats any difference at that date between the carrying
amount of the property in accordance with IFRS 16 and its fair value in
the same way as a revaluation in accordance with IAS 16.
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

£+

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Service concession arrangements

The Group has entered into certain service concession arrangements
with governmental authorities (the “Grantor”). The service concession
arrangements consist of Build-Operate-Transfer (the “BOT”)
arrangement and Transfer-Operate-Transfer (the “TOT”) arrangements.
Under the BOT arrangements, the Group carries out construction and
upgrade work of the wastewater treatment and water supply facilities
for the Grantor and receives in return a right to operate the service
projects concerned for a specified period of time (the “Operation
Period”) in accordance with the pre — established conditions set by the
Grantor, and the service projects should be transferred to the Grantor
with nil consideration at the end of the Operation Period. A TOT
arrangement is similar to a BOT arrangement except that the Group
pays consideration for the right to operate the wastewater treatment
and water supply facilities that have been built.

(a) Consideration given by the Grantor

A financial asset (receivable under a service concession arrangement)
is recognised to the extent that the Group has an unconditional right
to receive cash or another financial asset from the Grantor for the
construction and upgrade services rendered and/or the consideration
paid and payable by the Group to the Grantor. The Group has
an unconditional right to receive cash if the Grantor contractually
guarantees to pay the Group specified or determinable amounts or the
shortfall, if any, between amounts received from the users of the public
services and specified or determinable amounts.

An intangible asset (operating concession) is recognised to the extent
that the Group receives a right to charge users of public services,
which is not an unconditional right to receive cash because the
amounts are contingent on the extent that the public uses the services.

If the Group is paid for the construction and upgrade services (under
BOT arrangement) or the cash payments for the rights to charge public
users (under TOT arrangement) partly by a financial asset and partly
by an intangible asset, then each component of the consideration is
accounted for separately and is recognised initially in accordance with
IFRS 15.
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

ET+ZF SHUEBERZR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 £

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Service concession arrangements (continued)
(b) Construction and upgrade services

Revenue from construction service is recognised over time based on
the percentage of completion of the contract, which is determined by
the direct proportion of contract costs incurred for work performed to
date relative to the estimated total contract costs.

(c) Operating service

During the Operation Period of the service concession arrangements,
receipts up to the level of the guarantee are treated as the financial
asset. Costs for operating services are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

(d) Contractual obligations to restore the facilities to a
specified level of serviceability

The Group has contractual obligations which it must fulfil as a condition
of its licenses, that is (i) to maintain the wastewater treatment plants
it operates to a specified level of serviceability and/or (ii) to restore
the plants to a specified condition before they are handed over to the
Grantor at the end of the service concession arrangement. These
contractual obligations to maintain or restore the water treatment
plants, except for upgrade element, are recognised and measured at
the best estimate of the expenditure that would be required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the Reporting Period. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the contractual obligations to maintain
or restore infrastructure were not material to the Group.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and, where applicable,
other costs that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition, is calculated using the weighted
average cost method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

£+

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments
Financial assets
Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments and
on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i) the Group’s
contractual rights to future cash flows from the financial asset expire
or (ii) the Group transfers the financial asset and either (a) it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset, or (b) it neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain
control of the financial asset.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the

financial asset.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset,
the Group recognises the financial asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a significant
financing component) are initially recognised at their fair value plus,
in the case of financial assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVPL”), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets. Such trade receivables are initially
measured at their transaction price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i) measured
at amortised cost; (ii) debt investment measured at fair value through
(iii) equity
investment measured at fair value through other comprehensive

other comprehensive income (“Mandatory FVOCI”);

income (“Designated FVOCI”); or (iv) measured at FVPL.
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

ET+ZF SHUEBERZR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 £

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Classification and measurement (continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on
the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets and
the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics. Financial
assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless
the Group changes its business model for managing them, in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the
following annual Reporting Period following the change in the business
model.

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract in which a host is an asset
within the scope of IFRS 9 are not separated from the host. Instead,
the entire hybrid contract is assessed for classification.

1) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the
following conditions and is not designated as at FVPL:

(a) it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

(b) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses arising from impairment, derecognition or through the
amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost include receivables
under service concession arrangements, amounts due from customers
for construction contracts, financial assets at amortised cost, trade and
other receivables, cash and bank balances and restricted funds.
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FT2F GHUBHRZx SHMBHRIRMECGE)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #,Z2021$12H31 8 L FE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TEGHBKRE)

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) EMIE(E)
Financial assets (continued) EHEEE)
Classification and measurement (continued) SR E(E)
2) Financial assets at FVPL 2) BEAnBHETFAERZEMEE

These investments include financial assets that are not measured at % EHRE B FRIERBEHRAFER IR QAL E BT
amortised cost or FVOCI, including financial assets held for trading, AHEMZERBZZLMEE BREEIER S Z &
financial assets designated upon initial recognition at FVPL, financial BEE VI FHRABETKR AN BET AEBH
assets resulting from a contingent consideration arrangementina S$®BEE  ULKBERFEREENFEIRER 2 %
business combination to which IFRS 3 applies and financial assetsthat KA H P Z XA REBELHER 22 EENRE
are otherwise required to be measured at FVPL. They are carried at MBZ QA A EBEF ABZZSREE - HEHA
fair value, with any resultant gain and loss recognised in profit or loss, R EBEJ K FMEH 2 FAMKFELEERIEZ S
which does not include any dividend or interest earned on the financial R T8 FEZ S 4 /& E T B I 2 F @K% 8 5%
assets. A e

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is: TREESEAFERS  AIH:

(i) acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near (i) EREZFTZEENREERHAALE

term;

(i) part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are  (ii) RUOLTHERFRERPEEREEEBEEHER
managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent CEOEREXATRzAEN e T AA
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking on initial recognition; az—'Hm sk
or

(i) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee contract or not a (i) TEBRFBERARF =T EEFTHEER
designated and effective hedging instrument. HAITAZHETLR-

The Group’s financial assets measured at FVPL include the derivatives A &EBE A A BEF AEBENEREERENT A
— Cross Currency swap. TE-XXEK=EH-
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

ET+ZF SHUEBERZR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 £

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities
Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the liability
is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value plus, in the
case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issue of the financial liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables and
borrowings. All financial liabilities except for financial liabilities at FVPL
are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, unless the effect
of discounting would be insignificant, in which case they are stated at
cost.

Financial liabilities are designated at initial recognition as at FVPL only
if:

(i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise
arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the
gains or losses on them on different bases;

(i) they are part of a group of financial liabilities or financial
assets and financial liabilities that are managed and their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management strategy; or
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

£+

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Classification and measurement (continued)

(iii) they contain one or more embedded derivatives, in which case
the entire hybrid contract may be designated as a financial
liability at FVPL, except where the embedded derivatives do not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear that separation
of the embedded derivatives is prohibited.

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract with a host that is not an
asset within the scope of IFRS 9 are treated as separate derivatives
when they meet the definition of a derivative, their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host,
and the hybrid contract is not measured at FVPL.

Impairment of financial assets and other items

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECL on financial assets
that are measured at amortised cost issued to which the impairment
requirements apply in accordance with IFRS 9. Except for the specific
treatments as detailed below, at each reporting date, the Group
measures a loss allowance at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL
if the credit risk on that financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the
loss allowance for that financial asset at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL.
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

ET+ZF SHUEBERZR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items (continued)
Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e. the present
value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life of the financial

instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the difference
between the contractual cash flows that are due to an entity under the
contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument while
12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected
to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial instruments
are grouped based on the following one or more shared credit risk
characteristics:

(a) past due status

(b) nature of financial instrument

(c) nature, size and industry of debtors

(d) local economy environment of provinces in the PRC
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

£+

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items (continued)
Measurement of ECL (continued)

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes
in the financial instrument’s credit risk and loss since initial recognition.
The resulting changes in the loss allowance are recognised as
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss with a corresponding

adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial instrument.
Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of default
for internal credit risk management purposes as historical experience
indicates that the Group may not receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full if the financial instrument that meets any of the
following criteria.

(a) information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group); or

(b) there is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

ET+ZF SHUEBERZR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 £

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items (continued)
Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In particular, the following information is taken

into account in the assessment:

. the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or interest on
the due dates;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial

instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if available);

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor; and

. actual or expected changes in the technological, market,

economic or legal environment that have or may have a

significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its

obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are

more than 30 days past due.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have low credit
risk at the reporting date.
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

£+

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (continued)
Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:
(a) it has a low risk of default;

(b) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near terms; and

(c) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of
the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

As detailed in Note 3.1(b) to the consolidated financial statements,
cash and bank balances and restricted funds are determined to have
low credit risk.

Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables, receivables under service concession
arrangements, amounts due from customers for construction contracts,
and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in
calculating ECL. The Group recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECL at each reporting date and has established a provision
matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

ET+ZF SHUEBERZR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items (continued)
Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
include observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower.
(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event.

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider.

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy

or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

(f) the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep
discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has no
reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual cash flows on
a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. However, financial
assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts
due, taking into account legal advice if appropriate. Any subsequent
recovery is recognised in profit or loss.
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

£+

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
equivalents represent short-term highly liquid investments which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15

Nature of goods or services

The nature of the goods or services provided by the Group is as

follows:

(i) Wastewater treatment services.

(i) Water supply services.

(iii) Revenue from construction contracts.

(iv) Management Service.

(v) Thermal production.

(vi) Finance income.

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods or services
promised in a contract with a customer and identifies as a performance

obligation each promise to transfer to the customer either:

(a) a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same and that have the same pattern of transfer to the
customer.
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

ET+ZF SHUEBERZR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15 (continued)

Identification of performance obligations (continued)

A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct if both of
the following criteria are met:

(a) the customer can benefit from the good or service either on its
own or together with other resources that are readily available
to the customer (i.e. the good or service is capable of being
distinct); and

(b) the Group’s promise to transfer the good or service to the
customer is separately identifiable from other promises in the
contract (i.e. the promise to transfer the good or service is
distinct within the context of the contract).

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring a promised good or service (i.e. an asset) to
a customer. An asset is transferred when (or as) the customer obtains
control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service over time and,
therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue
over time, if one of the following criteria is met:

(a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

(b) the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset (for
example, work in progress) that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

£+

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15 (continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (continued)

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the Group
satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the promised asset. In determining when
the transfer of control occurs, the Group considers the concept of
control and such indicators as legal title, physical possession, right to
payment, significant risks and rewards of ownership of the asset, and
customer acceptance.

Revenue from wastewater treatment operation and other services is
recognised when the services are rendered.

Revenue from water supply services is recognised when a Group entity
has delivered water to the customer.

Revenue from construction services is recognised over time based on
the percentage of completion of the contract, which is determined by
the direct proportion of contract costs incurred for work performed to
date relative to the estimated total contract costs, at the end of each
Reporting Period. The Group provides construction services under
Build-Transfer (the “BT”) arrangements and Build-Operate-Transfer
(the “BOT”) arrangements. Under these construction arrangements, the
Group carries out construction work of the wastewater treatment and
water supply facilities and returns the assets to the counter parties of
the construction arrangements after completion of the construction or
expiry of the operation period. In particular, the finance income arising
from construction services under BT arrangements of approximately
RMB48,920,000 during the year was recognised in revenue (2020:
finance income of approximately RMB48,353,000).

Revenue from management services is recognised over time based
on the volume of wastewater treatment service provided to the
customers in each period. The management service income arising
from the operation management service contracts of approximately
RMB276,855,000 during the year was presented in revenue (2020:
approximately RMB190,154,000). Revenue from thermal power
service is recognised based on the volume of thermal power supplied
under the contract. The thermal power service income arising from
the operation under thermal power service contracts of approximately
RMB133,494,000 during the year was recognised in revenue (2020:
approximately RMB77,671,000).
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

ET+ZF SHUEBERZR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15 (continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (continued)

For revenue recognised over time under IFRS 15, provided the
outcome of the performance obligation can be reasonably measured,
the Group applies the output method (i.e. based on the direct
measurements of the value to the customer of the goods or services
transferred to date relative to the remaining goods or services
promised under the contract) to measure the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation because the
method provides a faithful depiction of the Group’s performance and
reliable information is available to the Group to apply the method.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised only to the extent of the costs
incurred until such time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of
the performance obligation.

The following output methods are applied:
. management services income: revenue recognition for
wastewater treatment entrusted operation management
services; revenue is recognised based on the volume of
wastewater treatment service provided to the customers in
each period in accordance with the contractual settlement
cycle.
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

£+

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using the effective
interest method. For financial assets measured at amortised cost that
are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the assets while it is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) in case of
credit-impaired financial assets.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a customer
before the customer pays consideration or before payment is
due, the contract is presented as a contract asset, excluding any
amounts presented as a receivable. Conversely, if a customer pays
consideration, or the Group has a right to an amount of consideration
that is unconditional, before the Group transfers a good or service to
the customer, the contract is presented as a contract liability when
the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). A
receivable is the Group’s right to consideration that is unconditional
or only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. Contract assets
and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a
net basis.

For the wastewater treatment service and water supply services, it
is common for the Group to receive from the customer the whole or
some of the contractual payments before the services are completed
or when the goods are delivered (i.e. the timing of revenue recognition
for such transactions). The Group recognises a contract liability until it
is recognised as revenue. During that period, any significant financing
components, if applicable, will be included in the contract liability and
will be expensed as accrued unless the interest expense is eligible for
capitalisation.
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

ET+ZF SHUEBERZR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 £

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Contract assets and contract liabilities (continued)

On the consolidated statement of financial position, the Group
reports the net contract position for each contract as either an asset
or a liability. Amount due from customers for construction contracts
represents an asset where costs incurred plus recognised profits (less
recognised losses) exceed progress billings.

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
Since the Group’s main operation is carried out in the PRC, the
amounts shown in the consolidated financial statements are presented
in RMB.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are recognised in profit or loss except for those
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the
gains or losses are also recognised directly in equity.

The results and financial position of all the group entities that have a
functional currency different from the presentation currency (“foreign
operations”) are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented and fair value adjustments on the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation which are to be treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation, are translated at the closing rate at the
end of the Reporting Period.

— Income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange rate.

& B 7 8ok M R ()
E20214E12A31 B L F B

2. ITEERBRE)

BNEERGHEEE)

EEHMBRARLE AEEREBRARAKFEAS
RSB EREEXRABE-BECELENKRANE
RN BREEREBER BRBEENRE B
EPREARKMEER -—BREE-

ShEEIRE

FEBEXERVBBRFAESNEEDIANEREL
BT f%ﬁ@i@?%(IUlﬁ“%%I)E+§° i

REAKEZEBIERNTRERAER RESYBR

RIIREBIIAAREBZS -

i
2
i
m
W

A

ANINBEETZRGTERNRSBHPZRTERK
BRI EE - HEUEXZRUNEFEZE
BEERBEUNFREXFEELAZEL RS R
IE?IEJ‘EM%E&WE@%C’ EMBERAAEEIED

ERHEBEELAZIERAREENERANER

IEEJEETKEM%EQ ANBEHREFEKEBEESL
MOMNEWR R RBERN EUHBRT ZERAER

EE N EE N SRR -

BRRE2FNNERNMESEERIBNIEHDH
XENMBBERANEEE R TIEEERKE
S B

- PN EHBRAXNEEREBE R
BENIEBEEINEERABEHRESZSE
IEBHNEERAGB REENR LEES
B oRBEARNKTERE R

EHREROBARFARFYEXE

o

B R

212 2021 Annual Report Kunming Dianchi Water Treatment Co., Ltd.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

All resulting exchange differences arising from the above
translation and exchange differences arising from a monetary
item that forms part of the Group’s net investment in a foreign
operation are recognised as a separate component of equity.

On the disposal of a foreign operation, which includes a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation,
a disposal involving the loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes
a foreign operation of which the retained interest is no longer
equity-accounted for, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to the foreign operation that is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
separate component of equity is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss when the gain or loss on disposal is recognised.

On the partial disposal of the Group’s interest in a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation which does not result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of the cumulative amount of the exchange differences
recognised in the separate component of equity is re-attributed
to the non-controlling interests in that foreign operation and are
not reclassified to profit or loss.

On all other partial disposals, which includes partial disposal
of associates or joint ventures that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control, the proportionate
share of the cumulative amount of exchange differences
recognised in the separate component of equity is reclassified
to profit or loss.
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

ET+ZF SHUEBERZR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 £

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of other assets

At the end of each Reporting Period, the Group reviews internal
and external sources of information to assess whether there is any
indication that its property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
intangible assets, investments in associates and investments in
subsidiaries may be impaired or impairment loss previously recognised
no longer exists or may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based on the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In addition,
the Group tests its intangible assets that are not yet available for use
for impairment by estimating their recoverable amount on an annual
basis and whenever there is an indication that those assets may be
impaired. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the smallest group of assets that generates cash flows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised as losses in profit or loss

immediately.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying amount of the
asset or cash-generating unit that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversal of impairment

loss is recognised as an income in profit or loss immediately.
Borrowings costs

Borrowings costs which are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction and production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other
borrowing costs are recognised as and included in finance costs in
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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CHAPTER TWELVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

£+

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, when it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and when a reliable estimate of the
amount of obligation can be made. Expenditures for which a provision
has been recognised are charged against the related provision in the
year in which the expenditures are incurred. Provisions are reviewed
at the end of each Reporting Period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money is material,
the amount provided is the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. Where the Group expects a
provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

G